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GLOSSARY OF ABBREVIATIONS

AED Arab Emirate Dirham

AFS Availablefor-Sale

AGM Annual General Meeting

ALCO Assets & Liabilities Committee

AMIC Asset Management Investment Committee
AML Anti-Money Laundering

ASOP Approved Share Option Plan

Basel Basel Accord or Basel Standards

BCC Board Credit Committee

BLME Bank of London and The Middle East plc
BLMEH BLME Holdings plc

BREEAM | Building Research Establishment Environmental Assessment Method
BRC Board RiskCommittee

CCR Counterparty Credit Risk

CCRC Counterparty Credit Risk Committee
CEO Chief Executive Officer

CET1 Common Equity Tier 1

CFO Chief Financial Officer

CGs Commercial Guidelines

ciC Change Implementation Committee
COO Chief Operatin@fficer

CRD IV Capital Requirements Directive IV

CRO Chief Risk Officer

DABS Deferred Annual Bonus Scheme

DFSA Dubai Financial Services Authority

DIFC Dubai International Finance Centre

DIPs Deferred Incentive Planned Scheme
EBT Employee Benefitrust

ECAI External Credit Assessment Institutions
ECL Expected Credit Loss

EPS Earnings Per Share

EU European Union

EXCO Executive Committee

EY Ernst & Young LLP

FCA Financial Conduct Authority

FRC Financial Reporting Council

FVOCI Fair Valuerhrough Other Comprehensive Income
FVTPL Fair Value Through Profit or Loss

FX Foreign Exchange

GCC Gulf Cooperation Council

GDPR General Data Protection Regulation
HTM Held to Maturity

IAS International Accounting Standard

IASB International Accounting Standard Board
ICAAP Internal Capital Adequacy Assessment Process




ICG Individual Capital Guidance

IFRIC International Financial Reportingtémpretations Committee of the IASB
IFRS International Financial Reporting Standard
ILAAP Individual Liquidity Adequacy Assessment Process
INED Independent NorExecutive Director

ISA International Standards on Auditing

KYC Know Your Customers

LAB Liquid Asset Buffer

LGD Loss Given Default

LLP Limited Liability Partnership

LOD Lines oDefence

MBA Master of Business Administration

MCOBs Mortgage and Home Finance Conduct of Business rules
MENA Middle East and North Africa

MIFID Markets in Financial Instruments Directive
MLRO Money Laundering Reporting Officer

NCI Non-Controllinginterest

NEDs Nonexecutive Directors

OCl Other Comprehensive Income

ORC Operational Risk Committee

PC Product Committee

PDA Premier Deposit Account

PIFSS Public Institution for Social Security

PRA Prudential Regulation Authority

PRR Position RisRequirement

PRS Profit Rate Swap

PVO1 Present Value to 1 basis point

RAF Renaissance Asset Finance

RMF Risk Management Framework

RRP Recovery Resolution Plan

RSCA Risk Control SeAssessment

SE Structured Entities

SIC Standard Interpretation€ommittee of the IASB
SICAV Société d'Investissement A Capital Variable
SID Senior Independent Director

SIF Special Investment Fund

SM&CR Senior Managers and Certification Regime
SMR Senior Managers Regime

SSB Sharia’a Supervisory Board
UAE United Arab Emirates

UK United Kingdom

USA United States of America

USOP Unapproved Share Option Plan

WMIC Wealth Management Investment Committee




GLOSSARY OF ISLAMIC FINANCE TERMINOLOGY

Murabaha

A Murabaha contract is a deferred sale of goods at cost plus an agreed profit
up under which one party purchases goods from a supplier and sells the go
another party at cost price plus an agreed magk The delivery of the goods
immediate whist payment is deferred. Murabaha has a variety of applications
is often used as a financing arrangement, for instance for working capital and
finance.

Commodity Murabaha

A Commodity Murabaha contract (a subset of Murabaha) is often used
liquidity management tool by financial institutions. The Commaodity Murabal
today the mainstay of the Islamic interbank short term liquidity market. In th
transactions the commdity, usually a London Metal Exchange base metal, is
on a deferred basis with a matlp. The marlup is close to conventional mone
market levels.

Wakala

Wakala means agency and is often used in an arrangement where one part
principal) place funds with another (the agent). The agent invests funds on
behalf of the principal for an agreed fee or profit share.

ljara

An ljara is a contract allowing the granting of the right to use an asset by one
to another which equates to the lelg of an asset in return for rental paymen
ljara is typically used for medium to long term financing of real estate, equipn
machinery, vehicles, vessels or aircraft.

Mudaraba

A Mudaraba is a partnership contract in which a capital owner (Ralaildviters
into a contract with a partner (Mudarib) to undertake a specific business or prg
The Mudarib provides the labour or expertise to undertake a business or ac
Profits are shared on a piagreed ratio but losses are borne by the Rab al
unless negligence of the Mudarib is demonstrated.

Musharaka

An agreement under which the Islamic bank provides funds which are mingleg
the funds of the business enterprise and others. All providers of capital are en
to participate in themanagement but not necessarily required to do so. The p
is distributed among the partners in predetermined ratios, while the loss is b
by each partner in proportion to his/her contribution.

Sukuk

Sukuk (also referred to as Islamic bonds) areifieates that reflect ownership ir
an underlying asset. Profits are calculated according to the performance ¢
underlying asset or project. Sukuk
which are set up to acquire and to issue financial claimsthe assets. Suc
financial claims represent a proportionate beneficial ownership for a def
period when the risk and the return associated with clelvs generated by the
underlying asset are passed to the Sukuk holders. Sukuk are commonly u
funding and investment tools.

Istisna

An lIstisna contract is usually used for construction finance. The asset is

existence at the start of the contract and is built or manufactured accordin
detailed specifications defined by the client, anglidered at the agreed date an
price. Payment is deferred. Istisna contracts are commonly applied in pr
finance, construction finance and pexport finance where the bank acts as

intermediary between the producer and the ultimate client.




Profitrate swaps

A profit rate swap is a contract between two parties where each counterp
agrees to pay either a fixed or floating rate denominated in a particular curr
to the other counterparty providing a means of exchanging fixed rate profit
risk for floating rate risk or vice versa.

Participation agreement

A participation agreement is an agreement executed between the rele
Structured Entity (SE) and the Bank. The main objective of this agreemen
facilitate the required funding toenable the SE to acquire leased assets
investment property and to convey the beneficial ownership of the asset tg
Bank. Under this agreement the risks and rewards are transferred to the Ban
the SE is indemnified against actual losses that aase result of any leas
transaction it enters into except in cases where it misappropriates any funds

Zakat

Zakat is an a legitimate obligation to donate a proportion on certain kinds of w
each year to certain deserving classes of recipients ptest for in accordance
with the principles of Sharia’ a. T
that the rich feel the suffering of the poor and the needy in society. Zakat is
by Muslims who have wealth above a certain threshold. Zakadics on "shares'
and shareholders of BLME are responsible for paying zakat on their shareho

Fatwa

Islamic law given by a recognized authority




2017 GROUP HIGHLIGHTS FOR BLME HOLDINGS PLC
The Group’'s profit after tax B5dmilion(heartoy3tRecemieen2®ib.dosslater C
tax of £21.4 million)
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CHAIRMAN'’S STATEMENT
In the name of Allah, the Most Gracious, the Most Merciful
Dear Shareholders

| am pleased with the progresise Grouphas made in 2017. THerouphas been transformed over the past 18 months
and is now on track toperating withinthe newly focussed Wealth Management strate@lie refinement of the strategy
is reflected in the resultsasthe Groupreports areturn to profit.

The senior management team have been instrumental in producing this turnaround and building more efficie
operations alongside a reduction in coef27%in 2017 This success is ancouraging start; however, there is still a way
to go. | am confident that we have the correct team in place to continue to produce chatige@roup

The Board willcontinue to strive to meet the expectations of our shareholders. The Boardtenéioup value the
support of our shareholders and will maintain an open dialogue. We sincerely thank our shareholders for their supp
throughout the years to help us achieve this positive outcome.

I would Ilike to thank t hieguiBamea and auppart o8an theepastyeas and tp theBstafh r ©
their hard work and commitment.

Adel Abdul Wahab AVajed
Chairman
20March 20B

Naming convention and abbreviations:

The expressioh t h e Coonfptamey "Gr oup” Gooupt heeBé& ME tandiB subbidiaridBUME Haddmgs p
Plc is the ultimate parent company and is listed on Nasdaq Dubai.

The name of the principal subsidiary, Bank of Londratme and

text.



CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER’S STATEMENT

2017 proved to be a transformational year for BLME. We set ourselves the challenge of fundamentally changing
business model; to become a lower risk and more focused bank, whilst delivering a retymofitofollowing a
disappointing 2016. We have successfully delivered across all key objectives, which is a great achievement givel
backdrop of uncertain economic conditions.

Financial Performance

In 2017 we achieved a record profit after tax for BLME%¥ million, compared to a loss of £21.4 million in 2016.
Financing assets were stable over 2017, with new business growth offset by some major repayments during the y
maintaining the balancehget at £1 billionIn 2017, there have been a number of recoveries relating to legacy issue:
howeverthe profit trajectory, with theongoing businesdeaves me optimistic for the year ahead.

Improved Efficiency

During the year, w have worked hard to reduce our cosiad achieved a reduction df7% (2016: 6%)this was
necessitatedasaresultof moving toa lowerriskreturn portfolio of assets.Our cost to income ratio improvedom 103%

in 2016, t093%in 2017,and should fall furtheras we adapt to our new model. Despite this dramatic reduction in costs,
we were still able to invest in the new strategy, and in particular in growing our Whtimgement products and
services.

Risk Management

Further to the enhancements made our risk management framework during 2016, we haeatinued to maintain a
conservative risk appetite. NelRerformingfinancing assetas a proportion of our financing portfolio decreaseds.5%

in 2017, from7.8%a year earlierlmpairmentcharge of£15.8million in 2016reduced due to recoveries and resulted in a
net impairment creditof £3.3 million in 2017. We have successfully reduced concentration risk in our financing ant
funding this will remain a priority moving forwar@ur costof funds has reducednal as a result, our product pricing has
becomemore market competitive.

General Data Protection Regulation (GDPR) preparation has sigdificantimpact internally and we have invested in
systems and resources to ensure that we are ready for 25 R0dy. The GDPR team are working to prepare every
department across the bank for the changes and to put processes in place to ensure that moving forward our operati
remain GDPR compliant.

Distribution

A challenge for BLME has always been the distributioproducts and services. In 2017 we began to focus more on
establishing and building partnerships with otlo@nks. Boubyan Bank, our largest sharehgltias been very supportive
and in 2017 we participated alongside them in one of the largest tramsecBLME has completed.

There have been severalitiatives to improve our distribution capabilityhe most significant has been tgpgrade our
Dubai International Financial Ceni{ielFC)icensefrom a representative office to a brancthis has now ben approved

in principle by thédubai Financial Services Autho(BFSA As a branch we will be able to provide a more comprehensive
service to our clients. This is an important step in our expansion of BLME Wealth Management.

People

Developing and eiredding BLME values has been an important element of our success this yeaor@uatevalues
have become part of our everyday working life and influence all aspects of our operations from customer service
recruitment. We have spent the past yeafleting on the feedback from our employees and addressing their areas of
concern to make BLME a great place to work. We have recruited talent aligned with our values, and cultivated our culf
to be one that is collaborative, goal orientated and restlien



Products

We have launchednortgages(outside of Mortgage Conduct of Busine@d4COB) rulgsand continue to invest in
expanding our Wealth Management offering. Our newly created Investment Solutions team have completed their fi
deal. There is a grong interest amongsGulf Cooperation CounciGC¢nationals forUK real estat@assets outside of
London and tk recenttransaction indicates our ability to connect our clients to strong and diverse income yielding asset

We also successfully launchedranline 90 Day Notice Account and improved our Premier Deposit Account which hav
both contributedfurther in diversifying our deposit base and reducing liability concentration risk.

Future

2017 has beenm breakthrough year for BLME. We drew a line unither legacy issues that have cast a long shadow over
the bank in recent years. We have built strong foundations, and can now focus on growiBanthas we continue the
implementation of our focused strategy.

We have a strong team that are fully aligneih our goals and who drive the culture and success of the Bank. | want tc
thank them for their amazing commitment and resilience in 2017. | would also like to thank the Chairman and the Bo
for their ongoing support forthkemabntihurdeguidducar i a’ a Super vi s

Giles Cunningham
Chief Executive Officer
20March 20B



THE BOARD AND EXECUTIVE MANAGEMENT

Adel Abdul Wahab Al-Majed — Chairman

Adel is the Norexecutive Chairman of the Board of BLME Holdings plc. Hevka80 years of experience in banking. He
is currently Chief Executive Officer and M@ ai r man of BLME's | argest shar e
previously held the position of Chairman. From 1980 to 2009 Adel worked for National Bank of lusvaithe held a
number of positions including Deputy Chief Executive Officer and General Manager. Adel has played a key role ir
development of the Kuwait banking sector including regulation, shared enterprises (Credit BureatNah®&kared
Switch) ad Islamic Banking

Sheikh Abdullah Jaber Al-Ahmed Al-Sabah - Vice Chairman

Sheikh Abdullah is the Ne#xecutive Vice Chairman of the Board of BLME Holdings plc. He is the Deputy Director Gene
for I nvestment and Operations at KuwandMucé GhaifanmofAhliddnitech s
Bank of Kuwit. Previousijhe wasChairman of Housing Finance Company (Unicap Investment and Finance) and he wa
Board Member of the Ahli Bank of Kuwait, Global Investment House, and the Chairman of Kuwait Financing Servic
He started his career at PIFSS arehtbecame a Vice President at Wafra Investment Advisory Group in New York whel
he was involved in direct equity, real estate and equity portfolios.

Executive Directors

Giles Cunningham - Chief Executive Officer
Giles Cunningham joined BLME in Octobdi&2@aving previously served as Chief Executive Officer, International at Qata

Islamic Bank in Doha. Prior to that appointment Giles was Group Chief Executive Officer of The Zubair Corporation
2008 until 2011. He started his career at Kleinwort Bensiominvestment bank, before moving to Lloyds Bagksroup
where he spent 17 years. Giles held a number of senior roles with Lloyds, both in the UK and internationally. This inclt
two years as Head of Finance & Strategy in LI®atding Group, Brazi and three years as the Bank's Middle East Chief
Executive Officer, based in Dubai. Most recently he was based in London and responsible for the Lloyds Internati
strategy and business, including a role as International Transformation Director, IaeiBgn k * s i nt er nat
and reorganisation. Giles is a mathematics graduate, an Associate of the Chartered Institute of Bankers, holds an |
and is an active Harvard Business School alumnus.

Chris Power — Chief Financial Officer

Chrisjoined the Bank in September 2015. Heduated from the London School of Economics and holds an MBA. H
gualified as a chartered accountant at Deloitte in London in 1986 and progressed to become a Senior Manager hea
up the Hong Kong Banking and Sés Group of Deloitte. Chris joined the ABN Amro group in 1B84ding the
Corporate Control and Compliance function before becoming joint CFO/COO of the listed Bank of Asia. In 2004, (
becamea Corporate Executive Vice PresidentA B N A Mop&ecsitive Groupgheading up the control function for
South America basedinBratin 2008 he joined CLS Group Holdings AG
as the Chief Financial Officer and in 2010 was the Group Finance Director of tte Boa

Non-executive Directors

Michael Williams (Senior Independent Director)

As well as being the Senior Independent Director of BLME Holdings plc, Michael Williams is also the Chairman o
Nominations Committee. He joined the Bank in 2012 and heldtipps including Chairman of the Nominations
Committee and of the Risk Committee prior to being appointed Chief Executive Officer on an interim basis between N
2015 and March 2016. He is a qualified banker with an extensive background in internatianakfiHe has held a
number of senior and board level positions in the UK and in the Middle East. Prior to joining the Board of BLME, he
Chief Executive Officer of the International Bank of Qatar in Doha before which he was in Dubai as the Chie¢ Exec
Officer of the National Bank of Fujairah, having previously been the Managing Director of Nomura Bank International
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for 6 years. Michael started his career with Barclays Bank Group working for them for 25 years holding a number of se
positionsincluding Managing Director of Barclays Global Services and Corporate Banking Director at Barclays Bank F

Neil Holden (Independent)

Neil is Chairman of the Remuneration Committee of BLME Holdings plc. He is a mathematician and chartered accoul
with more than 30 years of experience in international banking focusing on financial control, risk management a
governance. His executive roles included Head of Corporate and Investment Banking Credit for Standard Bank G
Head of Risk for Standard BaRlkc, and previously various senior roles at WestLB and Hambros Bank covering all ri
finance and operational disciplines. He is also a-dkecutive Director of Stanbic International Insurance Limited,
IntegraFin Holdingplc and Saffron Building Society

David Williams (Independent)

David Williams joined the Bank in October 2015 as an Indeperidemexecutive Director and Chairman of the Risk
Committee. He is a senior credit risk professional with 27 years of experience in international bankinghgpatrati
executive and board level in the Middle East, Europe and Asia. Over a career with Barclays PLC his executive roles in
Wholesale Credit Risk Director of the Barclays Group and Chief Credit Officer at Barclays Capital. David was a
executive Bard Director of LCH Clearnet Group Ltd. David is a former British Army officer and is currently a Trustes
Haig Housing Trust, a major services charity.

Jabra Ghandour

Jabra Ghandour is a N@xecutive Board member of BLME Holdings plc having previously served as Chief Execu
Officer between March and November 2016. He has more than 30 years of experience in Financial Services. Before jc
BLME he wathe ManagingDirector and Boardnember of International Bank of Qatar. Jabra began his career at Cairc
Amman Bank where he was Head of Treasury before moving to Union Bank as Executive Manager responsible for Tre
and Financial Institutions. Jabra joined Jordanidwel Bank (Ahli Bank) in 1994 as Assistant General Manager followe
by four years at Merrill Lynch (Jordan) as General Manager. From 2002 to 2012 he worked at National Bank of Kt
holding several senior positions including General Manager, Jordaneattidfl Private Banking. Jabra has played a key
role in developing and growing market leading banks. He is also an independent Board member of Bank of Etihad.

Calum Thomson (Independent)

Calum Thomson joined the Board of BLME Holdiigs April 2017 as Chairman of the Audit Committee and a member
of the Risk CommitteeNominations Committeand the Board Credit Committee. He has over 25 years of experience ir
the Financial Services industry and was at Deloitte LLP for the past 21sgEaiglising in th€&inancialServicessector.
During his career at Deloitte he has led the global and UK asset management groups. Calum gualified as an account
EY, from there he went on to work at Lloyds of London's Regulatory Review departnsegxpEiience includes clients

in the Middle East, Malaysia, UK and the US covering wealth management, private banking, private equity and the Gel
Insurance Markets. Calum is a NExecutive Director and Audit Committee Chair of The Diverse InconteplauBritish
Empire Trust plc, Baring Emerging Europe plc and Standard Life Private Equity plc asedechiore Director of Schroder
Pension Management Ltd and Schroder Unit Trusts Ltd.
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GROUP STRATEGIC REPORT

THE BUSINESS MODEL

TheBankoE ondon and t heBLME ¥ dne ef th&largest Islpnib@nks ih Europe specialising in Wealth
Management with complementary Real Estate, Lease Finance and Trade Finance offerings focussed on the UK an
markets.We areled by a strong nr@agement team, which brings together experienced international bankers, product
specialists and leading experts in Islamic finange. arefully in compliagewi t h t he pr i nandppidee s
ourselves in providi ngluti&b t our dienta be theyrmdividuadsnCGomnfiercial arholesale.

The Bank is authorised by the Prudential Regulatory Authority (PRA) and regulated by the PRA and the Financial Co
Authority (FCA), and possesses a full UK banking licEhedBanloperates in three strategic divisions:

Wealth Management
Weal th Management includes the Group’s compl ementar.y
Estate Finance.

The Private Banking business focuses on providing private banking services leveraging our Real Estate and L
capabilities.It provides deposit products, banking services and residential and investment property finance targete
towards GC@ndMiddle-East and North Africal[ENA based High NeiVorth Individualsandalsooffer business jet and
superyacht finance.

Investment Solutions offers targeteédlh a r dorapliantanvestments through ihouse capabilities or third parties.

Real Estate Finance pides finance to small and medium sized Real Estate developers, investors and High Net Wo
Individuals looking to invest in UK property across all sectors.

Commercial Finance

The Commercial Financdivision specialises in providing competitive finangisolutions to the UKnid-market and
particularly supports those companies that have links to the GCC rdgiedlients range from multinational corporations
to family businesses generally earning a minimum operating profit of £1 million across a vhhesiness sectors. The
facilities offeed typically range in size from £1 millie£20 millionandthe credit approval process is centralisedhn
London office.

Commercial Financbasparticular expertise itthe following sectors: transportatiohealthcare and energy and can offer
companies a comprehensive package of faciliflé® business ilationship focussed so the same team remains with
the transaction from origination to repaymentheCommercial Finance division is organised into tltepartments:

1 Leasingsolutions for the UK midharket, including international facilities and wholesale finaticeough on
balance sheet and joint venturavestments.

9 Corporate and Asset Finance for the GCC including vendor programmes.

1 Trade Financeffering inventory finance, structed trade transactions and letters of credit

Treasury

TheTreasurnydivisionma n a g e s  tcadpital, li§uadityland $unding, ensuring that the Bank operates within its market
and liquidityrisk appetites. To this end Treasury ensures funding sources are diversified and at cost effective rates.
alignmentwith the strategy objective to achieve wider and diversified funding, Treasury has launched a new savir
product, the Notice Account, which providdsoster term savings opportunities.

12


https://www.blme.com/products-and-services/commercial-finance/leasing/
https://www.blme.com/products-and-services/commercial-finance/trade-finance/

STRATEGY AND OBJECTIVES

The Groupai ms t o become the UK’'s | eading provider of S
nationals. We provide a bridge between the UK and the GCC, leveraging our estdhlisineds areas such as Real Estate
and Leasing where we have expertise and credibility.

In delivering the strategy, we have a number of aspirations:

To build a strong, established and respected Wealth Management brand across the GCC

To become the UKartner of choice for GCC Islamic banks

To deliver sustainable profitability and stable returns

To provide excellent service to clients, demonstrated by@nm relationships and recommendations

To create a culture that drives a wglbverned, inngative andclienc ent r i ¢ Shari a’ a Bank

To To To o Do

Over the course of 2017 weave launched new products includingrtgagegoutside of Mortgage Conduct of Business
(MCOB) rulesind debit cards for our private banking clients, built a balanced and experiencdith wemagement team
andupgraded our DIFC license from a representative office to a branch, which has now been approved in principle by
DFSA and wiinprove our distribution capabilities.

FINANCIAL RESULTS

The financial statements for the year eetl31 December 2017 are shown pages42to 51. The profitafter tax for the
year amountedo £5.7 million (2016: loss of Z1.4million). Below are the highlights of the financial performance and the
position as at 31 December 2017.

Key performance indicators 2017 2016
Post-tax return on equity 2.8% (8.7)%
Cost income ratio 93% 103%
Net fee income total income 3.7 4.6%
Non-performingFinancing Assets overall Financial Assets 5.5% 7.8%
Number of depositors 3,204 2,485

The efficienciegdentified in late 2016 have been implemented and as a result ourinostne ratio is on a downward
trajectory.

Below graphs shows the credit exposure by country of incorporation and by sector. Further details can be found in N
36.

. . . Credit exposure by Sector as at 31 December
Credit exposure by Country of incorporation as at 2017 = GCC financial

31 December 2017 institutions

® Real estate
8.8% 14.3%

® Transportation and

0 storage
13.3% = United = Wholesale / Retail
Kingdom 4.6%
. Kuv?/ait ® Energy and
3.2%_ gohmmfpditie_s |
ther financial
9.5%
0 Other GCC 4.1% institutions
4.6% Government
m Other
68.4% countries Manufacturing
8.2%
8.7% 390 Construction
Others
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Credit exposure by Country of incorporation Credit exposure by Sze(;:Igr asat3l Eg‘?g}gggcim
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m Energy and
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Construction

Others

GROUP NON-FINANCIAL INFORMATION STATEMENT

BLME is committed building a bank that drives positive change not only for individuals but for society as a whole. We
committed to acting in a socially responsible manner and promotingagisoach in the market in which we operate.
We recognise our social, civic, economic and environmental responsibilities across all areas of our business
operations.

During2017 we continued to develop a culture that inspires staffabvir excellentlient servicen line with our strategy

and risk appetite. This will continue in 2018 as we get closer to our clients and meet their needs with relevant produ
The Banlcontinues to monitor its key risks, and as part of this we continue to reduceanaentration risk and are
focussed on continuing to diversify our funding and financing streams.

Social Responsibility

BLME expects a high and consistent standard of conduct from all of our employees. Respect and compliance with the
regulations, BME pol i cies and Sharia’a pr i nOur paluesgositenrintegrity,h e
consistency and fairness at the heart of BLME's oper
and treated with dignity and transparency. BLME approaches clients, business and product development with a str
attention to risk. Our corporate values have become part of our everyday working life and influence all aspects of «
operations from customer service to recruitment.

The Environment
BLME complies with relevant environmental laws and regulations. Ourdvdad i ce has a ‘' (Buwldng G
Research Establishment Environmental Assessment MefRatig.

BLME Corporate Social Responsibility includes our commitment to the environmenimjgement operational
efficiencies to ensure that our envirorental impact is reduced or limited. For example; providing extensive recycling
facilities in our offices and managing travel plans to maximise the number of clients and events as possible in one jour

Health and Wellbeing

BLME takes the health and lmeing of our employees seriously. We encourage safe and healthy working condition
through our Health and Safety policy and through a range of benefits which include Private Medical Insurance, ¢
membership, a generous holiday allowance and training deglopment.Our new employee wellbeing programme is

in the midst of being launched by the end of first quarter of 2018.
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To support a safe working environment BLME has fire wardens and trained first aiders on site. We also have Dis:
Recovery and Busess Continuity plans. Our employee handbook and intranet also provide advice on Wellbeing a
Health and Safety.

Financial Crime and Anti-Corruption and Anti-Bribery
Over the past two years BLME has heavily invested in building a robust financialrisiknneanagement team with
supporting policies and processes alongside regular financial crime training and communications to all staff.

All BLME staff receive annual training on amtiruption and antibribery matters. BLME three core financial crime
policies; AntiBribery and Corruption PolicAnti-Money Launderig, Counter Terrorism Financing a8enctions policy.
Additional policies further support our robust approach to financial crime which include our Charitable Donations Poli
Conflicts of Iterest Policy and Employee Handbook.

Human Rights
Our statement on modern slavery can be found on our website. When appointing suppliers we take into account t
Modern Slavery Act.

Whistleblowing
BLME has a Whistleblowing Policy. A whistleblower is a person who raises a genuine concern related to suspected v

doing or dangers at work. We support staff who have genuine concerns related to suspected wrongdoing or dan
affecting any of BLME's agties to report should report their concerns to our Whistleblowing Champion.

PRINCIPAL RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES
The Group’'s principal ri sks and wuncertidoie36.i es have &

Further information on t heCEGstabemgnt. s strategy i s provi

On behalfof the Board

Giles Cunningham
Chief Executive Officer
20March 20B
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT
The Directors present their annual report and audited financial statements foygheended 31 December 231
Principal activities

BLME Holdings pléthe Company or “the Group) was incorporated in the United Kingdom on 24 April 2013 and its
principd activity is to act as a holding company f oandBa
its subsidiariesThe insertion of the Company as a holding compaifnthe Bank was effected pursuant to a Scheme of
Arrangement in 2013

BLME s an independent, wholly Sharia’ a compl i ant (PRAx N Kk
and regul ated by the Financi al Conduct Authority (F
banking services to businessand individuals with a strong focusttie UKand the Middle East. BLMias three strategic
business divisionsCommercial Finan¢c&Vealth Management and Treasugffering competitive financial products and
servicesThe results for the year are discussed further in@eup’ strategic report.

Financial results and dividends
The financial statements for thgearended 31 December 2@lare shownon pages42 to 51. Theconsolidated Group
profit for the year after taation amountsto £5.7 million (2016: loss of £21.4 million). The result for ttandalone

Company for the year waspofit of £21.8million (2016: loss of £152.9nillion). The Directors do not recommend the
payment of a dividendbr the year ended 31 December 20016:£Nil).

Directors and Directors’ interests

There were some significant changes to the Board durin@.Zlle Directors who held office during the yeand their
Committee memberships and functions as atB&cember 201, were as follows:

Name and Board/Committee Chairmanships Date of D.ate o.f Commltte.e
(as at 31 December 2017) Appointment Resignation Memberships
(as at 31 December 2017)
Adel Abdul Wahab AVajed 26 April 2013
Chairman of the Board
Sheikh Abdullah Jaber-Ahmed AlSabah 26 April 2013 Audit
ViceChairman of the Board Risk
Remuneration
Giles Cunningham 17 November 2016 Executive
Chief Executive Officer Credit
Chris Power 26 September 201¢ Executive
Chief Finanal Officer
Michael WilliamgSeniorindependentDirector) 26 April 2013 Nominations
Chairman of the Nominations Committee Remuneration
Risk
Credit
Neil HoldenIndependent) 26 April 2013 Nominations
Chairman of the Remuneration Committee Remuneration
Audit
Risk
Credit
Calum Thomson (Independent) 1 April 2017 Audit
Chairman of thédudit Committee Risk
Nominations
Credit
Jabra Ghandour 25 March 2016
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David WilliamgIndependent) 15 October 205 Nominations
Chairman of théBoardRisk Committee Remuneration
Risk
Credit
Zeyad AMukhaizeem 7 February 2014 | 31 March 2017
Frank Vermeulen (Independent) 26 April 2013 31 March 2017
Abdullah AIMejhem (Independent) 1 April 2017 18 April 2017

Michael Williams became Senibrdependent Director and Chairman of the Nominations Committee ofréhtuary
2017.

ZeyadAl-Mukhaizeenstepped down from the Board on 31 March 2017 with Abdullakié&jhem appointed to the Board
as aNon-executiveDirector on 1April 2017.

FrankVermeulen stood down from the Board on 31 March 2017, with Calum Thomson appointed to the Board on 1 A
2017 taking over as Chairman of the Audit Committee.

Pursuant to the provisions of the Comp aappdintedbdthe Board e :
during the financial year, rather than at a general meeting of Shareholders, must stand for election by the Shareholc
at the firstAnnualGeneralMeeting AGM)following their appointment. Following th&GMthe Directors must stashfor
re-election by the Shareholders at least every three years. All of the current Directorsweremct ed at t h
AGMeither in 2016 or in 2017 and accordingly no Directors are standing-leotion at theAGMin 2018.

The Group providedll Directors with qualifying third party indemnity provisions during the financial year and at the date
of this report.

The Directors who held offic 31 Decembe2017 had the following beneficial interests in the ordinary shares of the
Company at thend of the year.

Number of shares held at
Name Class of share
the end of the year
Adel Abdul Wahab AWlajed Ordinary 25p 1,000,000
Sheikh Abdullah Jaber-Ahmed AlSabah Ordinary 25p 80,000
Neil Holden Ordinary 25p 30,000
Michael Williams Ordinary25p 30,000
David Williams Ordinary 25p 30,000
Calum Thomson Ordinary 25p 30,000
Jabra Ghandour Ordinary 25p 500,000
Giles Cunningham Ordinary 25p 813,120
Chris Power Ordinary 25p 30,000

17



Chairman’s other significant commitments

Date of

Director Company Appointment Appointment

Adel Abdul Wahab AVajed Boubyan Bank K.SFC. Chief Executive 27 March 2013
(BLME Groughairman 31 Officer and Vice
March 2014 to present) Chairman

The Board acknowledges that Addédldul WahabAMaj ed’ s ot her commitments may ¢
have procedures in place to ensure that the Group is not disadvantaged. A Director shall not vote at a meeting of
Board or of a Committee of the Board on any resolutioncerning a matter in which a direct or indirect interest is held.

The Directors complete annual conflicts of interest declaratiand ensure the Board is informed of any change in
circumstances throughout the year.

Sharia’a Supervisory Board members
The Sharia’a Supervisory Board members during the ye

9 Sheikh Dr. Abdulaziz-@lassar (Chairman)
1 Sheikh Dr. Esam Khalaf&lezi
1 Sheikh Dr. Mohammed Daud Bakar

Financial Risk Management
The Group has exposure to the following iskegories

Credit risk
Liquidity risk
Market risk
Operational risk
Capital risk
Conduct risk

=A =4 =4 =4 =4 =4

A description of how the Group manages these risksagided inNote 36.

The result of the UK’'s ref er en diskrand@aentiddpporuaimtorereGroup p
However, given the current state of the negotiations asemer into 2018, management hassessed and stresssted

a numberof scenarios that may resultfrom “ Har d Brexi t” . Thi s i s ndihe Goupsimo n
a position to withstand anysignificant UK macroeconomic and political risk impact from the result of the Brexit
negotiations

Political contributions

The Groupmade no political contributions during the year (BOEnil).

Going concern

The Directors have reviewed the business activities and financial position of the Group and have a reasonable expect:
that it has adequate resources to continue in operational existence for the foreseeable future. In making this assessir

the Directors have considered a wide range of information about the current and future condition of the Group includir
the strategic direction, activities and risks that affect the financial position.
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For these reasons themonsolidatedinancial statementsf the Group and parent Compahgve been prepared on a going
concern basis.

Disclosure of information to auditor

The Directors who held office at the date of approve
thereisnoredvant audit i nf or mat Auditorisarfawarehandcehch Diteator Haotak@nalhsyepss
that he ought to have taken as a Director to make himself aware of any relevant audit information and to establish tt
t he Co mpddoniyaivaseof that information.

Auditor

The Board undertook an audit tender2017 inaccordance with auditor tender rules and best practitaving engaged
KPMG LLP as Auditors for almost 10 years. Following the tender process the Board proposed the appointment of Er
Young LLP aAaditardneéwefemppainped Isy resolution on 19 May 2017 atAlteM

A resolution concerning thee-appointment of the externalAuditor and authorising the Directors to set their
remuneration will be proposed at the Annual General Meeting.

By order of the Board

Peter Bulkeley

Company Secretary
20 March 2018
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

The Board considers that good corporate governance is central to achieving the Group's objectives. To this end, the B
has established governanceframework that sets out procedures, policies and practices that are required by law,
regulation and/or bst practice guidelines. The frameworlalsousedtal et er mi ne ri sk appetit

defined strategic objectivesisk appetite adherence is monitored through a formalised process of risk identification
control assessment and performannonitoring.Board and executive committee structures have been implemented,

together with clearly defined roles and responsibilities for both the individuals and the committees. These committe
oversee the activities of the Group and help ensure costiane operating as designed. These structures, including
individual department business plans, ensure that appropriate financial and human resources are in place to deliver
Group’'s strategic objectives. P o blished aadcreiterated to hllestafbithraughu r
regular training programmes, including antoney laundering and financial crime, the UK Bribery Act, conflicts of interest
and treating customers fairly.

Governance structure

BLME Holdings plc

BLME plc
Board of Directors

Audit Nominations
Committee Committee

Remuneration
Committee

Board Credit

Committee

Chief Executive
(BCC)

Officer

Assets & Counterparty
Liabilities Credit Risk
Committee Committee
(ALCO) (CCRC)

Operational

Risk Committee
(ORC)

Note: The Group operates with a dual board structure with mirror image Audit, Nominations, Remuneration and Board Risk Committees for both
BLME Holdings plc and Bank of London and The Middle East plc (“BLME plc”).

To reflect the change in the WélalManagement businessuding the year Asset Management Investment Committee
(AMIQ wasrestructuredto Wealth Management Investment Committe&/MIQ.
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The Board of Directors
The Board is responsible for BLME's system of <corpor
Asat 31 Decembe?017 the Boardof Directors comprised two Executive Directors:

1 Giles Cunningham ChiefExecutive Officer
M Chris Power Chief Financial Officer

andsevenNon-executive Directors, including the Nexecutive Chairman:

Adel Abdul Wahab Aajed — Non-executive Chairman

Sheikh Abdullah Jaber-Ahmed AlSabah-ViceChairman of the Board

Michael Williams Senior Independent Direct@nd Chairman of Nominations Committee
Neil Holder Chairman oRemuneration Committeéndependent)

Calum Thomsao- Chairman of Audit Committee (Independent)

DavidWilliams— Chairman of Risk Committéendependent)

Jabra Ghandour

= =4 =4 =4 =4 -4 4

The appointment of Directors is considered by the Nominations Committee and ratified by the Board. Pursuant to t
provisions of the Company's Articles of AssociationZirgctor who has been appointed by the Board during the financial
year, rather thamat a general meeting of Shareholdemsyst stand for election by the Shareholders at the first Annual
General Meeting following their appointment, and following that meeting, must stand feteetion by the Shareholders

at least every three years.

Non-executive Directors are appointed forthreee ar r enewabl e terms, which may
notice.

All the Directors have access to the advice and services of the Company Secretary, who is responsible for ens
compliance withBoard procedures and applicable regulations. Independent professional advice is available to t
Directors at the Bank’'s expense where they judge it

Board Meetings

The Board of Directors meets at least gedlly and has a defined agenda of matters reserved for its decision. The Boar
is responsible for the overdllbompany strategy, setting the risk appetite, approval of major capital expenditure projects
and consideration of major financing matters. The Etines discharge their duties within a framework of controls relating
to the assessment and management of risk.

The matters specifically referred to the Board for decision include the approval of the annual report and financ
statements, the payment of didends, the longerm objectives of the Group, the strategies necessary to achieve these
objectives, the Group’'s budgets and pl ans, signific:
investments and disposals, the organisatd structure of the Group, the arrangements for ensuring that the Group
manages risk effectively and any significant change in accounting policies or practices.

Board Committees

The Board has delegated to the Committees of@reupthe responsibility taeview and make recommendations to the
full Board.The Board Committees operate within clearly defined terms of reference
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Board and Committee meetings attendance record 2017

Nominations Audit Risk Remuneration
Board . . . .
Committee Committee Committee Committee
Py) > > > > >
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Executive Directors
Giles Cunningham| 6
Christopher Power| 6
Non-executive Directors
Adel Abdul
Wahab AMajed | ° | * | 7
SheikhAbdullah
Jaber AlAhmed Al 5 1 7 5 2 7 3 3 9 4 2 6
Sabah
Michael Williams 6 7 0 3 4 7 2 2 5
Frank Vermeulen 2 1 3 1 0 1 2 1 0 1
Neil Holden 5 7 0 4 4 9 4 2 6
Zeyad
AlFMukhaizeem 2 1 3 2 0 3 1 1 2 1 0 1
DavidWillams | 6 | 1 | 7| 4] 0| 4 45|93 2]s
JabraGhandour 6 1 7
Calum Thomson 4 0 4 3 ‘ 0 ‘ 3 3 ‘ 1 ‘ 4 3 ‘ 4 ‘ 7
Abdullah
Al-Mejhem 0 0 0 0 ! !

Of thesevenboard meetings held during the yeaixwere regular meetings anohe wasanad hoc meeting. The ad hoc
meeting covered aumber of topicdncludingthe approval of the Business Plan, Strategy, Budget and Risk Appditite.
servingDirectorsattended the ad hoc meetingThe approval ofhe Annual Report anffinancial Statementsapproving

the notice of AGMand approving the 2017 ICAAP, IL/AAB RRP were all covered in regular scheduled Board meetings
The Executive Directors regularly attend the Audit Committee and Risk Committee meetjugstas

Board Audit Committee

The Audit Committee is chaired Balum Thomsorand comprises Sheikh Abdullah JabeAAMed AlSabah and Neil
Holden.Calum Thomson took over as Chairman from Frank Vermeulen on 1 April 2017.

The Committee’s main responsi bil ity intersaladdibor, and thd etemal a n
auditor regarding the internal control systems implemented throughout the Bank, along with consideration of bot
Interim andAnnual Report and Financial Statementsalso makes recommendations to the Board on the appointment

of the auditors and th audit fee.
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The Board considers that the members of the Audit Committee possess recent and relevant financial experience.
Audit Committee has unrestricted ac ckErmstkYbouagLLEWepro@Gideo u |
non-audi services in addition to the provision of audit services. In the year ending 31 DecemBen2faudit services
provided byEYcomprised advice with regasdo employment and overseas tax servicesirther details regarding the
fees paid taeYfor these serviceareincluded inNote 12 on page73.

The Audit Committee is responsible for reviewing and
the effectiveness of the audit process. The process through which the Commaitee e s ses t he audit
and obijectivity each year includes the following:

1 areview of noraudit services provided to the Group and related fees

9 discussion with the auditors of any relationships with the Group and any other parties that atiatd
independence or the perception of independence

T a review of the auditor’s ownh procedures for ens
involved in the audit, including the regular rotation of the audit partner

1 obtaining writen confirmation from the auditors that, in their professional judgement, they are independent

More information regarding the Group’'s Audipdge2Commi t t
Board Risk Committee

TheBoardRisk CommitteéBRC)s chaired bybavidWilliamsand comprisesSheikh Abdullah Jaber-Ahmed AlSabah
Neil Holden Michael Williamsnd Calum Thomson.

BRCis responsible forthe oversight of the risk profile of the Barénd for providing guidance, advice and
recommendatbns to the Board on credit, market, liquidity, direct investmend operational risks with a view to-re
enforcing a culture thaéncourages good stewardship of risk. Within this mandate it reviews risk levels in consideratic
of the Gr ou pppdite, onarket carditionsrandsblasiness strategy. It alsgewsBL ME’ s | nt er
Adequacy Assessment Process (ICAAP) and Individual Liquidity Adequacy AsdesstasdqtL AA) andassesses the
adequacy of stress testing and risk policy.

Ultimate responsibility for risk rests with the Boasdhich, with advice and recommendations froRBapprovesthe risk
appetite for each major class of ri sk i @andhlsoragprowes theh
annual ICAABNdILAAPBoard Credit Committeis asub-committee of BRC established to review auine ondecisions
made by the Counterparty Credit Risk Committee that are outside of stated risk appetite and/or meet other escalati
criteria.

The management of risk igkbgated to the Chief Executive Officer who in turn delegdieslay-to-daymanagement of

risk to the Executive Committee and, in particular, to theecutive Risk Committee which oversees ttee sub
committees of the Bank responsible for risk oversigpeing ALCO, CCR@IORG. The dayto-day independent oversight

of risk i s per fisbdeparemegnt. Bhis priodess is Bupporkedtlsgr e gul at or y rirgepnalr t |
control role in monitoring adherence to risk limits, management action triggers and regulatory limits.

Board Remuneration Committee

The Remuneration Committee is chaired by Neil Holden and comprises Sheikh Abdullah-8abedANSabahMichad
Williams and David Williams.

The Remuneration Committee ensures thlenployees management and executive compensation is appropriately
aligned to business and individual performance, and is consistent with Shareholder insmdssin compliance with
the FCA's Remuneration Code. It performs these duties within a framework that takes account of prevailing mar
conditions, best market practice and regulatory compensation guidelines. The Remuneration Committee has appoin
Merceras a professional athor. Merceris independent and has no connection with BLME.

More information regarding the Group’ s répertroopage2®.at i on
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Board Nominations Committee

The Nominations Committees chaired by Michael Williams and comprises Neil Holden, David Williams and Calu
Thomson.

The Nominations Committee is responsible for matters relating to the composition of the Board, including tt
appointment of new Directors, and making recommendas to the Board as appropriate. The Committee is also
responsible for overseeing the annual performance evaluation of the Board, its principal Committees and the Chairm

The Nominations Committee identifies qualified candidates to be Directors, thraughust and prudent process, with
the use of external consultants as necessary.

Chairman and Chief Executive
The roles of Chairman and executive management, led by the Chief Executive Officer, are separated and clearly defi

a. The NorexecutiveChairman, Adel Abdul WahabMhbjed, is responsible for the leadership of the Board, ensuring
effectiveness in all aspects of its role, reviewi
effective communication with Shareholders artconduct of Shareholders meetings.

b. Executive management is led by the Chief Executive Offefe©)Giles Cunninghapwho has been delegated
responsibility by the Board for the day-day management of the Bank within the control and authority
framework set by theBoard. TheCEO is supported liyhief Financial Offic¢ CFO)Chris Powelin managinghe
business.

c. The Company Secretary, Peter Bulkeley, is responsible for ensuring good information flows within the Board
its Committees and between senior management and #recutive Directors, as well as facilitating inductions
and assisting with professional ddepment of Board members as required. The Company Secretary ensures the
Board procedures are complied with, and advises the Board, through the Chairman, in all governance matte
The Board has the responsibilfyr appointing and removing the Companycgstary.

Board balance

The Board includes a balance of Executive and-@¥acutive Directors such that no individual, or small group of
individuals, can dominate the Board’s decision tiaeki n
for the requirements of the business. No one other than the Commiftes@rman and Committee members is entitled to
be present at a meeting of the Audit, Nomination, Risk or Remuneration Committees, but othemtteray at the
invitation of eachCharman.

During the year ended 31 December Z0fwo of the Directors were Executiv@rectors;on average fouwere Non
executive Directors who were considered by the Company to be independent.

The Board believes that the N@xecutive Directors who are dsified as independent have retained their independent
character and judgement. The Board periodically reviews the independence of iteXdoutive Directors to assess

whether their judgement could be impaired in any way which could affect the interéstedCompany. The Board uses
objective criteria to make this assessment, including:

1 the length of term which the Neexecutive Director has already served
1 whether the Norexecutive Director has any material business relationships which may conflichwittterests
of the Bank
9 relationships with other Directors
whether the Norexecutive Director is a Shareholder
1 the nature of the Norexecutive remuneration, including any participation in employee incentive arrangements

=
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Information and professional development

The Board is supplied in a timely manner with information in a form, and of a quality appropriate to enable it to dischar
its duties. The Company Secretary is responsible for ensuring the Directors receive accurate, timely and cleapmforma
which is provided by operational management and enhanced or clarified where necdasdegsional development and
training for the Board is monitored by the Nominations Commitisgartof the annual performance evaluatioaview.

In addition the Cntinued Professional Development (CPD) of the individual Directors are assessed by the Chairman
the Senior Independent Director as part of the annual fit and proper assessmémompliance with the Senior Manager
and CertificatiorRegime.

Financial reporting

The Board is responsible for presenting a balanced and understandable assessme@rolfies posi t i on a
extending to interim reports and returns to regulators, including statutory requirements.

Internal control

The Directors are responsible for reviewing the effectivenessotioelg s i nt ernal control s o©
an ongoing process to identify, evaluate and manage risk, which has been in place throughgaathad is regularly
reviewed bythe Boardwith guidance from thdBoard Risk Committee andudit Committee

The internal controlframework covess financial, operational and compliance areas and risk management. There ar
limitations to any system of internal control, which can only pilevieasonable but not absolute assurance with respect
to the preparation of financial information, the safeguarding of assets and the possibility of misstatement ésltss.
first line of defence managementdesign and perform the control function They are then periodically tested
independently through the Compliance Monitoring Plan providing a second line of def€heg are monitored and
assured ly thorough reviews conducted ligternal audit actingas the third line of defence. The findings of skaeports

and subsequent tracking of the remedial actions required are monitored by the appropriate internal committees and |
the Audit Committee to ensure all open action points are closed and the adequacy of all systems and controls
maintained.

Relations with Shareholders

The Directors place great importance on maintaining good communications with all investors. The BLME Group repo
formally to Shareholders twice a year with the publication of its interim and annual reports.
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SHARIA’A SUPERVISORY BOARD REPORT

In the name of Allah, the Most Gracious, the Most Merciful
To the Shareholders of BLME Holdings plc
Assalamu Alaikum wa Rahmat Allah wa Barakatuh.

The management of BLME&roupis responsible for ensuring that tHB&LME Grougonducts its business in accordance

with the principles of the Sharia’ a. It is the res|
opinion, based on the review of the operations, agreements and transactions conducted by BLRIHE. iesponsibility
ofmanagement to i mplement the decisions of the Sharie

We, the Sharia’ a S ipdngswihave newewdd ana mahitoced theBpektions, agreements and
transactions conducted by BLMEoupduring the period 1 January 2010 31 December 204and have reviewed the
BLME Annual Report afdhancial Statementer the year ended 31 December 2Z0MWe conducted our reviews to form

an opinion as to whether BLMErouphas complied with the principleso t he Sharia’a and wit|
guidelines issued by the Sharia’"a Supervisory Board.

It is the Sharia’a Supervisory Board’'s opinion that:

1. The operations, agreements and transactions entered into and conducted by 8kdig during the year 1
January 201to 31 December20land whi ch were reviewed by the Sha
with the principles of the Sharia’ a.

2. The distribution of profits and the sharing of losses in terms of the investment account$/&@loupare in

compliance with the principles of the Sharia’ a.
3. All profit generated by BLM&roupduring the year 1 January 2Dfo 31 December 201has been derived from
Sharia’"a compliant sources.
4. TheShari a’ a Su pasreviewedalricpmeBegeveddrormon-Sh ar i a’ a ¢ o durgtha nt
year 1 January 201to 31 December20L and wi | | oversee BLME's deal.
Sharia’"a compliant manner.

BLME will provide shareholders with a calculationtlud zakat payableon their shareholdings but it is the sole
responsibility of shareholders to pay the zakat.

We ask Allah to lead the management and staff of BLME towards integrity, correctness and further success.
Wassalam Alaikum wa Rahmat Allah waaRatuh

Signed on behalf of the Sharia’a Supervisory Board c

Sheikh Dr. Abdulaziz-®lassar
Chairman
20March 20B

26



AUDIT COMMITTEE REPORT Audit Committee Members
Statement from the Chairman of the Board Audit Committee Calum Thomsor Chair
Sheikh Abdullah Jaber Al Ahmed
The Audit Committee meseven times during the year. In Marc2017, the |Sabah
Committee reviewed the Annual Repad Financial Statementsr the year ended | Neil Holden
31 December 2016 and recommended its approval to the Board. In May,
Committee considered its terms of reference and reviewed the internal audit rej :

. : : . . EY- (external auditor)
on Financial Crime. It also received updatn Cyber Security anffom the PWC- (internal audit)
Complance departmerd monitoring plan In Julyand August the Committee | p,vid williams- INED
reviewed the Interim Report for the six months ended0 June 2017 and chief Financial Officer
recommended its approval to the Board. It reviewed the internal audit reportien
Commercial Finance, Wealth Mamagent, MiddleOffice, Finance anduinanResourcesdepartments and discussed the
management action plan. In October, the Committee received updates on the progress of internal audit plan for the y«
and action plan on the areas of Financial Crimeand 9bes k. The external Audit-end’ s
financial statements was received and discussed. In December, the Committee reviewed the internal audit report
Credit Risk anthe Senior Manageand CertificatiorRegime. It received ampdate on yeaend planning and discussed
the impact of new accounting standami€luding thelFRS 9 implementation plam. March 2018, the Committee received
and reviewed the results report from the external auditors on #reualaudit and the Annualreport and financial
statements for the year ended 31 December 2017 and recommended the approwaisef to the Board

Audit Committee Guests

Role of the Audit Committee
The Audit Commi ttee’s main functions ar e:

1 To monitor the financial reporting proceasd integrity of thelnterim Report and Annual Report and Financial
Statementsof the Group by reviewing and challenging, where necessary the actions of the management, |
significant judgementsapplicability of the accounting standards adoptedd estimates contained withithe
financial statemersandtheGr oup’' s accounting policies.

T To monitor the effectiveness of the Group’s inte
the effectiveness of thinternal audit function The Committee reviewand approves thennualinternal audit
plan, ensuring itutlisessBL ME' s Oper at i oTha functiBn mesentsRguigri reportsshowing
management responses on delivering recommended changes.

1 To meet the independent Auditor of the Company to esvitheir proposed audit plan and the subsequent Audit
Report and to assess the effectiveness of the audit process, the nature of thaudinwork and the levels of
fees paid in respect of both audit and nandit work.

1 To make recommendations to the Bdain relation to the appointment, r@ppointment or removal of the
Auditor, and to negotiate their remuneration and terms of engagement on audit anehndit work.

f To monitor and review annually the e xehess resolrcesfand i
gualifications.

1 To ensure it fulfils its responsibilities under its terms of reference the Committee establishes an annual agend

1 The Committee also reviews reports received from management on key business areas, with particusiemph
on compliance (including financial crime and compliance monitaring)

Significant Issues & Internal Controls

1 The Committee has benchmarked its terms of reference against regulations and best practice, for simi
businesses, and found that no sigraft adjustments were required and has established its annual programme
of activities to enable it to meet the requirements set out by regulatiodin the terms of reference.

1 The @mmittee discussed various issues facing @reupincluding the growinghreat of cyber securityisk and
improvement of the stronger financialime and compliance function tfe Group

1 The @mmittee reviewed the level of impairments including collective and specific throughout the year anc
providedrobust challenge and analis.
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1 The Committee had a detailed review of the financial statemedisiding the appropriateness of the accounting
policies adopted for the recognition of income and the valuation of the Conipany i nvest ment i r

1 The @mmittee assessed thinternal Auditors risk assessment, audit plan for the current and next year, and
consistently reviewed thanternal audit reports and recommendations on the auditvariousareas ofthe Bank
includingHuman Resources; Finance; Financial Crime; CyberitgeRegulatory Reportingcluding Capital and
Liquidity reporting Compliance Risk Framewp@redit on boarding and monitoring; Middle Office includimgi
Money LaunderingAML), Know your custome( Cand Senior Manageand CertificatiorRegime $M&CR) It
evaluated the risk and control framework of these areas in light of the report and recommendation.

1 The Committee reviewed the effectiveness of the outsourced internal audit function, which it deemed to be
satisfactory, however felt it would baufther enhanced if the management established its own internal audit
function. As a result, the management have recruited a permanent member of staff to head up the internal auc
function at the Bank and thaudit Committee Chair is currently overseeindp¢ handover from a fully outsourced
model to a cesourced structure.

1 The Committee has reviewed the transition of theeviousincumbent external auditors KPMG to the new
auditors EY.

1 The Committee reviewed the Compliandenitoring Plan and the implemetation of new regulations including
MIFID IlI; Senior Managand CertificatiorRegime; Payment Services Directive Il; CRD IV and Basel .

9 During the yearthe @mmittee reviewed and discussed the IFRS 9 implementation plan and progress; the ne
impairmen methodology; and the PRA transitional arrangemeiitse Audit Committee Chair met EY to discuss
the assumptions and management judgements made in relation to IFRS 9 impairment model developments.

External Audit Process
The Committee makes recommendations to the Board on the appointment of the external auditors and has unrestrict
access Aol LTREIMmitteewelcomed the new auditors Ernst & Young LLP (EY) during the year who toc
over from previousauditors (KPMG)The Audit Committee is responsible for reviewing and monitoring the external
Audi tor’s independence and objectivity and the effe
Commi ttee assesses t heobjectivilyiedcloyedr cludes theefglevingte nce and
91 review anddiscussiorof the external audit plan and results of the annual audit
9 areview of nonaudit services provided to the Group and related fees
9 discussion with theAuditors of any relationships withhie Group and any other parties that could affect
independence or the perception of independence
1 areviewofthekAudi t or’' s own procedures for ensuring the i
involved in the audit
1 obtaining written confirm&éon from the Auditors that, in their professional judgement, they are independent

The Audit Committee meetst least twice a year with the Auditavithout Management The Auditor provides a planning
report in advance of the annual auditresultsreport on their review of thelnterim Report and a results report ohd
annual auditof the Annual Report and Financial Statementse Audit Committee has an opportunity to question and
challenge the Auditor in respect of each of these reports.

After each aud, the Audit Committee reviews the audit process and considers its effectiveness. The review of the 20
audit concluded that the audit process with the new auditors had worked welltrenssues raised during the yeantea
been adequately addressed.

Auditor Assessment and Independence
The Audit Committee has reviewed EY's independence p
was considered that those policies and procedures remained fit for purpose.

Calum Thomson
Chairman, Board Audit Committee
20March 20B
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REMUNERATION REPORT - -

. . 3 Remuneration Committee Members
Statement from the Chairman of the Board Remuneration Committee Neil Holden- Chair
Sheikh Abdullah Jaber Al Ahmed Al
The Committee met six times during the yedihe composition of the Committeq Sgbah N
has changed in 2017 with Michael Williams and David Williams joithiag I\Dﬂélcil?jfll\/}ll\lli;”:ﬁ:Rg\I[)ED
Committee following the retirement of Frank Vermeulen and Zeyad

Mukhaizeem from the Board on 31 March 2017. Remuneration Committee Guests
Mercer (advisor)
Financiaperformancein 2017 was much improved compared to the previous y{ Tracey Carltor- Head of HR

and is commented uponin mor e detai |l i n t H ExecGtived Calum ThomsonINED e
Of ficer’' s st artoOnmethat ®ntestthe Paakghassmprad the

underlying cost income ratio andvesedin the new strategy, in particular in growing our Weditanagement products
and services.

Role of the Remuneration Committee
The Remuneration Commiottee’s main functions are

1 Decide and report to the Board dhe framework for remuneration including the overall level of salary reviews,
share and other incentive awards, pension and contractual arrangements;

T Oversec ompl i ance with regulations, including the FC

Set the remuneration of the Chairman of the Board, the CEO, and the Executive Directors;

1 Monitor and review the remuneration of senior executive management (being all materidhkisks, all direct
reports to the CEO, and all other highly paid staff), and

1 Directly oversee the remuneration of the senior managers in the Risk and Complianatieris.

=

Remuneration policy

Our ability to deliver against our strategy requires us to attract @tain high calibre staff and align their interest with
our shareholdersand our RemunerationFrameworkis designed tosupport the strategy This includegliscouraging
inappropriate risk takingndis guided by the following principles:

 Remuneration is set at appropriate levels and is benchmarked against the external market place

» Atotal remuneration philosophy is operated wherein the Bank seeks to basdruceterm considerations against
alignment ofthe interestof shareholders

e Remuneration is designed to promote effective r
appetite;

* Any breaches of risk appetite or conduct failures are considbyethe Committee when determining both the
overall bonus pool and individual executive remuneration

* Performance measures and targetsntain both financial and nefinancial metris and are cascaded from the
Group’ s strategy t o tdd @heyCaElignedavithrshaeteldes interestd acdnsistesntr
with the businessstrategy and objectives

*  Compliance with the regulatory environment is mandatory

2017 activity

The Committee’s activity during the year included:
»  Approval of updates to the regulatory Remuneration Policy Statement and categorisabtaterial Risk Takers
* Annual review of staff salaries in conjunction with a salary benchmarking swaweyconsidering total
remuneration
* Review and approval @&xecutive DirectordMaterial Risk Takers and other highmid staffremuneration
* Review and approval of the remuneration of the Chairman of the Board
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» Approval of a Policy fdrisk Adjustment ahe Annual Bonus Popl

* Approval of the 2017 bonus poglayable in 2018 including the discretionary bonuses for senior staff with
mandatory deferral applied above a threshold of £25,000

»  Approval for the use of a new cash deferral methodolfsggn 2017 onwardshat will protect the Company from
future cost presure as staff participants will not be eligible for matching awards or benefit from any future share
price growth other than throughshare optionschemes or existing holdings

» Review and pproval of share option awarder executivessenior and key statb reinforce value growth for our
shareholders ovea longer vesting profile of 50% vesting after 3 years, 25% vesting after 4 years and 25% vest
after 5 years

* Review of pensions arrangements for senior staff affected by recent changes in pensaiimmtkegislation

Remuneration report

In order to set remuneration levels the Group assesses the extent to which targets have been met and performal
achieved. Total remuneration includes salary, car allowance, annual discretionary bonus, pensidrutoomgror
pensions allowancend potentiallylongt er m i ncenti ves. I n |ine with the
performance measures and targets are linked to business objectives.

Longterm incentives are designed with exterrintependentexpert advice and in keeping with relevant industry best
practice. The Group does not apply a formulaic approach to remuneration on the grounds that this could encoure
inappropriate risk taking. The pawt levels depend on the performance of the Grothe relevant business units and
the individual; forfeiture and clawack mechanisms operate where appropriatend consi st ent wi t h

A discretionary bonus forms part of the Gtafbdegighadd as e i
Material Risk Takeis portion of the annual discretionary bonus is defermer a three year periadThe bonus deferral
mechanism in March 2018 will not be using the historigeferred Annual Bonus Scheme (DABISth hadfuture pay

outs linked tothe share price performance of thgarentcompany The DABS scheme also provided staff with the ability
to benefit from a matching award of up to 100% of the deferred awsmthject to performance targetand wassubject

to forfeiture on leaving employmeiunless classified as a good leavastead anew cash deferral methodolodyas been
introduced withvestingspread evenly over a thregearperiod with no matching award or linkage to the share price and
subject toforfeiture relating to malus, gross sgonduct or leaving to join a direct competitoRemoving the matching
award and the linkage to the share price reduces and stabilises the cost to the Bank of the deferral and acknowledges
the Senior Management team and key staff are already aligvitdlongterm shareholder interest through the recent
issue of share options using the ASOP and USOP schemes (see below).

Whilst the headlindinancial performanceof the Group represented a highly satisfactory turnaround fr2@16, the
Committeein addition carefully considered the underlying sustainable level of profitability in 2017, and the pressing ne
for the sharehol ders t o be ginadditionto thénfimanaal performanzkthe Groapu p
progressed well in adhving nonrfinancial strategic goals, and this also was taken into account in setting the level c
annual bonusesin balancing these considerations the Committeensulted with all the Nomxecutive Directors
including shareholder NEDS befatecidng to approve a discretionary bonus bwuias also very mindful of the need to
reduce the distributable reserves deficit.

The Groughas Shareholder approval to make awards up to an aggregate maximum of t@@pafentCo mp a mssuéds
share capital over a 10 geperiodfrom the date of the Nasdaq Dubai listing in October 2013. In order to align and retair
the Senior Management team and key staff across the Bank with the recently articulated strategy, the Remunerat
Committee approved the award of approximatel 4 . 4% of i ssued share capital a:t
schemes to senior management and key staff (2016: 3.6%). Such awards were made subject to vesting over a5 year |
dependent on the Committee’ smanc ofdhe Snogandiwill asb betshibect to thel e
Committee’s discretionary a $as besmchievediwitha the risloappetiteeot the érm, p
based on feedback from the Chief Risk Offitte,Chief Compliance Officandthe BoardRisk Committee.
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Awardsmade in 207 across alequity-settled share schemetotalled the equivalentof 4.9% ofthe issued share capital
(2016: 5.2%)and the total numbeof equity-settled options in issue as at 31 December 20less options issued prior to
the Nasdaqg Dubai listing and less shares already held by ther&B@sented9.2% ofthe issued share capitaB{
December016: 5.3%)

Neil Holden
Chairman, Board Remuneration Committee
20March 20B

Additional information on the structure of our sharased payment schemesd all awards made under these schemes
is provided in the Shatteased payments note qrages74to 78.
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STATEMENT OF DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES

In respect of the annual report and financial statements

The Directors are responsible for preparing ti&trategic report, theDi r ect or s
GCompanyfinancial statements, in accordance with applicable laws and regulations.

report Paemtd

Company law requires thairectors to preparedCompanyfinancial statements for each financial year. Under that law the
Directors have elected to prepareoth the Group and thd?arent Companyfinancial statements in accordance with
International FinancidRe por t i ng St andar ds HirdpeéaRURIG'EV arad spplecabléap.t e d by

Under Company law theDirectorsmust not approve the financial statements unless they are satisfied that they give ¢
true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Group and Paf@mpany and of their profit or loss for that period.

In preparing each of the Group and Parédt m p asrfiyahcial statements, thBirectors are required to:

» select suitable accounting policies and then apply them consistently

« make judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent

» state whether they have been prepared in accordance with IBRS@pted by the EU

» prepare the financial statements on the going concern basis unless it is inappropriate to presume that the Group ¢
ParentCompany will continue in business

TheDirectors are responsible for keeping adequate accountiogrds hat are sufficient tashow and explain th@arent
Company's transactions and dissk with reasonable accuracyaty time the financial position of thearent Company
and enable them to ensure that itfinancial statements comply with the Companies AcO&0They have general
responsibilityfor taking such steps as are reasonably open to them to safeguard the assets@bthpeandto prevent
and detect fraud and other irregularities.

TheDirectors are responsible for the maintenance and integrity of the corporate and financial information included o

theGroup s website. Legislation in the UK governing the
from legislation irother jurisdictions.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
To the members of BLME Holdings plc

Opinion
I n our opinion:
f BLME Hol'di (W@empdtrdy&r o'utponsol i dated financi al staten

stat emefftisna(htche |” ps tvaet eametnrtuise and fair Wi emdofoft e
Companwffairs as at 31 Déscepmrboefri t2 Oflo/r atnhde oyfe atrh et hGer

T the Group financi al stapamedt $ nhacveobdancpr wpeéehl y
StandiFBR8s adopted by t(E&)European Uni on

T the Parent Company financi al statements have been
EU as applmned wintlactclhme dprovi sions of the Companies

T the financi al statements have been prepared in acc
We have audited the financial statements of BLME Hol
Group Parent Company

Consolidated income sta Statement of fina

December 2017 December 2017

Consolidated statement Statement of <cash

the year ended 31 Decemend&d December 20

Consolidated statement Statement of chan
December 2017 year ended 31 Dec
Consolidated statement Rel at ed not efsi nla nt«
ended 31 December 2017 statements includ

significant accou
Consolidated statement

year ended 31 December

Rel ated notes 1 to 36 t
including a summar yp olfi «

The financial reporting framework that has been appl
EUand, as regards the Parent Company financi al st at
Companies Act 2006.

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordancé¢ SwistdinudKnd ep Iniad a ko

responsibilities under t hos &usgltisa rdeasrpdosh ea rbet hfeutratehde rt ¢
statesmeatison of our report below. We are independent
et hical requirements that are relevant to ourahbuReéepoO
Could¢FROEt hi cal Standard as applied to public i nt e
responsibilities in accordance with these requiremen

We believe that the audit evipgpnaeer waet hatvve pboai e da
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Use of our report

This report is mademsmbelyg,tasthebodmpang accordance
Act 2006. OQur audit work hasobé¢de odmeearbsek esn tshoo steh e
required to state tepvbhemand &pbpraondi bbher purpose.

not accept or assume responsibility t'so mneyrosn easotahelrc
audit wor k, for this report, or for the opinions we

Conclusions relating to going concern

We have nothing to report in respect of the foll owin
wher e:

T the directors use of the going concern basis of a
statements is not appropriate; or

9 the directors have not disclosed in the financial statements any identified material uncertainties that may ca
significant doubt about the Group’s or the Parent
accounting for a period of at least twelve months from the date when the financial statements are authorised f

issue.

Overview of our audit approach

Key aud T Grodpnproper revenue recognitior
matters
T GroAplequacy and appropriateness:s
credit facilities

T Parent CPodnepgaunaycy and appropriat
in relation tBankeofi nversd menand

Audit s T We performed an audit of the co
Group and Company

T Our Group audit scope included
Hol dings plc all odngvhg ecnme mtr et ea
Materi a T Overall Group materiality of £2

Performing a first year audit

I n preparation for our first year audit of the 31 De
our independence of the Group. This involved ceasi ni
the audndewpenedent of the Group. We used the time pri
of the business issues and -enee@dutwiver dKierye cnaonrasg e mien
audist wor ki ng papermnd whs slees siidnegnttifeyirnigskas, judgement s
documented by the predecessor auditors. We wused the
base and assist in the fforema20Is7ata wdi to.f Tohuirs aiundvial vset
key processes and controls over financi al reporting.

Key audit matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in our audit of tl
financial statements of the current period and include the most significant assessed risks of material misstatems
(whether or not due to fraud) that we identified. These matters included those which had the greatest effect on: th
overall audit strategythe allocation of resources in the audit; and directing the efforts of the engagement team. Thes
matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the financial statements as a whole, and in our opinion therec
and we do not provide a separate opinion these matters.
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Risk Our response to the risk Key observations
communicated to the Audit
Committee
Improper revenue recognition OQur approach focus{As a result of
(Group) perfor med, we
T Understanding proany evideater o
Il ncome from fin related to revenumisstatement i
i nvesting actiyv t eistg the design of revenue.
(2016 £55.0 mil effectiveness of
assistance, where
I ncome frocmmmes audit professiona
is £1.9 million|q performing anal yt
. A . P . identify trends 4
WSTSNJ a2 uKsS ! O movements not in
oLk 3Is pTuT IyR expectations.
/,2ya%f7‘RILUSR CAlg Recalnogy!l aotni a sam
oLl 3S TnauU i ncome recogni sed
. product cl asses t
The key rlsksfo calcul ated in acc
recognition o underl ying transa
(1) I ncome recoll Agreeing_, on a s9
anidnvesting act.i transactlo_ns to s
be complete and documenatnadtlcoans_h r
fees and commi ssi
(i) Fees and Cﬂ Performingoyéat es
require judgmen ensure that reven
and timing of r the correct perio
T Checking to suppg
adjustments to th
t hat we have iden
chatrearci sti cs that
unusual or inappr
T Assessing the app
revenue recogniti
policies adopted
18.
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Risk

Our response to the risk

Key observations
communicated to the Audit
Committee

Adequacy and appropriateness of
provisions made in relation to
credit facilities (Group)

Financing arrangements

2017: £567,820k 0 a
MpPZppylZ
MMZcTnlo
2016: £473,304k O
MMOZpMMI]
MMZYyHTI] 0

M Qx

Finance lease receivables 2017:
£170,546k 0 & LISOA FA O
MoImdpnlz O2ffS
MMZndpHTDOU

2016: £232,701k 0 & LIS O
MncTtnlz O2f
MHXZoMy 0

O

A
f

-+
Q>

O

wSTSNI G2 (KS
6LI IS pyoT
/| 2y&az2t AR

OLJ IS TyoO

YR
C

SR CA

| mpairment allo
managesmemdast est
|l osses incurred
portfolios at t
dat e. Thuelyataerde ¢
coll ective basi
but not yet rec
performing | oan
similar credit

ndi vidual basi
0ss event has
alcul ation of

ahi vi dual i mpai
s inherently |
t he
ati

Gi ven
cal cul

subj e
on of

Quapproach

T Assessi
audi t

ng,
prof

wi t
essi

provisions

t hat t
coul d

management

he
be

t her
ti ming
subjec
bi as

focused

h t
ona

effectiveness and
effectiveness of
arrears monitorin
processes for ide
Specific provision

T Reviewing financi
annual credit rev
l imdni toring repo
relevant, coll ate
documentation al o
available infor ma
potenti al i ndicat
i mpai rfenetnitng a s a
exposures from th
financing portfol
whet her any indic
exist.

T Analysing the fil
Unit to assess th
credit exposures
prodi der.

T Challenging the d
management to ens
provision booked
exposure, has bee
accordance with |
assumptions are s
corroborative evi
T With the assiegtuanm
EY valuation spec
chall enging the t
reports used by m
assessment of cre
T Checking that exp
arrears were moni
where appropriate
the watchlist and
Collective provision

T Using EY risk mod
assess the design
i mpai pmewt si on mo
T Checking that t he
agreed to the und
reconciles to the
T Challenging the i
to facilities wit
i mpairment provi s

As a resul t
perfor med,

reasonabl e
evidence of
mi sstatement
for impaired

a

wet
managesmejnitdgem

of

nd
ma
i

c
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Risk

Our response to the risk

Key observations
communicated to the Audit
Committee

obtaining dtohcautme n
supported their ¢
specific risk cat
reconciling the
supporting docume
model .

Performing a sens
corroborate that
| mpairment ®roat s
understated based
Probabil i ¢tPDgorfd Dl
Given (eGDiatl & .
Reviewing and cha
annual credit rev
financing arrange
were carried douwtny
deteriorations in
were captured thr
the risk ratings
provision model
Preparing a bench
comparing the PD
model to third pa
For a sample of n
advanced during t
copy of the wunder

val uation and ens
effectively captu

cal cul ati on.
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Risk Our response to the risk Key observations
communicated to the Audit
Committee

Adequacy and appropriatenessof |Our appr oach f oc us (Basedonthe work performed
the provision made in relation to f Confirming our un|weconcludethatthe

the investment in Bank of London i mpair ment as s e s s| recoverable amount of the
and the Middle East plc (Parent eval uating the de]|investmentinBankofLondon
Company) key controls over and the Middle East plc

1 Revi ewi nlge maidn g h a| included in the Statement of
Investment in subsidiary managesneinmp ai r me n{ financial psition as at 31
£111,011k, 2016: £89,196k, and the esti mat i ol December2017 appropriate
following a release of £21,815k in amount .
the provision for impairment 1 Comparing the und
WSFSNJ G2 (K& 1o With the budget a
6L} IS cpoT FyR andpeeforming the
/2ya2t ARFGSR CA calculation indep
6LI IS yno T With the assnasttan

specialists, crit
The Company holds a significant assumptions used
investment in Bank of Londonand @S friesé& di scount

the Middle East plc. We have average growth ra
determined this to be a key audit used with referen
matter due to the quantum of the understanding of

investment as at 31 December comparison to oth
2017, and the involvement of and broader market
significant judgement by T Performing sensit
managementn the valuation of cash flow forecas
the investment, and consequent assumptions to th
risk of misstatement. understand the im

possi ble changes
woul d have on the
value of the inve
sheet dat e.

An overview of the scope of our audit

Tailoring the scope

Our assessment of audi t ri sk, our eval uation of mat
audit scope for each entity within the Grouponsdhkd
financi al statement s. We take i to account si ze-swirdies
control s, changes in the business environment ankhe ot
l evel of work to be performed at each entity. Al a
the Group audit team.

Our application of materiality

We apply the concept of mat eri al it yl uiart i plganrhienge fdn
mi sstatements on the audit and in forming our audit
Materlallty

¢KS YI3IyAiddRS 2F by 2YA&darzy 2NJ YrAaadl aSySyli GKI 0z
AYyTFEdzSyOS (KSaSHPY2RKSE OdzZRSKR 2Ry KS TAYL y'v L€ adt SYS
VI GdINBE | yR SEGSYyG 2F 2dzNJ | dZRA G LINR OSRAzZNB & @

We determined materiality for the Group to be £2. 2m,

orequity rather than on pr od iprsofoirt abeivleintuye si 9 elcoaw sree It
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al so our expectation is that the main users of the f

restoonr aatsi a key consideration following a series of
We determined materiality for the Parent Company to
based on equity ratheechhaer ©hepEodipittaayirl irteyw eindl elso w
si ze, and al so our expectation is that the main use

restoration as a key conshaderbhbsersfohl owcergtaysarsese

Performance materiality
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f 0 K I
On the Dbasis of our risk assessmends sovemalelt heontwndll

judgement was that an appropriate performancem.mater.i

Reporting threshold
L'y Y2dzyi 0St26 6KAOK ARSYUGATFTASR YAaadldiSySydaa I NB C

We agreed with the Audit Committee that we would rep
whi ch i s srnenti naggt nda% eorfi glliat y, as well as differences &
on qualitative grounds.

We evaluate any uncorrected misstatements against boc
in | pgherofelevant qualitative considerations in for

Other information

the information incl

The other information compr.i S
feoat drhee anérere i nfor mat

i se
our asdieport thereom.ponBhdl ki

Qur opinion on the financial statements does not cov
stated in this report, we do not express any form of

In connectbn with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doinc
so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledg
obtained in the audit or therwise appears to be materially misstated. If we identify such material inconsistencies o
apparent material misstatements, we are required to determine whether there is a material misstatement in the financi
statements or a material misstatement ofdlother information. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude
that there is a material misstatement of the other information, we are required to report that fact.

We have nothing to report in this regard.

Opinions on other matters prescribed by the Companies Act 2006

I n our opinion, based on the work undertaken in the
T the information given in thepoentrategi theeponanaindl

statements ar e pwietphartehde ifsi ncaonncsiiaslt esnttat ements; and
T the strategi c r érpeoprotr ta nhda vteh eb edeinr epcrteoprasr ed i n accor
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Matters on which we are required to report by exception

I n the light of thegkodtwlkideg&rang amdet htea Phirmnt Co
the course of the audit, we have not i dent i f freedp onratt.e

We have nothing to report in respect of the following mattersatation to which the Companies Act 2006 requires us to

report to you if, in our opinion:

1 adequate accounting records have not been kept by the Parent Company, or returns adequate for our audit have
been received from branches not visited by us; or

1 the Parent Company financial statements are not in agreement with the accounting records and returns; or

certain disclosures of directors’ remuneration spe

1 we have not received all the information and explanations we requiredoraudit

==

Responsibilities of directors

As explained more fully in the directors’ responsi bi
the preparation of the financial statements and for being satisfied that they give a tdi&arview, and for such internal
control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free fro
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, thedirect s ar e responsible for assessin
to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going cor
basis of accounting unless the directors either intend to igte the Group or the Parent Company or to cease operations,
or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements

OQur objectives are to obtain reasosnatbémemissuaanaewh

materi al mi sstatement, whet her dués troe pforraudt hart drmrc
Reasonable assurance is a high level of asguraarcee wil
(UK) wi I | al ways detect a materi al mi sstatement whe
considered materi al i f, individually or in the agagr

decobsas of users taken on the basis of these financi e

Explanation as to what extent the audit was considered capable of detecting irregularities including fraud

The objectives of our audit, in respect to fraud, are; to identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of 1
financial statements due to fraud; to obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the assessed risks of mate
misstatementdue to fraud, through designing and implementing appropriate responses; and to respond appropriately |
fraud or suspected fraud identified during the audit. However, the primary responsibility for the prevention and detectic
of fraud rests with both tbse charged with governance of the Group and management.

Our approach in respect of irregularities, including fraud, was as follows

i  We obtained an understanding of the legal and regulatory frameworks that are applicable to the Group ar
determined thatthe most significant are Companies Act 2006, Financial Services and Markets Act 2000, Finan
Services Act 2012, Capital Requirements Regulation, and relevant Prudential Regulation Authority and Finau
Conduct Authority regulations.

i We understoodhow the Group complies with these legal and regulatory frameworks by making enquiries c
management, internal audit, and those responsible for legal and compliance matters. We also review
correspondence between the Group and UK regulatory bodies, redawinutes of the Board, the Executive
Commi ttee, the Audit Commi ttee and the Board Ri s
approach to governance demonstrated by the Board
governancdramework and the internal controls processes.
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0 We assessed the susceptibility of the Group’s fir
might occur, by considering the controls that the Bank has established to address riskgeididnytthe Bank, or
that otherwise seek to prevent, deter, or detect fraud. We also considered performance incentives and the
potential to influence management to manage earnings.

U Based on this understanding we designed our audit procedures to fgarmincompliance with such laws and
regulations identified in the paragraphs above. Our procedures included inquiries of management, internal au
and those responsible for legal and compliance matters; as well as focused testing as referred toen it
Matters section above. In addition we performed procedures to identify any significant items inappropriatel
held in suspense and also any significant inappropriate adjustments made to the accounting records.

U As the audit of banks requires speesed audit skills, the senior statutory auditor considered the experience and
expertise of the audit team to ensure that the team had the appropriate competence and capabilities, an
included the use of specialists where appropriate.

A further descripon of our responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements is located on the
FRC' s website at https://www. frc.org.uk/auditorsresctg

Other matters we are required to address

T We were appointed as auditors by
|l etter was signed on 14 August 2

T The -anwdi t services f{sr oeitihbictadd Shtyantdlaeg dFRV@r e not pr
Cmpany and we remain independent of the Group and

f The audit opinion is consistent with the additiona

Kenneth Eglinton

Senior Statutory Auditor

For and on behalf of EY LLP, Statutory Auditor
Chartered Accountants

London

20March 2018

Notes:

1. The maintenance and integrity of the Bank of London and the Middle East plc web site is the responsibility of tl
directors; the work carried out by the auditors does not invobemsideration of these matters and, accordingly, the
auditors accept no responsibility for any changes that may have occurred to the financial statements since they we
initially presented on the web site.

2. Legislation in the United Kingdom governing fireparation and dissemination of financial statements may differ from

legislation in other jurisdictions.
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CONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENT
For the year 1 January 2017 to 31 December 2017

Income

Income from financing and investing activities
Returns to financial institutions and customers
Net margin

Fee and commission income
Fee and commission expense

Net fee income

Net fair value losses on investments

Note

a1

7

Net fair value (losses) / gains on investment properties

Operating lease income
Other operating income
Total operating income

Expenses

Personnel expenses

Operating lease depreciation

Other depreciation and amortisation

Other operating expenses

Change in third party interest in consolidated funds
Total operating expenses

Operating profit/(loss) before impairment charges

Net impairment credit/ (charge) on financial assets
Loss on disposal of group company

Net operating profit/ (loss) before tax
Tax expense

Profit/ (loss) for the year

Attributable to:
Owners of the parent
Non controlling interest

Earnings per share
Basic earnings per share

Diluted earnings per share

10
23
22,24
12

14

15

16
16

2017 2016
£000 £000
41,708 54,995
(16,284) (19,530)
25,424 35,465
1,909 2,687
(494) (520)
1,415 2,167
(2,330) (3,117)
- (40)
6,443 8,703
6,897 3,682
37,849 46,860
(15,647) (15,465)
(4,858) (6,366)
(1,517) (1,522)
(13,324) (24,783)
- (45)
(35,346) (48,181)
2,503 (1,321)
3,305 (15,843)
- (1,720)
5,808 (18,884)
(75) (2,499)
5,733 (21,383)
5,284 (21,383)
449
5,733 (21,383)
Pence Pence
2.73 (11.07)
2.71 (11.07)

All of theprofit for the financial yeaand thelossin the prior yearwere derived from continuing activities

The notes on pages? to 116 are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
For the year 1 January 2017 to 31 December 2017

Note

Income
Profit / (loss) for the year

Other comprehensive income

Items that may be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss if
specific conditions are met:

Foreign currency translation differences for foreign operations

Foreign currency translation differences for fair value reserve
Fair value reserve recycled to the income statement
Cashflow hedging reserve recycled to the income statement

Unrealised (loss) / gain in fair value of available-for-sale financial
assets taken to equity
Re-classification of fair value of hedging instruments

Income tax on other comprehensive income 15
Other comprehensive (expense) / income for the year net of income
tax

Total comprehensive profit/ (loss) for the year attributable to equity
holders of the Parent company

Attributable to:
Owners of the parent
Non Controlling Interest

2017 2016
£000 £000
5,733 (21,383
(46) 25
94
506 -
1,971
(452) 231
(1,193)
(105) (589)
(97) 539
5,636 (20,844)
5,187 (20,844
449
5,636 (20,844)

The notes on pages? to 116 are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
As at 31 December 2017

2017 2016*
Note £000 £000
Assets
Cash and balances with banks 96,780 71,152
Due from financial institutions 18 28,544 107,182
Due from customers 18 9,027 -
Investment securities 19 114,930 112,161
Financing arrangements 20 567,820 473,304
Finance lease receivables 21 170,546 232,701
Operating lease assets 23 34,922 24,361
Property and equipment 22 987 1,523
Intangible assets 24 837 1,693
Other assets 25 3,141 8,276
Total assets 1,027,534 1,032,353
Liabilities
Due to financial institutions 26 514,392 586,964
Due to customers 27 277,341 213,804
Profit rate swaps 9 636 1,305
Third party interest in consolidated funds 33 433
Other liabilities 28 12,032 12,739
Current tax liability 251
Total liabilities 804,652 815,245
Equity
Share capital 31 48,933 48,933
Merger reserve 32
Other reserve 15,226 15,226
Capital redemption reserve 50 50
Fair value reserve (382) (331)
Non Controlling Interest 280
Share-based payment reserve 1,911 1,604
Foreign currency translation reserve (30) 16
Retained earnings 156,894 151,610
Total equity attributable to equity holders of the Parent 222,882 217,108
company
Total liabilities and equity 1,027,534 1,032,353

*The Merger reserve and Retainedrning balancesas at 31 December 2016ivebeen restated. Refer to Note 3ar details.

Thesefinancial statementsvere approve by the Board oDirectors o 20 March 20B andwere signed on its behalf by:

Chris Power
Chief Financial Officer

Giles Cunningham
Chief Executive Officer

The notes on pages2 to 116 are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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COMPANY STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

As at 31 December 2017
2017 2016
Note £000 £000
Assets
Investment in subsidiary 19 111,318 89,196
Total assets 111,318 89,196
Liabilities
Other liabilities 1 1
Total liabilities 1 1
Equity
Share capital 31 48,933 48,933
Merger reserve 32 - -
Share-based payment reserve 1,911 1,604
Retained earnings 60,473 38,658
Total equity attributable to equity holders of the Parent
111,317 89,195
Company
Total liabilities and equity 111,318 89,196

The company profit for thgear ended 31 December 2DWas £21.8million (2016: loss of £152.9 million). As permitted
by section 408 of the Companies Act 2006, a separate profit and loss account of the parent has not been presented.

These financial statements were approved by Bward of Directoren 20 March 20B and were signed oits behalf by:

Giles Cunningham Chris Power

Chief Executive Officer Chief Financial Officer

Company Registration Number: 08503102

The notes on pages? to 116 are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
For the year 1 January 2016 to 31 December 2017

2017 2016

£000 £000
Cash flows from operating activities
Profit/ (loss) for the year before tax 5,808 (18,884)
Adjusted for:
Exchange differences (1,745) 711
Fair value losses / (gains) on investment properties - 40
Fair value losses on investments 2,302 202
Adjustments to cash flow hedge reserve - 2,305
Provision for impairment (3,305) 15,843
Depreciation and amortisation 6,375 7,8
Share-based payment awards 307 1
Mark to market movement in profit rate swaps 114 (250)
Loss on disposal of group company - 1,720

9,856 9,746
Net decrease / (increase) in operating assets:
Due from financial institutions 77,138 (77,443)
Due from customers (9,027) -
Financing arrangements (87,201) 126,909
Finance lease receivables 65,377 44,190
Operating lease assets (14,947) 6,407
Other assets 4,897 12,865

36,237 112,928
Net (decrease) / increase in operating liabilities:
Due to financial institutions (67,650) (131,306)
Due to customers 63,682 (108,712)
Third party interest in consolidated funds (436) (9,247)
Other liabilities (2,539) 6,390
Non Controlling Interest (170)
(7,113) (242,875)

Corporation tax received / (paid) - 1,003
Net cash outflow from operating activities 38,980 (119,198)
Cash flows from investing activities
Purchase of property and equipment (8) 8
Purchase of intangible assets (118) (372)
Sale of investment properties - 26,750
Purchase of investments (77,720) (56,808)
Sale of investments 62,408 167,408
Cash outflow upon deconsolidation of subsidiary - (1,705)
Net cash outflow from investing activities (15,438) 135,281
Subscriptions to consolidated funds - 4,680
Redemptions from consolidated funds - (43,639)
Net cash outflow from financing activities - (38,959)
Net change in cash and cash equivalents 23,542 (22,876)
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 71,152 88,7
Exchange differences in respect of cash and cash equivalents 2,086 5,296
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 96,780 71,152

The notes on pages? to 116 are an integral part athese consolidated financial statements.
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COMPANY STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
For the year 1 January 2017 to 31 December 2017

Cash flows from operating activities

Profit/ (loss) for the year before tax
Adjusted for:

Impairment (reversal)/loss on subsidiary

Net increase in operating liabilities
Other liabilities

Cash flows from financing activities

Redemption of preference shares held by BLME

Dividend paid in respect of redeemable preference shares
Net cash (outflow) / inflow from financing activities

Net change in cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the period

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the period

The notes on pages? to 116 are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.

2017 2016
£000 £000
21,815 (152,857)
(21,815) 152,857
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

For the year ended 31 December 2017

Balance at 31 December 2016

Profit for the year

Other comprehensive (expense) / income
Foreign currency translation

Change in fair value of AFS financial assets
Fair value reserve recycled to Income Statement
Tax on change in fair value of AFS financial assets

Total other comprehensive (expense) / income

Total comprehensive (expense)/ income for the year

Contributions by and distributions to owners
Dividend

Equity-settled Share-based payment awards

Total transactions with owners

Balance at 31 December 2017

Share Merger* Other Capital Fair Share- Retained* Foreign Non-
capital reserve reserve redemption value based earnings  currency Controlling Total
reserve  reserve payment translation Interest Equity
reserve reserve Total
£000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000
48,933 15,226 50 (331) 1,604 151,610 16 217,108 192 217,300
- - - - - - 5,284 - 5,284 449 5,733
- - - - - - - (46) (46) - (46)
- - - - 452) - - - @52) - @52)
- - - - 506 - - - 506 - 506
- - - - (105) - - - (105) - (105)
- - - - (51) - - (46) (97) - (97)
- - - - (51) - 5,284 (46) 5,187 449 5,636
- - - - - - - - - (361) (361)
- - - - - 307 - - 307 3(
j . - - - 307 - - 307 (361) (54)
48,933 - 15,226 50 (382) 1,911 156,894 (30) 222,602 280 222,882

AFS — Available for Sale

Fair value reserve includes the cumulative net change in fair valueAéSnvestments until the investment is either derecognised or becoimgzired. Thechange in fair value of AFS financial assets includ@sba £

million adjustmentrelating to fair value hedging.

Share-based payment reserve represensthe amortised portion of the fair value of equity instruments issued under the BAME t h e

based payments.

Foreign currency translation reserve comprises all foreign exchange differences arising from the translation of the financial statements of foreign operations

ThecCapital redemption reserve arose on 26 June 2014 following the redemption of 50,000 preference shares of £1 each and the repurchase of one A ardirdfyish

Non-Controlling Interest relates to the minority shareholders in MKL Construction EquiprRer@nce Limited. See Note & explanation of the brought forward balance.

Ghareipcantive schkemeandaccounted for as equitgettled share

*TheMerger reserve, Retained earnings and Non Controlling Interest comparative for prior year and the opening balance as at 1 January 2017 has been rd3ldsd see note2&and 34for more details

The notes on pages?2 to 116 are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

For the year ended 31 December 2016

Balance at 31 December 2015
Loss for the period

Other comprehensive income / (expense)
Foreign currency translation

Cashflow hedging reserve recycled to income statement
De-Recognition of tax asset on cash flow hedge reserve
Change in fair value of AFS financial assets
Reclassification of the fair value hedging instruments
Tax on change in fair value of AFS financial assets
Total other comprehensive income/(expense)

Total comprehensive income/(expense) for the period
Contributions by and distributions to owners
Equity-settled share-based payment awards

Transfer to Retained Earnings

Other movements

Total transactions with owners

Balance at 31 December 2016

Share Merger* Other Capital Fair Cash Share- Retained * Foreign
capital reserve reserve redemption value flow based earnings currency Non
reserve reserve hedging payment translation Controlling Total
reserve reserve reserve Total Interest Equity
£000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000

48,933 16,000 15,226 50 537 (1,382) 1,484 156,928 9) 237,767 - 237,767
- - - - - - - (21,383) - (21,383) - (21,383)
- - - - 94 - - 25 119 - 119
- - - - - 1,971 - - - 1,971 - 1,971
- - - - - (589) - - - (589) - (589)
- - - - 231 - - - - 231 - 231
- - - - (1,193) - - - - (1,193) - (1,193)
- - - - (868) 1,382 - - 25 539 - 539
- - - - (868) 1,382 - (21,383) 25  (20,844) - (20,844)
- - - - - - 171 - - 171 - 171
- (16,000) - - - - (51) 16,051 - - -
- - - - - - - 14 - 14 - 14
- (16,000) - - - - 120 16,065 - 185 - 185

48,933 - 15,226 50 (331) - 1,604 151,610 16 217,108 - 217,108

*TheMerger reserve, Retained earnings and Non-controlling interest comparativebalancefor prior year and the opening balance as at 1 January 2017 has been refidadge see note2and 34for more details

The notes on pages2 to 116 are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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COMPANY STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
For the year ended 31 December 2017

Balance at 31 December 2016
Profit/(Loss) for the year
Other comprehensive income / (expense)

Total comprehensive income for the period

Contributions by and distributions to owners
Equity-settled share-based payment awards

Total transactions with owners

Balance at 31 December 2017

Share-based payment reserve

The sharébased payment reserve represarthe amortised portion of the fair value of equity instruments issued under the BAME

Share Share- Retained
capital based earnings
payment
reserve Total
£000 £000 £000 £000
48,933 1,604 38,658 89,195
- - 21,815 21,815
- - 21,815 21,815
- 307 - 307
- 307 - 307
48,933 1,911 60,473 111,317
t he

€harmipcantiwe 'schemes

and accounted for as equisettled sharebased payments. Pursuant to the BLME Scheme of Arrangemleich took effect on 2 Octwer 2013, the obligations under all of the
BLME share incentive schemes were assumed by the Company for nil consideration. This assumption déitiabil2913 \as treated as an injection of equity and recognised
as a capital contributiomithin the financial statement®f BLMEThesettlement of sharebased payment awardsy BLMEncludesthe reclassification of the Deferred Annual
Bonus Schem@ABSjrom equity-settled to casksettled accounting in June 2014. The transfer to retdiearnings represats the recycling of credits previously recognised
within the Share Based Payment Reserve in relatioDAd ptions which have lapseahd/or forfeited

The notes on pages2 to 116 are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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COMPANY STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

For the year ended 31 December 2016 Share Merger Share- Retained

capital reserve based earnings

payment
reserve Total
£000 £000 £000 £000 £000

Balance at 31 December 2015 48,933 16,000 1,484 175,515 241,932
Loss for the year - - - (152,857) (152,857)
Other comprehensive income / (expense) - - - -
Total comprehensive expense for the period - - - (152,857) (152,857)
Contributions by and distributions to owners
Settlement of share-based payment awards by BLME - - (51) - (51)
Equity-settled share-based payment awards - - 171 - 17
Recycle of merger reserve to retained earnings after
impairment of subsidiary - (16.000) - 16,000
Total transactions with owners - (16,000) 120 16,000 120
Balance at 31 December 2016 48,933 - 1,604 38,658 89,195

The notes on pages? to 116 are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1. REPORTING ENTITY

BLMEHoldingsplc ( the Company }s aCompany domiciled in théJnited KingdomThe address of th€ompany s
registered office i€annon Placg8 Cannon Street, London, ECBNLT he Company’' s princi pa
holdinglo mpany f or Bank of London and T hnditsMubsidiatiesvhidhia anxt p
independent wholesale bank involved in investmentommercial finance private client banking andvealth
management.The consolidated financial statements of the Grane presented as at anfibr the year ended 31
December0l7andc o mpr i se BLME Hol dings plc and its subsidi e

The Company was inserted as a holdibghpany of theBank during 2013 pursuant to a Scheme of Arrangenidrg
transaction was outside the scope of IFRS 3 and therefotmigimess combination occurred

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

a. Presentation of financial statements

TheGroupand Companyave preparedits financial statements in accordance with International FinariRégorting
Standards“(FRY) as adopted by the EU and effective for®Bmupg s r ep or t i ended 31@ecentbér 8201% e a

The accounting policies setit below have, unless otherwise stated, been applied consistently to all periods presented
in these financial statements

The Merger reserve arfgetainedearnings comparative for 201@&nd opening balance as at 1 January 2017 have been
restated due toa prior period error. The details about the error is givemNiote 2.

b. Use of estimates and judgements

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with IFRS requires management tqudgkmentsgstimates

and assumptions that affect thapplication of policies and reported amounts adgsets and liabilities, income and
expenses. The estimates and associated assumptions are baséstarical experience and various other factors that
are believed to be reasonable under the circumstangdgs. results form the basis for making judgements about the
carrying values of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other sources. Actual results may differ frol
these estimatesThe estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewedanaoing basis. Revisions to accounting
estimates are recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised if the revision affects ompigribdor in the

period of the revision and future periods if the revision affects both current and fugerieds.

Judgements made by management in the application of IFRS that have a significant effedimamttial statements
and estimategvith a significant risk of material adjustment in the next year are discussed indNotéNote 36.

¢. Going concern

Accounting standards require tiéd r ect or s t o assess the Group’s abilit
of accounting. In performing this assessment, Bigectors consider all available information about the future, the
possible outcomes aévents and changes in conditions and the realistically possible responses to such events an
conditions that would be available to therfihe Directors have reviewed the business activifieancial positiorand

future forecastof the Bankand have a reamable expectation that it has adequate resources to continue in
operational existence for the foreseeable future

In light of theabove,the Directors continue to adopt the going concern basis in preparing tfieaacial statements.
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d. Adoption of new and amended accounting standards in 2017

The following new amendments or interpretations are required to be applied for an annual period beginning on 1
January 2017 however noitad a significant impadb the Group

1 IAS 7Statement ofCasflows— Amendments as a result of Disclosure Initiative

1 IAS 12 Income Taxesmendments regarding theecognition of Deferred Tax Assets for Unrealised Losses

1 IFRS 12 Disclosure of Interest in Other Entitidsmendments resulting from Annual Improvements 22016
Cycle

e. New standards and interpretations not yet adopted

A number of new standards, amendments to standards and interpretatioasare effective for annual periods
beginning after 1 Janua3018 have not been applied in preparing these consolidated finarsté&ements.Those
that may be relevant to the Bup are set out belowThe Group does not plan to adophy ofthese standards early
where adopted by the EU anglarly adoption igpermitted.

i. IFRS 9 Financial Instruments

IFRS 9 will replace the existing standard on the recognition and measurement of financial instruments (IAS 39) anc
effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2018. The Growgi@ksoptIFRS 9 on 1 Janya2018

Classificatiorand Measurement

IFRS 9 contains a new classification and measurement approach for financial assets that reflects the business mc
in which assets are managed and their cash flow characteristics.

IFRS 9 contains three principaassification categories for financial assets: measured at amortised cost, fair value
through other comprehensive income (“FVOCI ") and f
eliminates the existing IAS 39 categories of held to matudgns and receivables and available for sale.

An assessment dylanagementhas confirmed:

- The ‘“Financi,hDPuArfaongnemémandi a Duken$§ t ihanarecclassifiesd me |
as loans and receivables under IAS 39 are expaotbd measured at amortised cost under IFRS 9

- Investment Securities that are classified as held to maturity or loans and receivables under IAS 39 are expect
to measured at amortised cost under IFRS 9

- Investment Securities that are classified as avalétn sale under IAS 39 are expected to be measured at Fair
Value through other comprehensive Income (FVOCI) under IFRS 9

- Financiahssets held for trading are expected to continue to be measured at fair value through profit and loss
(FVTPL)

IFRS %argely retains the existing requirements of IAS 39 for the classification of financial liabilities. However, unde
IAS 39 all fair value changes of liabilities designated at FVTPL are recognised in profit or loss, whereas under IF|
these fair value chages are generally presented as follows:

- the amount of change in the fair value that is attributable to changes in the credit risk of the liability is

presented inother comprehensive incomé&@(C}; and
- the remaining amount of change in the fair value isganted in profit or loss.
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The Group has not designated any financial liabilities at FVTPL and the Group has no current intention to do ¢
consequently management does not expect this to ha
statements when transitioning to IFRS 9.

Impairment

I FRS 9 replaces the ‘incurredolokssaaigmedplectemddenr eldA$
will require significant judgement as to how changes in economic factors affectvigtitls will be determined on a
probability-weighted basis. The new impairment model will apply to financial assets measured at amortised cost o
FVOCI, except for investments in equity instruments, and to contract assets. It will also apply to finance leas
receivables, trade receivables and-bfflance sheet commitments.

Under IFRS %he Group expects to group itess allowancemto Stage 1, Stage 2 and Stage 3, based on the applied
impairment methodology as described below:

- Stage 112-month ECLs. Thesswe ECLs that result from possible default events within thenbBths after
the reporting date; and

- Stage 2Lifetime ECL&Vhen an instrument shows significant increase in credit risdse are ECLSs that result
from all possible default events over tiegpected life of a financial instrumerdand

- Stage 3: Lifetime ECLs. These are the impaired instruments and lifetime ECLs will be recognised

Lifetime ECL measurement applies if the credit risk of a financial asset at the reporting date has incredisatygni
since initial recognition and 2onth ECL measurement applies if it has not. An entity may determine that a financial
asset’s credit risk has not increased significantly

An assessment by Magement has confirmed thatrovision foimpairmentis predictedto decreaseby £0.1m under

the new IFRS 9 model if applied to the portfolio held as at 31 December 201Ridfegement believes that these
losses will become more volatile for assetshea scope of the IFRS 9 impairment model, since all financial assets will
be assessed for at least-b@onth ECL and the population of financial assets to which lifetime ECL applies is likely tc
be larger than the population for which there is objectivedevice of impairment in accordance with IAS 39 as applied

in our current impairment assessment.

Transition and disclosure

Changes in accounting policies resulting from the adoption of IFRS 9 will generally be applied retrospectively, exce
as described belv:

- the Group plans t@adopt the optionof allowing it not to restate comparative information for prior periods
with respect to classification and measurement (including impairment) changes. Differences in the carrying
amounts of financial assets and financial liabilities resulting from thetmto of IFRS 9 will be recognised in
retained earnings as at 1 January 2018;

- new hedge accounting requirements should generally be applied prospectively however the Group may elec
to apply the expected change in accounting for forward points retrospagtiihe Group has not made a
decision in relation to this election.

- the following assessments have to be made on the basis of facts and circumstances that exist at the date
initial application:

- the determination of the business model within which aaficial asset is held;

- the designation and revocation of previous designations of certain financial assets and financia
liabilities as measured at FVTPL (if any); and

- the designation of certain debt securities and equity investments not held for tradiagRRgOCI.

54



ii. IFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers

IFRS 15 establishes a comprehensive framework for determining whether, how much and when revenue frol
customers is recognised (except for contracts that are within the scope of the accowtdindgards on leases,
insurance contracts and financial instruments). The standard introduces -atéigemodel to determine when to
recognise revenue and at what amount; the model specifies that revenue should be recognised when (or as) an enti
transferscontrol of goods or services to a customer at the amount to which the entity expects to be entitled.

TheGroup will adopt this standard from its mandatory effective date of 1 January 2018. Management is performing &
detailed assessment of the impact retsuly from the application of IFRS 15 and expects to make appropriate
disclosures in 201$owever does not expect the impact to be material.

iii. IFRS 16 Leases

The new standard on leasing was issued in January 2016 with an effective date of 1 January 2dl9mpaet of
this standard is being assessed however the two most significant areas are likely to be the following:

- Lessee accounting model: there will be a single accounting model with no lease classification test. All leas
will be onbalance shetand will result in the recognition of @ght of use of assetrepresenting the lessees
right to use the underlying ass&tgether witha lease liabilityrepresentingt h e | ebligat®retd make
payments

- Lessor accounting model: the lease classification test will be based on existing IAS 17 criteria.

The Group has started an initial assessment of the potential impact on its consolidated financial statements. So fe
the most significant impact identifikis that the Group will recognise new assets and liabilities for its operating leases
in relation to office premises. In addition, the nature of expenses related to those leases will now change as IFRS
replaces straighline operating lease expense Wia depreciation charge for riglof-use assets and financing expense

on lease liabilities. Furthermore, the Group will need to consider the impact of its leases in relation to company cal
and any leased computer/office equipment although there are optlaxemptions for shorterm leases and leases

of low value items.An element of the full impact analysis will consider which transition approach to apply
(retrospective or modified retrospective with optional practical expedients).

IFRS 16 replaces exigf leases guidance including IAS 17, IFRIC-25%k@ SI€27.The Group does not plan to adopt
this standard earlyput will adopt from 1 January 2019.

The following are not yet adopted and are deemed not material to the Group and will be adopted from the effective
date:
iv. IAS 28 Investments in Associates and Joint Ventures, effective 1 January 2018

v. 1AS 40 Investment Property, effective 1 January 2018
vi. Annual Improvements to IFRSs 22016 Cycle-various standards, effective 1 January 2018

f. Basis of consolidation

i. Subsidiaries
Subsidiaries armvesteesontrolled by theCompanyT he Company ‘control s’ an |
has rights to, variable returns from its involvement with the investee and has the ability to affect those returns
through its power over the investeelhe financial statements of the subsidiariage included in the
consolidated finanial statements from the date the control commences until the date control ceasedN@ee
33).
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ii. Structured Entities (“SE”)
AnSEis an entity thathas been designed so that voting or similar rights are not the dominant factor in deciding
who controls the entity, for examplehen any voting rights relate to administrative tasks only, and key activities
are directedby contractual agreement. Structureahtities often have restricted activities and a narrow and well
definedobjective(seeNote 33).

iii. Employee Benefit Trust (“EBT”)
AnEBT or t he pur pose odctsastaragdebtrfar theppurposeeofiie leropjoyee shwmsed
compensatiop| ans. Accordingly, the EBT is included wi!

iv. Loss of control
When the Group loses control over a subsidiary, it derecognises the assets and liabilities of the subsidiary, al
any related non-controlling inerest (NC) and other components of equity. Any resulting gain or loss is
recognised in the income statement.

g. Consolidation of foreign operations

All assets and liabilities of foreign consolidated compaaies other entitieswith a functional currencyther than
Serling are translated using the exchange rates in effect at the balance sheet date.

Income and expenseme translated at the average exchange rate for the period. Translation differanisgsy from
the application of this method are clafed in equity until the disposal of the investment. Average rates of exchange
are used to translate the cash flows of foreign subsidiaries in preparing the consolidated statement of cash flows.

h. Basis of measurement

The financial statements have beerepared on the historil cost basis, excepor AFSnvestment securitiesoreign
exchange forward deatnd profit rate swapsvhichare stated at their fair value. Financial instruments are recognised
on a trade date basis.

All amounts have beerounded to the nearest thousandeept when otherwise indicated.

i. Functional and presentation currency

The financial statements are presented in Sterling, which istaés@ o mp afangtioral currency.
j. Foreign currency

Transactions in foreign currencies are translated to the functional currenitye @&xchange rateuling at the date of
each transaction. Monetary assets and liabilitieenominated in foreign curremes at the reporting date are
translated to the functional currency at the exchange matkng at that date. Foreignurrency differences arising on
translation are recognised the income statement

Norrmonetary assetsrad liabilities which are measured at histodbcost,are translated into the functional currency
at the effective historical rate used on the date of initial recognition. Foreign exchange femooetary items
measured at fair value is determined at thpot rate at the time the fair value is determined. The associated foreign
exchange differencefor nonmonetary assets and liabilitiego to other comprehensive incomer the income
statement depending wherghe underlying fair value movement of assetliability was recognised initially.
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k. Revenue recognition

i. Murabaha, Wakala, Mudaraba, Sukuk, ljara, Istisna and Participation Agreement income and expense

Profitrate incomeis ecogni sed in the income statement through
profit share’ basi s. The *‘effective profit share r
payments and receipts through the agreed paymierm of the contract to the carrying amount of the financial asset

or liability. When calculating the effective profit rate, BLME estimates future cash flows considering all contractua
terms of the financial instrument, but not future credit losses.

The Group has an availabler-sale Sukuk portfolio. Any fair value gain or loss is accounted for in the statement of
comprehensive income.

ii. Fees and commission

Fees and commissiavhichare not recognised on an effectipeofit rate basis over the life of the financial instruments

to which they relate, such as fees for negotiating transactions for third parties, underwriting fees and commission, an
non-discretionary asset management fees are recognised in revenue when it is prababtee economic benefit

will flow to the Group This will normally bat the pointwhenthe activity to which the fees and commission relate
has been completed.

iii. Financial assets and financial liabilities

The Group classifies its financial asts intre f ol | owi ng categori es: ‘‘dduvee ffrr
customereancing arrangements’ ; and ' tanbedtlsetfiraaciatassste c u
at fair value through profiandloss availablefor-saleor held to maturityfinancial assetdMlanagement determines

the classification of financial assets and liabilities at initial recognition.

Financial assets are designated upon initial recognition as fair value through profit and floedjnancial asst is
managed and its performanavaluation in a fair value basis.

iv. Due from financial institutions and customers and financing arrangements

Due from financial institutionand customersand fnancing arrangements are naferivative financial assets thi

fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in an active market and which are not classified as af@Hable
sale.These assetare initially recognised at fair value including direct and incremental transaction ddsise are
subsequently mesured at amortised cost using the effective profit share basis and any impairment losses are
deducted.

V. Investment securities

9 Financial instruments at fair value through profit or loss

Financial assets are classified in this categottyey are held for trading, or if they are designated by management
under the fair value optionFinancial assets are designated at fair value through profit or loss Gtbepmanages
such investments and makes purchase and sale decisions basedion thef ai r val ue i n acco
documented risk management or investment strategy.

9 Available-for-sale

Availablefor-sale ( “ A Fagséty areeither debt or equitynon-derivative financial assets that are designated as
availablefor-sale.The assets are intended to be held for an indefinite period of time, but may be sold in response to
liquidity requirements or changes in profit rates, exchange rates or equity pfiibey. are initially recognised at fair
value includig direct and incremental transaction costs. They ardsequently held at fair value. Gains and losses
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arising from changes ithe fair valueof AFS financial assets, other than foreign exchange gains and losses from
monetary items,are recognised direcyl within a separate component oéquity, until the financial assets are
derecognisedat which timethe cumulative gain or losgreviously recognised within equifg transferred to the
income statementFor debt instrumentsncome isdetermined using the effectivprofit share rateand recognised in

the income statementDi vi dends on equity instruments are recog
right to receive payment is established.

9 Held to maturity

Held to maturity asets are initially measured at fair value plus any directly attributable transaction costs. Subsequen
to initial recognitionthey are measured at amortisembstless impairment losses

vi. Offsetting financial assets and financial liabilities

Financiabssets and liabilities are offset and the net amount reported in the statement of fingrosaion wherthere
is a legally enforceable right to offset the recognised amounts and thereirgemion to settle on a net basis, or
realise the asset and g the liability simultaneously.

vii. Derecognition of financial assets

Financial assets are derecognised when the rights to receive cash flows from the assetgfieacte or where the
Group has transferred its contractual right to receive the cash flowlsedinancial assets and either:

- substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership have been transferred; or
- substantially all the risks and rewards have neither been retained nor transferred but control is not retained.

Financial liabilities are decognised when they are extinguished, i.e. when the obligatiaiisisharged or cancelled
or expires.

viii. Impairment of financial assets and forbearance

The Group assesses at each balance sheet date whether there is objective evidence that a isaeti@portfolio

of financial assets is impaired. A financial asset or a portfolio of financial assepaited and impairment lossese
incurred if, and only if, there is objective evidencemgpairment as a result of one or more events that occurred after
the initial recognition oftheass¢ta ‘| oss event’) and that | oss event (
cash flows othe financial asset or portfolio of financial assets that can be reliably estimated.

Objective evidence that a finaial asset or portfolio of assets is impaired includes observable dat@dnats to the
attention of the Group about the following loss events:

¢ significant financial difficulty of the issuer or obligor

e a breach of contract, such as default or delinquemprofit or principal payments

e the Group granting to thelient, for economic or legal reasons relating to thd i dimancial gifficulty, a
concession that théinancierwould not otherwise consider

e it becoming probable that thelientwill enter bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation

e the disappearance of an active market for that financial asset because of financial difficulties

e observable data indicating that there is a measurable decrease in the estimated fitsheflowsfrom a
portfolio of financial assets since the initial recognition of those assets, althougtiettrease cannot yet be
identified with the individual financial assets in the portfolio, including:

- adverse changes in the payment statusldntsin the potfolio; or
- national or local economic conditions that correlate with defaults on the assets in the portfolio.
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The Group first assesses whether objective evidence of impairfoefihancial assets that are individually significant,
and collectivelywhere they are not If the Group determines that no objective evidencerapairment exists for an
individually assessed financial asset, whether significant or nioilitdes the asset in a portfolio of financial assets
with similar credit risk characteriss and collectively assesses them for impairment. Assets that are individually
assessed for impairment and for which an impairment lossrigontinues to berecognised are not included in a
collectiveassessment of impairment.

In assessing collectivenpairment, the Group uses historical information on the timing of recoveries, the amount of
loss incurred and an estimated emergence peribige emergence period is assessed using historical information as a
proxy together withan assessment of current facs that may affect our customers. The emergence period used also
considers the maturity profiles of each financial asset within the collective impairment portf¢inagement also
estimates a probability of default and loss given default across the business divisions using external ratings compan
and data. Note 3aprovidesfurther information on the areas of estimation uncertainty inherent in calculating a
collecive impairment charge.

The Group writes off a facilitgr an investment security, either partially or in full, and any related allowance for
impairment losses, whemanagement (including the relevaBbardCommitteesgetermines that there is no realistic
prospect of recovery.

I Forbearance

If the terms of a financial asset are renegotiated or modified or an existing financial assgaised with a new one

due to financial difficulties of theustomer, then an assessment is madé whether the financiabsset should be
derecognised. If the cash flows of the renegotiated aasetsubstantially different, then the contractual rights to cash
flows from the original financial asseire deemed to have expired. In this case, the original financial asset is
derecognised and the nevinancial asset is recognised at fair value. The impairment loss before an expected
restructuring ismeasured as follows.

- if the expected restructuring will not result in derecognition of the existing asset, thergtimated cash
flows arising from the modified financial asset are included in the measureofiéim existing asset based on
their expected timing and amounts discounted at the origiekiective profit rate of the existing financial
asset; or

- if the expected restructurig will result in derecognition of the existing asset, then the expefdaedsalue of
the new asset is treated as the final cash flow from the existing financial assettah#ef its derecognition.
This amount is discounted from the expected date afedegnition tothe reporting date using the original
effectiveprofit rate of the existing financial asset.

Further disclosures on forbearance can be foungages 103 to 104 in Note 36
I Assets carried at amortised cost

If there is objective evidence that an impairment losseaposuresandreceivablesasbeen incurred, the amount of

the loss is measured as thdference between the s s eatrying amount and the present value of estimated future
cashflows (excludinguture credit losses that have not been incurred) discounted at the finaacgls et * s o1
effective profit rate. The carrying amount of the asset is reduced through theofigsen allowance account and the
amount of the loss is recognised in the incostatement. If afacility balancehas a variablgrofit rate, the discount

rate for measuring animpairment loss is the effectiverofit rate as at 31 December 2017

The calculation of the present value of the estimatatiire cash flows of a collateralised financalset reflects the

cash flows that may result from foreclosure less costs for obtaining and s#iéngollateral, whether or not
foreclosure is probable.
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9 Available-for-sale assets

The Group assesses atoh balance sheet date whether there is objective evidence that a finassat or a portfolio

of financial assets is impaired. In the case of equity investments classitieditblefor-sale( “ A FaSignjficant or
prolonged declinetypicallygreater than 20%r overnine months,in the fair value of the security below its cast
consideredevidence of impairmentlf any such evidence exists fAFSequity instruments the cumulative loss,
measured as the difference between thequisition cat and the current fair value, less any impairment losshat
equity instrumentpreviouslyrecognised in profit or loss, is removed from equity and recognised in the income
statement. Impairment losses recognised in the income statement on equity instrisvare notreversed thiough

the income statement.

In the case oAFS debt instruments, impairment is assessed against the impairment indicators discussed in detail
pageb58. If there is objective evidence that an impairment loss has occurred, the cumulative loss, measured as th
difference between the assatamortisedcost and current fair value, less any impairmiersis on thedebt instrument
previouslyrecognisedn the incone statement, is removed from equity amdcognisedn the income statementf,

in a subsequent period, the fair value of a déhstrument classified ag\FSincreases and the increase can be
objectively related tcan event occurring after the impairmerads was reognised in profit or loss, thiempairment

lossis reversed through the income statemeiitierewere no reversalim 2017 (2016: one)

ix. Financial liabilities

Financial liabilitieshat create an obligatioinclude funds received from financial institutions and customers. These
are initially measured at fair vallessthe transaction costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition of the
financial liability. All financial liabilities are subsequemntiyasured at amortised cost using the effective profit share
rate payable to the deposit holders. Financial liabilities are derecognised only when the obligations specified in th
contract are discharged, cancelled or expired.

X. Determining fair value

If an asset or a liability measured at fair value has a bid price and an ask price, then the Group measures assets :
long positions at a bid price and liabilities at an ask pi¢here no active market exists for the particular asset or
liability, the Groupuses aother valuation technigue to arrive at the fair value, including the use of prices obtained in
recent armslength transactions, discounted cash flow analysis and other valuation techniques commonly used b
marketparticipants(seeNote 3b).

xi. Derivatives and hedge accounting

Derivatives are recognised initially, and are subsequentiyeasured, at fair value. Fair values of ctle-counter
derivatives profit rate swapsandforeign exchangeorward deal9g are obtained using valuation technigg} including
discounted cash flow models.

Derivatives are classified as assets when their fair value is positive or as liabilities when their fair value is negati
Derivative assets and liabilities arising from different transactions are only ofteettifansactions are with the same
counterparty, a legal right of offset exists and the parties intend to settle the cash flows on a net basis.

The method of recognising fair value gains and losses depends on whether derivatives are held for tradéng or a
designated as hedging instrumengd, if the latter, the nature of the risks being hedged. When derivatives are
designated as hedges, BLME classifies them as either: (i) hedges of the change in fair value of recognised asse
liabilities or firm cormi t m efairtvaue iedges; or (i) hedges of the variability in highly probable future cash flows
attributable to a recognised assetorliabily , or a f or eshdlavthedgep ldedge accounting s applied

to derivatives designated d®dging instruments in a fair valireedge orcash flowhedgeprovided certain criteria are

met.
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 Hedge accounting

At the inception of a hedginggansaction the Groupdocuments the relationship between the hedging instruments
and the hedged itemgswell asits risk management objective and its strategy for undertaking the hetlge Group
policyalso requires a documented assessmdmith at the hedge inception and on an-going basis, of whether or
not the hedging instruments, primarily profit ragavaps that are used in hedging transactions are highly effective in
offsetting the changes attributable to the hedged risks in the fair values or cash flows of the hedgedriadfastive
changes in pofit share on designated qualifying hedgese included in‘Other operatingincome /e x p e mas e s
applicable.

Fair value hedge

Changes in the fair value of derivatives that are designated and qualify as fair value hedging instruments are record
in the incomestatement along with changes in the faialue of the hedged assets, liabilities or group thereof that are
attributable to the hedged riskAny gain or loss in fair value relating to the hedged iterd instruments recognised

in “Net fair value gains / | osses on investment sec

If the hedging relationship no longer meets the criteria for hedge accounting, the cumukdjustment to the
carrying amount of a hedged item for which the effectj#eld method is usedis amortised to the income statement
over the residual period to matusit

1 Hedge effectiveness testing

To qualify for hedge accountinigdS39 requires that at the inception of the hedge and throughout its life, each hedge
must be expected to be highly effective (prospective effectiveness), and demonstrate aftaativeness
(retrospective effectiveness) on an-going basisBLMEassessethis at inception(prospective effectivenesgnd on

a monthly basiqretrospective effectiveness)rhe documentation of each hedging relationship sets out how the
effectivenes of the hedge is assessed.

For prospective effectiveness, the hedging instrument must be expected to be highly effe@orgdningoffsetting
changes in fair value or cash flows attributable to the hedged risk during the period for which the hdesgjgmsted.

For actual effectiveness to be achieved, the changes in fair value or cash flows must offset each other in the range
80 per centto 125per cent, for the hedge to be deemed effective.

9 Sharia’a compliant derivatives (hereafter described as profit rate swaps, “PRSs”) that do not qualify for
hedge accounting

All gains and losses from changes in the fair valuédR8that do not qualify for hedge accounting are recognised
immediately in the income statement. These gains and losses are repart®ther operding income/ expensesas
applicable

I. Collateral and netting

TheGroupenters into master agreements with counterparties whenever possiblecttains collateraln respect of
customeradvancesvhereit is considered appropriatd-inancial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount
reported in the balance sheet if, and only if, there is a legally enforceable right to set off the recognised amounts an
there is an intention to settle on a net basis, or to realise aetlle anasset and a liability simultaneousMaster
agreements provide that, if an event of default occurs, all outstanding transactions with the counterparty will fall due
and all amounts outstanding will be settled on a net basis.
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m. Property and equipment

i. Recognition and measurement

Items of property and equipment are measured at cost less accumulated depreciatiompaniment losses. Cost
includes expenditures that are directly attributable to the acquisition of the asset.

ii. Depreciation

Property and equipment ardepreciateddown to their estimated residual value. Depreciation is recognised in the
income statement on atraightline basis over the estimated useful life of each part of the an item of property and
equipment. Assets leasedibunder operating leases are depreciated over the shorter of the lease term and their
useful lives.

Useful Lives:

1 Computer equipment 3 years
Fixtures and fittings-4 years
Office equipment- 3 years
Motor vehicles-4 years
Leasehold improvements4 years

= =4 =4 =

Depreciation methods, useful lives and residual values are reassessadhaeporting date.

n. Intangible assets

Intangible assets consist of computer licea and software development costs. Intangible assets acquired by the
Groupare stated at ost less accumulated amortisation and accumulated impairment losses, if any.

Subsequent expenditure on software assets is capitalised only when it increases the future economic benefi
embodied in the specific asset to which it relates. All othgrenditure is expensed as incurred.

Amortisation is recognised in thecome statementon a straight line basis over the estimated useful life of the
software and computer licases, from the date thathey areavailable for use. The estimated usefid liff software
and computer licecesis three years.

o. Impairment of property and equipment, intangible assets and assets leased out under operating leases

At each balance sheet date, or more frequently where eventshanges in circumstances dictatproperty,
equipment and intangible assets are assessed for indications of impairth@mdications are present, these assets
are subject to an impairment reviewAn impairment loss is recognised if the carrying amount of an asset exceeds its
recoverabé amount. Impairment losses are recognised in the income statement.

The impairment review comprises a comparison of the carrying amount of et asth its recoverable amount,
which is taken athe higher of value in use or fair value less cost ta S&lue in use is calculated by discounting the
expected future cash flows obtainable as a result of the assets continued use, including those resulting from i
ultimate disposal, at a markdiased discount rate on a ptax basis.

p. Operating leases

i. Lessor

Assets leased to customers under agreemewtisich do not transfer substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership are classifie@s operating lease assets the balance sheeDepreciation igakenon the depreciable
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amount of these assets onstraight line basis over theestimated useful livesThe depreciable amount is the
cost of the asset less the estimated residual valuiease income is recognised on a straight line basis over the
period of the lease unless another systematic basis is more appropriate.

ii. Lessee

Operating lease rentals payaldg the Banlkare recognised as an expense in the income statement on a straight
line basis over the lease term unless another systematic basis is more approphiatenerous lease provision is
recognised in the income statement in the year it arises.

Residual value exposure occurs in the leasing portfolio due to the uncertain mdtilne value of the underlying asset

at the end of the lease. Throughout the life of an asset, its residual value will fluctuate due to changes in asset usag
uncertainty of the future market for that asset and general economic conditions. Residuak \aeieset at the
commencement of the | ease based upon management's e
lease, these values are monitored and compared to past history and future projections.

g. Finance leases

Assets leased toustomers under agreements which transfer substantially all the risks and rewards associated witt
ownership, other than legal title, are classified as finance leases. Finance charges receivable are recognised on
balance sheet and income is recognise@r the period of the lease so as to give a constant rate of return on the net
cash investment in the lease, taking into account all receipts associated with the lease.

r. Employee benefits

TheGroupoperates a defined contribution pension scheme for affsiA defined contibution plan is a pension plan
under which the Group pays fixetbntributions into a separate entity, and where the Group has no legal or
constructive obligationso pay further contributions if the fund does not hold sufficient asgetpay all employees
the benefits relating to employee service in the current and prior peridts. Group pays contributions to Standard
Life. The Group has no further payment obligations once the contributiave been paid. The contributions are
recognised aan employee benefit expense when they are digepaid contributions are recognised as an asset to
the extent that a cash refund or a reductiontire future payments is available.

Shortterm employee lenefits such as salaries, paid absena@asd other benefits are accounted for on an accruals
basis over the period for which employees have provided services. Bonuses are recognised to the extent that tl
Grouphas a present obligation to its employeestican be measured reliably.

s. Share-based payments

The Groupoperatesequity-settled sharebased incentive schemder employees. The cost ofequity-settled share

based payment arrangemenis measured by reference to the fair value of equity instrumentshendate they are
granted, and recognised as an expense on a straight line basis over the vesting péeedar value of equity
instruments that are made available immediately, with no vesting period attached to the award, are expensec
immediately.

Fair value is determined by using appropriate valuation models, taking into account the terms and conditions upon
which the equity instruments were granted. Market performance conditions are reflected as an adjustment to the fair
value of equity instrumerst at the date of grant, so that an award is treated as vesting irrespective of whether the
market performance condition is satisfied, provided all other conditions are satisfied.

Vesting conditions, other than market performance conditions, are not facdtinto the initial estimate of the fair
value at the grant date. They are taken into account by adjusting the number of equity instruments included in the
measurement of the transaction, so that the amount recognised for services received as considienatie equity
instruments granted shall be based on the number of equity instruments that eventually vest. On a cumulative basi
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no expense is recognised for equity instruments that do not vest because of a failure to satisfiyariat
performance orservice conditions.

Where an award has been modified, as a minimum, the expense of the original award continues to be recognised
if it had not been modified. Where the effect of a modification is to increase the fair value of an award or increase the
number of equity instruments, the incremental fair value of the award or incremental fair value of the extra equity
instruments is recognised in addition to the expense of the original giidm incremental fair value is calculated by
comparing the fair alue of the modified grant with the fair value of the original grahthe modificationdate. The
incremental fair value of the modified grant is recognised overémaining vesting period.

t. Own shares

Own shares are held by the E&Td comprise own sares that have not vested unconditionally to employees of the
Group. Own shares are recorded at cost and are deducted famupretained earnings.

u. Provisions

A provision is recognised if, as a result of a past eventGitoeiphas a present legal @onstructive obligation that

can be estimated reliably, and it is probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be required to settle the
obligation. Provisions are determined by discounting the expected future cash flows attaxpage that reflets
current market assessments of cost of funds and, where appropriate, the risks specific to the liability.

v. Income tax

Income tax expense comprises current and deferred tais recognised in profit or loss except to the extent that it
relates to items recognised directly in equity oiQther comprehensive income

Current tax is the expected tax payable on the taxable income for the period, using tax rates enactedantisehst
enacted at the balance sheet date, and any adjustment to tax payable in respect of previous years.

Deferred tax is provided using the balance sheet method, providing for temporary differences between the carryin
amounts of assets and liabilitiézr financial reporting purposes and the amdsinised for taxation purposeBeferred

tax is measured at the tax rates that are expected to be applied to the temporary differences when they reverse, base
on laws that have been enacted or substantivelaerd by the reporting date.

A deferred tax asset is recognised only to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profits will be available
against which the asset can be utilised. Deferred tax assets are reviewed at each reporting dateraddcae to
the extent that it is no longer probable that the related tax benefit will be realised.

w. Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalemismprise demand depositsith banksheld in nonprofit rate earning accounts.

x. Other receivables

Trade and other receivables are stated at their nominal amount less impairment losses.

y. Segmental information

Segment results that aecutive Canmittadibemglthetcluef dpéraging @acisian pnaksr) E

include items that are directly aitbutable to a segment as well as those that can be allocated on a reasonable basis.
Unallocated items comprise mainly head offared back officexpensesandother assets
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z. Earnings per share

The Group presents basic and diluted earnings per sh&$8)(8ata for its ordinary shares. Basic EPS is calculated by
dividing the profit or loss that is attributable to ordinaBhareholders of the Company by the weightaderage
number of ordinary shares outstanding during the peradter excluding shares reeby the Employee Benefit Trust
(EBT) at the balance sheet daiiluted EP calculated by adjusting the profit or loss that is attributable to ordinary
Shareholders and the weightedverage number of ordinary shares outstanding for the effects dfilative potential
ordinary shares, which comprise share options granted to employees.

aa. Investment in subsidiary undertaking

The investment in subsidiary undertaking in the Compmfipancial statements statedat the IFRS net asset value
of the Bankat the effective date of the BLME Scheme of Arrangem@itich becomes the effective cost of
investment)less impairmentThe nvestment in subsidiary undertakingjassessed for impairment where there is an
indication of impairment. Where impairment exgstthe carrying amount of the asset is reduced to its recoverable
amount and the impairment loss recognised in thempany onlyncomestatement Where the recoverable amount

is an excess of the carrying amount, the reversal of previous impairimegtogiised in theCompany onlyncome
statement The reversal is limited to the previous impairment recognised.

bb. Business combinations

The Group accounts for business combinations using the acquisition method when control is transferred to the Grou
The consideration transferred in the acquisition is generally measured at fair value, as are the identifiable net asse
acquired.

3. USE OF CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND JUDGEMENTS IN APPLYING ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY

a. Allowance for credit losses

Assets accounted for at amortised cost are evaluaeohthly for impairment on a basidescribed irNote 2k (viii). In
determining whether an impairment loss should be recorded in thermestatement, the Group makes judgements
asto whether there is any observable data indicating that there is a measurable decrease in the estimated future cas
flows from individual financing arrangements This evidence may include observable data
indicating that there has been an adverse changehi@ payment status ofcounterpartiesin a portfolio, or
national or local economic conditions that correlate with defaults on assets in the porifbispecific counterparty
component of the total allowancdor impairment applies to claims evaluateddividually and is based upon
management’'s best estimate of the present value of
these cash flows, management makes judgements alkoatc h ¢ o u rfihaacialpsduatiprnyandsthe realisable
value of any underlying collateral. Each impaired asset is assessed on its merits, pneste value oestimated
cash flows considered recoverable is approved byGbanterpartyCredit Risk Committee.

Collectively assessed impairment allowances covedit losses inherent in portfolios @démswith similarcredit risk
characteristics when there is objective evidence to suggest that they contain impaired claims, but the individua
impaired items cannot yet be identified. In assessing the needdllective loss allowances,anagement considers
factors such as credit qualitpprtfolio size, concentrationand economic factors. In order to estimate the required
allowance assumptions are made to define the way inherent losses are modelled andeiordee the required input
parametersset out in Note2k (viii), basedon historical experience and current economic conditions.

The Group considers it¢easing real estate, trade finance and corporate & structured finapoetfolios to be
individually significant.
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b. Determining fair values

TheGroup's accounting policy on fair value measuremdsts accordance withFRS 13 Fair Value Measuremand
is discussed in Not&s6.

The Group measures fair values usingftilwing fair value hierarchy that reflects the significaacel observability
of inputs used in making the measurements.

Level 1:Valuation is based uporugted market price in an active market for an identical instrum@ihtis category
comprisesforeign exchangeforward dealsheld at fair value through profit and lossnd Sukukheld at fair value
designated as availabler-sale

Level 2: Valuation techniquese primarilybased on observable inputs, either directly (i.e. as prices) or indirget!
derivedfrom prices).Valuation techniques are also based on unobservable inputs if they do not have a significan
impact on the fair value measurement in its entiretis category comprisgsofit rate swaps, which arealued using
reference toobservablanarketdata such as yieldurves andinvestments irtharid eompliant funds

Level 3: Valuationtechniques using significant unobservable inputkis category comprises unlistedquity
investments valued by reference to third party valuations.

Forfinancial instruments that trade infrequently and have little price transparency, fair value is less objective anc
requires varying degrees of judgement depending on liquidity, comaganh, uncertainty of market factors, pricing
assumptions and other risks affecting the specific instrument.

Fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities that are traded in active markets are bagexteshmarket
prices or dealer price aquations. For all other financial instruments the Group determifes values usingther
valuation techniques.

Valuation techniques include net present value and discountesh flowmodels, comparison to similamstruments

for which market observable prices exist, BEstholes angholynomial option pricing models amather valuation
models. Assumptions and inputs used in valuation techniques incigkldreeand benchmarlprofit rates, credit
spreads and othepremia used in estimating discount rates, bomtces and foreign currency exchange rates. The
objective of valuation technigues is to arrive at a fa@ilue determination that reflectihe pricethat would be received

to sell an asset or paid to transfatiability in an orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement
date.

The Group uses widely recognised valuation models in determining the fair value of common arsirnpbedinancial
instruments such as profit rate swapthat use only observable markelata and require little management judgement
and estimation.Observable prices and model inputs arsually available in the market for listed debt and equity
securities andimple over the counter derivatives suchmsfit rate svaps.Availability of observable market prices
and model inputs reduces the need for management judgement and estimation and also reduceséntinty
associated with determination of fair values. Availability of observable market pricespuis vares depending on
the products and markets and is prone to changes based on specific evengemgichl conditions in the financial
markets.

c. Effective profit rate adjustments

IAS 39 requires financial instruments to be recognised at the effective profit rate of the asset, which is considered t
be the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash flows through the expected life of the instrument. As the
timing of certain cah flows is uncertain, judgement has been applied in estimating all contractual cash flows (profit
rate income and fees).
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d. Consolidation assessments

The Group consolidates subsidiaries and structured entities when management considers the Group to have pow
and control over the investee. Judgement has been applied in determining whether control has been established k
considering if th&Qompany is expsed to, or has rights to, variable returns from its involvement with the investee and
has the ability to affect those returns through its power over the investee.

e. Impairment of subsidiary

The past poor financial performanceof the Bankprovided an indiator of impairmentin 2016 consequently
management tested the Company’ s ini26lv Hraldr FAS 36t an investnsent S |
impaired if the cost of investment is greater than the recoverable amolihe recoverable amount has been
cal cul ated based o detetmined byBdiscolntinguture eabhifl@evs based endivgear budgets,
adjusted for norcash items such as shapased payments and depreciatiofipre-tax discount rate 0£14.9%(2016:
12%)and a terminal growth rate of.5% (20162.2%) from 2022 were used in the calculation. The discount rate has
been estimated usingfave-yearrisk-free rate plus adjustments for variations in the amounts and timings of cash flows
and uncertanty inherent in the asset. The terminal growth rate is based on a weighted average of a strong, moderate
and weak growth rate environmenEor sensitivity analysis, refer mmte 19.

f. Business combinations

The Group accounts for business combinatiosisg the acquisition method when control is transferred to the Group.
The consideration transferred in the acquisition is generally measured at fair value, as are the identifiable net asse
acquired.

4. SEGMENTAL INFORMATION

The Group has three operatinggments as describeid group strategic report on page &hich are based on the
Group’'s strategic business divisions. The strategi
managed separately based oernatrdpatingstructurg.” s management

I nformation regarding the results of the Group’s th
Performance is measured based on net segment contribution as included in the internally generated managemel
information of the Group utilised by the Executive Committee. Segment contribution is stated after charging (ol
crediting) funding costs between the segments in respect of the segment assets or liabilities which either require c
generate funding. There are other significant transactions between segments.

The following summary describes the opduingtheyears of e
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For the year ended 31 December 2017

Treasury Commercial Wealth Unallocated Total
Division Finance Management items
£000 £000 £000 £000 £000
Net margin from financing and 459 12,828 12,137 - 25,424
investing activities
Operating lease income 857 5,586 - - 6,443
Net fee income 37 1,057 321 - 1,415
Net fair value losses on investme (2,330) - - - (2,330)
Other operating income 1,745 5,135 17 - 6,897
Total operating income 768 24,606 12,475 - 37,849
Directly attributable segment
Y 9 (1,832) (4,687) (2,295) ; (8,814)
expenses
Operating lease depreciation - (4,858) - - (4,858)
Net impairment credit/(charge)
on financial assets and operatin 1 3,466 (72) ) 3,305
Net segment contribution (1,053) 18,527 10,008 - 27,482
mmon ts not directl
Co' on costs not directly (21,674)
attributable to segments
Net operating profit before tax 5,808
Reportable segment assets 240,701 533,024 249,771 4,038 1,027,534
The Treasurpivisionmanages theGroug s | i qui d.iTmeGrowwsss al iwahboillei t i es ar e

segment within the internally generated management information.
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For the year ended 31 December 2016

Treasury Commercial Wealth Unallocated Total
Division Finance* Management* items
£000 £000 £000 £000 £000
Net margin from financing and 682 32,140 2,643 ; 35,465
investing activities
Operating lease income 881 7,822 - - 8,703
Net fee income 381 1,766 20 - 2,167
Net fair value losses on investme (3,361) - 244 - (3,117)
Net fair value gamg on i i (40) i (40)
investment properties
Other operating income 977 1,133 1,572 - 3,682
Total operating income (440) 42,861 4,439 - 46,860
Di I i I
irectly attributable segment (2.144) (9.594) (4.937) i (16,675)
expenses
Operating lease depreciation - (6,366) - - (6,366)
Net impairment credit/ (charge)
on financial assets and operatir 608 (15,868) (583) - (15,843)
leases
Change in third party interest in
consolidated funds (295) 250 (45)
Loss on disposal of group company - (1,720) - - (1,720)
Net segment contribution (1,976) 9,018 (831) - 6,211
Common costs not directly
attributable to segments (25,095)
Net operating loss before tax ___(18,884)
Reportable segment assets 290,779 710,824 26,219 4,531 1,032,353

*During the year ended 31 December 2017, the Real Estate business moved from the Commercial Finance divisiol
the Wealth Management division and therefore the comparatives have be@nesentedto reflect the move.

Entity wide disclosures

Geographical analysis of non-current assets

31 December 31 December

2017 2016

£000 £000
United Arab Emirates 32 155
Luxembourg 32 253
United Kingdom 38,865 32,546
USA 958 2,850
Others - 49

Total 39,887 35,853

Non-current assets include operating lease assets, investment priggeproperty and equipment, intangible assgts
goodwilland other assets.
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5. INCOME FROM FINANCING AND INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Income from:

Due from financial institutions:
Murabaha income

Wakala income

Finance lease receivables:
Finance lease income
Hire Purchase income
Istisna and ljara income

Financing arrangements:
Mudaraba income
Murabaha income
Musharaka income
Wakala income

Investment securities:
Sukuk income

6. RETURNS TO FINANCIAL INSTITUTIONS AND CUSTOMERS

Customer deposits
Murabaha
Wakala

7. NET FAIR VALUE LOSSES ON INVESTMENTS

Net realised losses on investments
Net unrealised losses on investments
Realised gain/(loss) on hedge

2017 2016
£000 £000
386 195
330 207
4,750 7,350
4,762 7,953
184 140
22
27,578 35,110
19 46
285 -
3,414 3,972
41,708 54,995
2017 2016
£000 £000
5,288 6,501
9,604 11,431
1,392 1,598
16,284 19,530
2017 2016
£000 £000
(29) (610)
(1,880) (202)
(421) (2,305)
(2,330) (3,117)
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8. OTHER OPERATING INCOME

2017 2016
£000 £000
Gain on foreign exchange transactions 1,745 756
Gain on leased asset sales 1,805 1,135
Rental income from investment properties - 1,540
Other 3,347 251
6,897 3,682

In the other income line above, £3.3m relates to a receipt from an insurelagain respect of an earlier year.

9. PROFIT RATE SWAPS

The GroupusesShari a’ a compl i ant der i vfarthedgirg purposes irothieimanagemente
of its own asset and liability portfolios. This enalitees Bankto mitigate the marlet riskassociated with rericingits
assets and liabilities.

The accounting treatment of hedge transactions varies according to the nature of the instrument hedged and the typ
of hedge transaction®RSsnay qualify as hedges for accounting purposéldy are fair value hedges cash flow
hedgeslf they do not qualify as hedges, they are classified FVTPL and the Mark to Market movement is recognised
the profit and lossThe Goup had one PRS as at 31 Deceni#tie7, whichs not used for hedgingysposes and is fair
valued through profit and los§hese are described under the relevant headings below:

All PRSs are owiie-counter derivatives, none of which are settled through a central counterparty. There are no
collateral arrangements.

Notionalcontract amounts oPRS$eld for hedging purposes by product type

Group
2017 2017 2017 2017
FVTPL FVTPL Fair value Fair value
hedges hedges
$000 £000 $000 £000
Profit rate swaps - USD 10,000 75,000
Profit rate swaps - GBP 20,000
10,000 - 75,000 20,000
Group
2016 2016 2016 2016
FVTPL FVTPL Fair value Fair value
hedges hedges
$S000 £000 $000 £000
Profit rate swaps - USD 10,000 75,000
Profit rate swaps - GBP 20,000
10,000 - 75,000 20,000




With regardto PRSsthe notional contract amounts of these instruments indicate the nominal value of transactions
outstandingat the balance sheet date; they do not represent amounts at risk.

Fair value hedges

BLME’' s f air v al|PRSthatrare dsgdacsprotea againstshangesfin the fair value of fixed rate financial
instruments due to movements in market ratesid to accommodate theGroug s r i sk ma n.aFgre me
effectivefair value hedges, all changes in the fair value ofRRSaNd in the fair value of the item in relation to the
risk being hedged are recognised in the income statement.

Fair value of PRSs designated as fair value hedges:

Group 2017 2017 2016 2016
Fair value Fair value Fair value Fair value

assets liabilities assets liabilities

£000 £000 £000 £000

Profit rate swaps - 638 - 1,254

Movement in the fair value of PRSs used for fair value hedging:

Group 2017 2016
£000 £000
Net profit rate swap liability as at 1 January (1,254) (1,200)
Gains / (losses):
Exchange translation 30 (79)
On hedging instruments through the income statement 80 141
On effective hedges 506 (216)
Net profit rate swap liability as at 31 December (638) (1,254)
Unhedged Profit Rate Swap Asset/(Liability) recognis: 2 (51)

as Fair Value through Profit and Loss:

(636) (1,305)

The gains and losses on ineffective portions of fair value hedges are recognised immediately* Ot her 0|
income /| expense”. During the year to 31 December
due to hedge ineffectiveness

10. PERSONNEL EXPENSES

2017 2016

£000 £000

Wages and salaries 12,040 11,138
Social security costs 1,695 1,194
Defined contribution pension scheme costs 1,061 1,082
Recruitment costs 398 951
Other staff costs 453 1,100
15,647 15,465
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Shari a’ s Sup e recognsad unger Bes@nnetiexpgereses fias been reclassified to other operating

expense in the comparative to reflect the appropriate nature of the expamskto be consistent with the treatment
in 2017

Thefollowing table summarises theumber of employes within the Group

2017 2016

Number Number

Period end 117 123
Average for the period - management 10 8
Average for the period - non-management 109 118

11. DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS

2017 2016

£000 £000
Di rectors’ emol ument s 1,962 1,123
Pension contributions 65 10
2,027 1,133

The aggregateemoluments of the highest pai@irector was £0.8 million (2016: £0.3 million), and pension
contributions of £.06 million (2016: £0.01) were made on his behalDuring2016 compensation for loss of office
amounting to £.1 million was expensedh relation to aDirector who resigned during #t year. During the yearpne
Director exercised share optiorad this is disclosed in more detainote 35.(2016: none).

12. OTHER OPERATING EXPENSES

2017 2016

£000 £000

Advertising and market development 90 236
Board and SSB related expenses 408 671
Communications and IT costs 1,783 1,852
Consultancy 1,673 2,627
Legal and professional fees 3,994 8,731
Other operating charges 3,635 7,170
Rent and other occupancy costs 1,741 3,496
13,324 24,783

Included within other operating expenses are fees paid to the Group auditors categorised as follows:
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2017 2016

£000 £000
Auditor's remuneration
Audit of financial statements pursuant to the
legislation
- Ernst & Young LLP (Current Auditors) 500 -
- KPMG (Previous Auditors) - 479
Tax Advisory and Compliance Services
- KPMG (Previous Auditors) - 49
Other advisory and assurance services
- Ernst & Young LLP (Current Auditors) 27 15
- KPMG (Previous Auditors) - 48
527 591

EY"s current year inadudesiaoneff feesof £0.06 milion.fod thenaudit of IFBSS,
implementation.

13. SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS
During the year £0.5 millio(2016: £01 million) was chargedo the income statementn respect of sharéased

payment transactionsrisingunder the followingemployee shareschemesn accordance withhe Group s r e wa
structures

2017 2016
Equity settled schemes £000 £000
Approved Share Option Plan ("TASOP") 25 22
Unapproved Share Option Plan ("USOP") 287 136
Executive Share Option Scheme ("ESOP") - 3
Deferred Incentive Plan Scheme ("DIPS") (5)
307 171
Cash settled schemes
Deferred Annual Bonus Scheme ("DABS") 199 (105)
506 66

A corporate reorganisationvas implementedon 2 October2013 by means of aCourtapproved Scheme of
Arrangement under sections 895 to 899tbé UK Companies Aavhereby BLME Holding plc became the new holding
company of the BLME Group.

All existing options under the Bank of London and The Middle East plc share incentiviaptmtsas a result of the
BLMEScheme of Arrangement and replacemeptions were offered by BLME Holdings plc on substantially the same
terms and conditions. The replacement options shall be treated as granted at the same time as the original optior
and the exercise of the replacement options shall be exercisable gatne manner as the existing optioii$e issue

of thesereplacementoptionshas been accounted for under IFRS 2 as a modificationnwithcremental fair value
arisingthat would requireamortisation to the income statement over the remaining vestipgriod.

Calculation of fair values
The &ir values of equity-settled share options, measured at the date of grant of the optiare calculated using

BlackScholes modelhe following tables list the weighted average inputs to the model at the measant dates for
the options granted during 2017 and 2016.
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Options issued in 2017 and 2016

ASOP UsoP ASOP uUsoP

2017 2017 2016 2016

Fair value (cents) * 5.23 5.55 11.98 10.84
Share price (cents) * 40.15 40.66 51.20 48.29
Exercise price (cents) * 50.58 50.25 51.20 50.19
Expected volatility (% p.a.) 19.03 19.01 20.00 20.19
Expected option life (years) 6.80 6.79 6.50 6.78

Expected dividends (% p.a.) Nil Nil Nil Nil
Risk free interest rate (%) 0.72 0.72 1.23 0.99

* The values per share disclosed in the above table are expressed in US Dollars because options were issuec
employees with US Dollar strike prices given that the shares are listsldsgagDubai and traded in US Dollars. This
is based on ordinary shaavhich have a sterling nominal value of Znpe eachThe BlaciScholes fair value of the

options has been translated into sterling using the exchange rate ruling at the date of grant, for the purpose o
amortising the shardased payment expense.

The expected volatility was determined by reference to the historical volatility of the FTSE 350 Banks Index.
Equity-settled schemes

Approved share options (“ASOPs”)

Approved hare optionsaaregrantedto employeesinder theBLME Approved Share OptiBlarf upto a market value

limit of £30,000 to each individual on the date of grartie options may vest after three years and are exercisable up
to the tenth anniversary of the date of grant, after which they lapse.

ASOPs

Weighted Weighted

Number of averatge Number of avera'ge

. excercise . excercise

options ) options )

price price

(pence) (pence)

2017 2017 2016 2016

Outstanding at 1 January 1,627,892 66.1 1,222,865 106.0

Granted in the year 1,832,676 39.2 1,032,867 36.0

Forfeited in the year (597,224) 64.7 (627,840) 92.6

Outstanding at 31 December 2,863,344 49.5 1,627,892 66.1
Exercisable at 31 December 339,493 286,113

The weidhted average remaining contractual life of the ab@dV@OPs outstanding at the balance sheet date 8/as
years R016: 7.9 years). The weighted average exercise pisel®.5ence R016: 66.1pence).

1.6 million of the ASOPs granted in 2017 were issuietda longer vesting profile with 50% vesting after 3 years, 25%
vesting after 4 years and 25% vesting after 5 yd@16: None)

During2010 options were issued in parallel to the then existing approved options that had been granted during 200¢
and 20®. Thesenew “ p a r aptibnsewere granted to stafover the same number of shares #wir existing
approved optionsbut with an exercise pricequivalent to125 penceper 25p ordinaryshareasagainst an exercise
price of 162.5 pence per share fortheir originalapproved optionsTheold and new options operate in parallel,
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meaning thatstaff willbe able to choose which to exercid®hen one option is exercised, the other option will lapse.
Therefore, althouglparticipating stafinow hadtwo approwed options they will only be able to exercise one of them.

Parallel ASOPs

Number of options Number of options

2017 2016

Outstanding at 1 January 52,298 73,832
Granted in the year - -
Forfeited in the year (12,306) (21,534)
Outstanding at 31 December 39,992 52,298
Exercisable at 31 December 39,992 52,298

The weighted average remaining contractual life of the above parallel options outstanding at the balance sheet dat
was 2.2 years (2016: 3.2 years). The weighted aeeexgrcise price is 125 pence (2016: 125 pence). All of these
options were exercisable at the balance sheet date (2016:Tdlb.issue of these approved parallel options in 2010

has been accounted for under IFRS 2 as a modification with the increméntallfse being amortised to the income
statement over the remaining vesting period.

Unapproved share options (“USOPs”)

Unapproved share options are granted under tlet ME Unapproved Share Option Plamemployees who already
have received approved share options ugheir aggregatenarket value limit of £30,000. The options may vest after
three years and are exercisable up to the tenth anniversary of the date of grant, after which they lapse.

USOPs Weighted Weighted

Number of avera.ge Number of ave ra.ge

. excercise ] excercise

options ) options .

price price

(pence) (pence)

2017 2017 2016 2016

Outstanding at 1 January 11,092,251 44.3 4,473,522 57.6

Granted in the year 7,847,324 39.4 9,230,133 39.6

Forfeited in the year (1,287,091) 48.6 (2,611,404) 50.2

Exercised in the year (333,333) Nil - -

Outstanding at 31 December 17,319,151 42.7 11,092,251 44.3
Exercisable at 31 December 795,504 355,536

The weighted average remaining contractual life of the above USOPs outstanding at the balance sheet date was !
years (2016: 9.5 years). The weighted average exercise price is 42.7 pence (2016: 44.3 pence).

7.5 million of the USOPs granted in 2017 were issued with a longer vesting profile with 50% vesting after 3 years, 2°
vesting after 4 years and 25% vesting after 5 years. (2016: 6.9 million).

Executive share option scheme (“ESOPs”)

Share options were firgjranted to senior management under the BLME Unapproved Share Option Plan in 2009. Th
options granted in 2009 and 2010 were split equally into employment options and performance options. Employmen
options vest upon completion of service periods, perfonta options vest on meeting or surpassing targets for
growth in the Net Asset Value of the Group. The ESOP awardsnade in four equal tranchesith different vesting
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periods. The expected option life is dependent on the behaviour of option holders amebrporated into the model
on the basis of best estimate.

ESOPs Number of options Number of options
2017 2016
Outstanding at 1 January 1,832,427 2,288,40¢
Granted in the year - -
Forfeited in the year (1,077,236) (455,982
Outstanding at 31 December 755,191 1,832,427
Exercisable at 31 December 755,191 1,832,427

The weighted average remaining contractual life of the executive share options outstanding at the balance sheet da
was 2.0 years (2016: 2.9 years). The weightexiage exercise price is 162.5 pence (2016: 162.5 pence).

Deferred Incentive Plan Scheme (“DIPs”)

The DIRis a fiveyear plan introduced by the Group in 2015 with participation open to all Group employees. Under
the Plan, employees sacrifice a portion of their salary in exchange for being granted options to acquire shares in BLI
Holdings plc with a maximumarket value limit of £30,000 at grant date. The options are granted under BLME Holding

plc’ s existing ASOP and USOP schemes.

DIPs Number of options Number of options
2017 2016

Outstanding at 1 January 601,549 941,30¢

Granted in the year - -

Forfeited in the year (271,802) (339,757

Outstanding at 31 December 329,747 601,549

Exercisable at 31 December - -

The weighted average remaining contractual life of the above DIPS options outstanding at the badetcate was
7.2 years (2016: 8.2 years). The weighted average exercise price was 45.0 pence (2016: 45.0 pence).

Cashsettled schemes
Deferred annual bonus scheme (“DABs”)

DABs are grantedunder the“BLME Deferred Annual Bon8shemé which wasintroduced to ensure that the long
term interests of certain employeewere alighed with the interests ofShareholders. DABs awardentitle the
employee to receive a matching award at no qustvidingcertain conditionsincluding a performance conditioare
met. Performance conditionare set andmonitored by the Remunerationothmittee. DABS takéhe form of nil cost
optionsbut can be settled in cash at the discretion of ti@mpany.

The DABscheme rules were amended in March 2015 to introduce emm@syavards being subject to forfeiture on

leaving employmentunlessthe Remuneration Committee determines that the staff member concerned is a good
leaver, and for awards to be cash settled at the discretion of the Company.
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DABs Number of nil cost Number of nil cost

options options*

2017 2016

Outstanding at 1 January 1,236,592 1,115,19¢

Awarded and deferred - 1,559, 16(
Awarded under matched award 321,529 -

Forfeited in the year - (931,075

Exercised in the year - (9,230)

Settled in the year (42,600) (497,457,
Outstanding at 31 December 1,515,521 1,236,592
Exercisable at 31 December 181,511 104,923

The weighted average remaining contractual life of the above nil cost options outstanding at the balance sheet dat
was 7.7 year§2016: 8.years).The weighted average exercise price was nil (2016: nil).

*prior period figures of‘awarded and deferredand “total outstanding at 31 Decembehave beenre-presented

using weighted average price.

14. IMPAIRMENTS OF FINANCIAL ASSETS

The table below sets out a reconciliation of changdmipairment provisions against financial assets

Group 2017

Specific Collective Total
Impairments of financial assets: £000 £000 £000
Balance at 1 January 2017 19,018 4,145 23,163
Exchange translation and other movements (549) - (549)

Income statement:

Gross impairment charge for the year 8,247 - 8,247
Amount recovered during the year (10,573) (979) (11,552)
Neti i it)/ch for th

et impairment (credit)/charge for the (2,326) (979) (3,305)
year
Amounts written off during the year (3,322) - (3,322)
Balance as at 31 December 2017 12,821 3,166 15,987
Being impairments against:
Financing arrangements 9,558 1,674 11,232
Finance lease receivables 3,190 1,492 4,682
Other Assets (Inventory) 73 - 73

12,821 3,166 15,987
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Group 2016

Specific Collective Total
Impairments of financial assets: £000 £000 £000
Balance at 1 January 2016 35,741 3,346 39,087
Exchange translation and other movements 1,369 - 1,369
Income statement:
Gross impairment charge for the year 17,421 799 18,22C
Amount recovered during the year (2,377) - (2,377)
Net impairment charge for the year 15,044 799 15,843
Amounts written off during the year (33,136) - (33,136)
Balance as at 31 December 2016 19,018 4,145 23,163
Being impairments against:
Financing arrangements 13,511 1,827 15,338
Finance lease receivables 4,674 2,318 6,992
Operating lease assets 833 - 833
19,018 4,145 23,163

There were nocollective andspecificimpairments against Cash and balances with banks, Due from financial
institutionsand customersinvestment securitiesr Other asset52016:Nil)

Refer toNote 2k (viiiland Note3a for the factors considereih deriving the collective impairment charge for the year.
(2016: Nil)

15. TAXATION
Group 2017 2016
£000 £000
UK Corporation Tax
- current tax for the year 180 40
- adjustments in respect of prior years (105)
75 40
Overseas tax for the year - 22
Deferred tax for the year - 2,437
Tax charge in income statement 75 2,499

The taxchargefor the year idower (2016: higher) than the standard rate of corporation tax which is explained as
follows:
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Group 2017 2016

£000 £000
Reconciliation of effective tax rate
Profit/ (Loss) for the year before tax 5,809 (18,884)
Profit/ (L_oss) for the year multiplied by standard rate of 1,118 (3.777)
corporation tax in the UK of 19.25% (2016: 20%)
De-recognition of deferred tax asset - 3,062
Deferred tax on cash flow hedge de-recognised - 625
Movement in unrecognised deferred tax (668) 2,623
Expenses not deductible for tax purposes (156) 282
Tax exempt income (114) (50)
Others - 86
Prior year adjustment (105) (352)
Tax charge in income statement 75 2,499

The headline rate of UK corporation tax reduced from 20% to 19% on 1 April 2017, and following the enactment of tr
2016 Finance Act on 15 September 2016, thisreduce further to 17% from 1 April 2020. As these changes were
enacted before the balance sheet date, relevant deferred tax balances have been calculated with reference to the:s
rates.

Tax recognised in other comprehensive income

Group 2017 2016
£000 £000

Cash flow hedging reserve - 589
Fair value reserve 105 -
105 589

Deferred tax

As at 31 December 2017, the Group has not recognised a deferred tax asset on the total trading losses carried forw:
of £24.5m (2016: £26.7m), accelerated depreciation of £15.2m (201%:25) and other short term timing differences
of £41m (2016: £4.1m).

Deferred tax assets in relation to tax losses should only be recognised when it is probable that sufficient taxable profi
will be available against which the unused tax losses can be utilised. Judgement has been applied in estimating t
future profitabiity of the business and when considering whether these will be generated in a timely mBumigg

2016 management derecognised the deferred tax asset, which had primarily arisereasltaof tax losses carried
forward from prior yearsln prior yearthe management deemed it appropriate to g¢ecognise this assein the basis

of prior year losses and after an assessment of the timeliness of generating sufficient facditdeagainst which the
carried forward tax losses could be utilisdthnagementonsidered the recognition for the current year and made a
judgement of not to recognise any deferred tax asset.
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16. EARNINGS PER SHARE

The calculation of basic earnings per share is based on the profit attributable to ordinary shareholdersramdibe
of basic weighted average ordinary shares. When calculating the diluted earnings per share, the weighted avera

number of shares in issue is adjusted for the dilutive effects of all dilutive share options and awards.

2017 2016
Earnings per share pence pence
Basic 2.73 (11.07)
Diluted 2.71 (11.07)

2017 2016
Profit attributable to ordinary shareholders £000 £000
Profit/ (Loss) attributable to shareholders (basic) 5,284 (21,383)
Profit/ (Loss) attributable to shareholders (diluted) 5,284 (21,383)

2017 2016
Weighted average number of ordinary shares Number Number
Number of ordinary shares of 25p in issue 195,733,691 195,733,691
Share held by the BLME Holdings EBT (2,258,915) (2,592,248)
Weighted average number of shares (basic) at 31 December 193,474,776 193,141,443
Effect of dilutive share options in issue 1,515,521 8,908,352
Weighted average number of shares (diluted) at 31 December 194,990,297 202,049,795
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17. CHANGES IN LIABILITIES FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Group 1January 2017 Cashflows FX Changesin Other 31December 2017
Movement Fair Value
£000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000
Due to Financial 586,964 67,650 4,922
ue to Financi ( ) ; (514,392)
Institutions
Due to Customers (213,804) (63,682) 145 - (277,341,
Profit Rate Swaps (1,305) 29 589 51 (636)
Total (802,073) 3,968 5,096 589 51 (792,369,
Group 1January 2016 Cashflows FX Changesin Other 31December 2016
Movement Fair Value
£000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000
Dug to.FinanciaI (669,849) 131,306 (48,421) i (586,964)
Institutions
Due to Customers (321,473) 108,712 (1,043) - (213,804,
Profit Rate Swaps (1,104) (79) (90) (32 (1,305)
Total (992,426) 240,018 (49,543) (90) (32 (802,073
18. DUE FROM FINANCIAL INSTITUTIONS AND CUSTOMERS
Due from financial institutions
0-3months 4-12months 1-5years 2017
£000 £000 £000 £000
Murabaha 14,787 10,057 - 24,844
Wakala 3,700 - - 3,700
18,487 10,057 - 28,544
Provision for impairment
28,544
Due from financial institutions
0-3months 4-12months 1-5years 2016
£000 £000 £000 £000
Murabaha 52,640 - 10,012 62,652
Wakala 44,530 - - 44,530
97,170 - 10,012 107,182
Provision for impairment
107,182
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Due from Customers

Wakala

Provision for impairment

Due from Customers

Wakala

Provision for impairment

19. INVESTMENT SECURITIES

Group

Available-for-sale
Equity
Sukuk

Held to maturity
Sukuk

Group

Available-for-sale
Equity
Sukuk

Held to maturity
Sukuk

0- 3 months

£000
9,027

4 - 12 months 1-5years

2017

£000
9,027

9,027

9,027

0- 3 months

£000

4 - 12 months 1-5years

9,027

2016
£000

2017
Total
£000

9
104,882

9,01

114,930

2016
Total
£000

3,170
90,991

18,00C

112,161




2017

Company Listed Unlisted Total
£000 £000 £000

Investment in subsidiary
Bank of London and The Middle East plc - 111,318 111,31¢€
2016
Company Listed Unlisted Total
£000 £000 £000

Investment in subsidiary
Bank of London and The Middle East plc - 89,196 89,196

The Company was inserted as a holdlgnpany of the Bank during 2013 pursuant to a Scheme of Arrangefieat.
transaction was outside thecope of IFRS 3 and therefore mgsiness combination occurres a resultacquisition
accounting using fair valugas not mandatoryand he Company’ s i nwasrscbgmsed atthe IRRSt h
net asset value of the Barat the effective dateof the BLMEScheme of Arrangemeigivhich becamethe effective

cost of investment)

Pursuant to the scheme and esplained ifNote 13, all existingp pt i ons under the Bank’s
and replacement options were offered on substantidlilg same terms and conditions. Furthermore, the Bank was
relieved of its obligations under the share incentive plans and those responsibilities were assumed by the Compal
for no consideration. As this transactisisa nonrmonetary transaction for no caideration with a paren€ompany,

it wasin effect additional investment in the Bank by the Company

Company 2017 2016
£000 £000
Investment in subsidiary
Opening balance 89,196 241,9
Settlement of share-based payment awards by BLME - (51)
Equity-settled share-based payment awards 307 171
Impairment reversal/ (loss) 21,815 (152,857,
Closing balance at 31 December 111,318 89,196

In the previous year (2016) due poor financial performance of the Bank an indicator of impairmeas identified
consequently management tested t IprevisiGhofonanmpaymestforibotly e s t
2016 and2017. A provision for an impairment charge of £152.9 million was recognised in 2016 in the income
statement of the Parent Company. A reversal of £21.8 million of this impairment chasgeeen recognised in 2017

in the income statement of the Parent Compabider IAS 36, an investment is impaired if the cost of investment is
greater than the recoverable amounthe ecoverable amounof £111.3 million (2016£89.2 million) has been

cal cul at ed b awlaedn usedetetntined bydiscokntinguture cash flows based on fivgear budgets,
adjusted for norcash items such as shabased payments and depreciatioApre-tax discount rate 014.%46(2016:
12.0% and a terminal growth rate df.5% (20162.2%) from 2022 were used in the calculatiofhediscount rate has

been estimated using a fiweear riskfree rate plus adjustments for variations in the amounts and timings of cash flows
and uncertainty inherent in the asset. The terminal growth rate is based on a weighted average of a strong, modera
and weak growth rate environment.

Management has performed sensitivity analysis which shows @hatovement of 1% in discount rate in either
direction results in a change in valuation of £0.9 million and positive movement in growth percentage of 1% change
the valuation by £5.3 million where as a downward growth movement of 1% would result in aecinavejuation of

£4.4 million.
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20. FINANCING ARRANGEMENTS

Group

Murabaha
Mudaraba
Sukuk

Provision for impairment

Collective Impairment
Specific Impairment

Group

Murabaha
Mudaraba
Musharaka
Sukuk

Provision for impairment

Collective Impairment
Specific Impairment

Lessthan 1 1-5years Over5 2017
year years Total
£000 £000 £000 £000

498,075 74,070 572,145
3,425 - 3,425
945 2,537 3,48:
502,445 76,607 - 579,052
(11,232)
567,820
(1,674)
(9,558)
(11,232)

Lessthan 1 1-5years Over5 2016
year years Total
£000 £000 £000 £000

417,319 59,895 477,214
- 3,798 3,798
1,133 - 1,133
- 6,497 6,49’
418,452 70,190 - 488,642
(15,338)
473,304
(1,827)
(13,511)
(15,338)
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21. FINANCE LEASE RECEIVABLES

Group 2017 2016
£000 £000

Gross investment in finance lease receivables
Within one year 32,256 56,136
One to five years 43,338 49,953
Over five years 6,547 9,281
82,141 115,37C

Hire purchase

Within one year 54,124 64,133
One to five years 52,277 80,403
Over five years - 37

106,401 144,57¢
Unearned future income on finance leases (7,868) (10,745)
Unearned future income on hire purchase (5,446) (9,505)
Collective Impairment (1,492) (2,318)
Specific Impairment (3,190) (4,674)
Net investment in finance leases and hire purchase 170,546 232,701

The net investment in finance leases comprises:

Within one year 24,444 46,610
One to five years 39,209 44,393
Over five years 6,273 8,769

69,926 99,772

The net investment in hire purchase comprises:

Within one year 50,577 56,630
One to five years 50,043 76,262
Over five years - 37

100,620 132,929

These tables represent contr act ua leaseradeivablésdverssasvide T h e
range of equipment typgincluding transport, construction, mining and heavy machinery equipment.
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22. PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT

Cost

At 1 January 2017
Additions
Disposals

At 31 December 2017
At 1 January 2016
Additions
Disposals

At 31 December 2016
Depreciation

At 1 January 2017
Charge for the year
Disposals

At 31 December 2017
At 1 January 2016
Charge for the year
Disposals

At 31 December 2016

Net Book Value

At 1 January 2017
At 31 December 2017
At 31 December 2016

Computer Office Fixtures & Total
Equipment Equipment Fittings

£000 £000 £000 £000
534 69 2,185 2,788

7 7

541 69 2,185 2,795
509 79 2,855 3,443
25 20 99 144
- (30) (769) (799)

534 69 2,185 2,788
478 55 732 1,265
37 6 500 543

515 61 1,232 1,808
434 53 845 1,332
44 7 529 580
- (5) (642) (647)

478 55 732 1,265
56 14 1,453 1,523

26 8 953 987

56 14 1,453 1,523
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23. OPERATING LEASE ASSETS

At 31 Translation At 31

Group December Additions Disposals Depreciation differences December

2016 2017 2017 2017 2017 2017

£000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000

Gross carrying amount 45,325 27,830 (23,969) - (1,388) 47,798

Less depreciation (20,131) - 10,938 (4,858) 1,175 (12,876)

25,194 27,830 (13,031) (4,858) (213) 34,922

At 31 Translation At 31

Group December Additions Disposals Depreciation differences December

2015 2016 2016 2016 2016 2016

£000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000

Gross carrying amount 81,299 501 (43,883) - 7,408 45,325

Less depreciation (41,522) - 33,401 (6,366) (5,644) (20,131)

39,777 501 (10,482) (6,366) 1,764 25,194

Provision for impairment (833)

24,361
Rental receipts under operating leases 2017 2016
Future rentals are as follows: £000 £000
Less than one year 3,294 4,981
Between one and five years 13,815 6,177
More than five years 1,971 :
19,080 11,190

The Group’' s i nv elsasenassetEoveisra wideprangeadf e€qguigment types, including transport

construction mining and heavy machinery equipment.
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24. INTANGIBLE ASSETS

Group 2017 2016
Cost £000 £000
Opening balance 5,528 5,166
Additions 117 373
Disposals - (11)
Closing balance 5,645 5,528

Amortisation and impairment losses

Opening balance 3,835 2,904
Charge for the year 973 942
Disposals - (11)
Closing balance 4,808 3,835
Net Book Value 837 1,693

Intangible assets consist of the cost of computer licences and software development

25. OTHER ASSETS

Group 2017 2016
£000 £000
VAT recoverable 1,105 -
Accrued income 145 99
Collateral deposits* 487 482
Prepayments 723 1,124
Other receivables and assets** 681 6,571
3,141 8,276

* TheGrouphas pledged castollateraldepositsof £0.5 million(2016: £0.5 million) as security against rental payments
on its premises.

**Other receivables and asset line above include foreign exchange forward deal bal&hike(2016:£3.8 million).

26. DUE TO FINANCIAL INSTITUTIONS

Group 2017 2016
£000 £000

Reverse Murabaha 391,186 511,23¢
Wakala 123,206 75,725
514,392 586,964

27. DUE TO CUSTOMERS

Group 2017 2016
£000 £000

Customer deposits 270,645 206,11C
Security deposits 6,696 7,694
277,341 213,804
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28. OTHER LIABILITIES

Group 2017 2016
£000 £000

Trade payables 176 257
VAT payable - 1,284
Deferred income 48 48
Social security and income tax 354 352
Accruals 8,210 7,532
Other creditors* 3,244 3,266
12,032 12,739

*Other creditors line above include foreign exchange forward deal baland®®million (2016:ANil).

29. COMMITMENTS UNDER OPERATING LEASES

Cannon Place 2017 2016
£000 £000
Future minimum rentals are as follows:
Lease expiring in more than five years 12,130 13,085
12,130 13,085
There is a commitment at ye@nd underanorc ancel | abl e operating | ease f ol

Cannon Place, 78 Cannon Street, London EC4N 6HL for a fifteen year periatémityear break clause) from 11
September 2015 to 10 September 2030, at an annual rental of £0.95 million with an initial rent free period.

During the year £0.8 million was recognised as an expense in the income statement in respect of this opesating lea
(2016: £0.8 million).

Manchester Square 2017 2016
£000 £000

Future minimum rentals are as follows:

Lease expiring between one and five year: 215 679

Lease expiring in more than five years

215 679

There is a commitment at the yeand underanorc ancel | abl e operating | ease f

Division’s former premises at 12 Manchdg@ithatenysar break e ,
clause) from 23 June 2008 to 22 June 2028, at an annual rental of £0.5 million with an initial rent free period (201
£0.5 million).

The Manchester Square premise during 2017 was not in use due to employees relocating fronedtlrshuare to

the Bank's primay office Cannon place in 2016.2016, the bank had exercised an exit from lease in line wehkor
clause dated June 20H%d recognised an onerous lease provision of £1.2m in the income statement comprising the
contractual rent and reliable estimate of the future maintenance co3iise remaining commitment of the lease is
£0.2m(2016: £0.6myvhich has been fully provided in the onerous lease provision.
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Dubai office 2017 2016

£000 £000
Future minimum rentals are as follows:
Lease expiring in less than five years 117 276
117 276
There is a commitment at the yeend uncderanonc ancel | abl e operating | ease f

in Dubai for a three year period from 15 November 2015 to 14 November 2018, at an annual rental of AED 0.7 millio
which was equivalent to £0.1 million at the balance sheet datd§2@ED 0.7 million / £0.1 million), with an initial
rent free period.

During the year £0.1 million was recognised as an expense in the income statement in respect of this operating lea
(2016: £0.1 million).

In addition to above, the Group has two maren-cancellableperating leasegreemens in relation to two othetUK
office premises. The future minimum lease rental for these two premises is £0.019 million (2016: £0.025 million

During the year an expense of £0.037 million (2&D8037 millionwas recognised in the income statement in respect
of these operating leases.

30. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES
There are no contingent liabilities as at 31 December 2017 to be disclosed.

31. SHARE CAPITAL

Group Number Share
of shares capital
£000
Allotted, called up and fully paid 25p per ordinary share
At 31 December 2016 195,733,691 48,933
At 31 December 2017 195,733,691 48,933

32. MERGER RESERVE

Group 2017 2016*

£000 £000
Opening balance at 1 January - 16,00C
Recycled to retained earning - (16,000

after impairment of subsidiat

Closing balance at 31 December - -

Company 2017 2016
£000 £000

Opening balance at 1 January - 16,000

Recycled to retained earnings after impairment of subsidiary - (16,000)

Closing balance at 31 December - -

A corporatereorganisationof BLMEwvas implementecbn 2 October 2018y means of Courtapproved scheme of
arrangement under sections 895 to 899 of the UK Companies Act

A merger reservef £191 millionwas createdn the books of the Company upon the BLME Scheme of Arrangement
becoming effective on 2 October 20Ihis merger reserve represauthe excess of the net asset value of BLOWE
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2 October 201®f £2399 millionover the nominal valuef the ordinary shares issued to the former shareholders of
BLME of £48 million

£175million of this merger reserve was capitalised through an allotment and issu& ®imillionDeferred Shareef
£1 eachto BLMEon 2 October 2013. These deferred shanee subsequentlycancelled on 7 October 2013, thus
creating a distributable reserve in the books of the Company equal to the nominal value of the Deferred Shares ¢

cancelled.

*'n the fi

nanci al

statements

for

the year

ended

31 [

investment in BLME was recognised. £16 million of this impairment was set against the remaining balance of tt

mer ger

r es er v eStatement ohFnanCia Rogitiom. Yhis extinguished the merger reserve, stoigll

therefore have been eliminated from the Gro@atement of FinancialPosition, but was not so eliminated. This has
now been corrected as a prior period restatemamnid hasnow simplified the balance sheet presentation.

33. SUBSIDIARIES AND OTHER ENTITIES

Principal Subsidiaries

Directly held:
Bank of London and
The Middle East plc

Indirectly held:
BLME Asset
Management Limited

BLME Holdco Limited

BLME Holdings EBT

BLME Limited

BLME Umbrella Fund
Management Sarl

Global Liquidity
Solutions Limited

MKL Construction
Equipment Finance
Limited

Renaissance Property
Finance Limited

Renaissance Trade
Finance Limited

Aspenway Limited

Country of BLME
incorporation interest in
and principal equity
operations capital

United Kingdom 100%

United Kingdom 100%
United Kingdom 100%
100%

Jersey

United Kingdom 100%

Luxembourg 100%

United Kingdom 100%

United Kingdom 60%

United Kingdom 100%

United Kingdom 100%

Jersey 100%

Issued equity
capital

£48,933,422

£2

£102

£100

£2

US$ 25,000

£1

£1,000

£2

£2

£11,300,000

Principal
business
activity

Holding
Company

Dormant
Dormant
Employee
benefit trust

Dormant

Holding
Company

Dormant

Leasing

Dormant

Dormant

Investment
Holding
Company

Ultimate

parent parent

undertaking undertaking

BLME BLME

Immediate

Registered office

78 Cannon

Holdings plc Holdings plc Street, London

BLME
Holdings plc

BLME plc

BLME
Holdings plc

BLME plc

BLME
Holdings plc
BLME
Holdings plc

BLME plc

BLME plc

BLME
Holdings plc
BLME
Holdings plc

BLME plc

BLME plc

BLME
Holdings plc

BLME plc

BLME
Holdings plc

BLME plc

BLME
Holdings plc

BLME plc

BLME
Holdings plc

BLME plc

EC4N 6HL

78 Cannon
Street, London
EC4N 6HL

78 Cannon
Street, London
EC4N 6HL
n/a

78 Cannon
Street, London
EC4N 6HL
n/a

78 Cannon
Street, London
EC4N 6HL
Padgets Lane,
Redditch, B98
ORT

78 Cannon
Street, London
EC4N 6HL

78 Cannon
Street, London
EC4N 6HL

26 New Street, S
Helier, Jersey Jt
3RA
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As the Group ownthe majority ofthe equity capitalbf the above entitiesit is exposed, and has rights, to variable
returns from itsinvolvement with the investegand has the ability to affect those returns through its power over the
investees. Consequently, the results of the subsidiaries above have been consolidated in these financial statements

Deconsolidation of Renaissance As§@&tance Limited in 2016

With effect from 30 June 2015, the Group consolida
resul ts; management determined that it had contr ol
shae capital becoming exercisable on 30 June 2015. Under IFRS 10, this resulted in the Group deeming to have po
over, and control of, RAF. For the first three month2016 BLME continued to consolidate RAF into the Group
results. The option to purchaske business lapsed at the beginning of April 2016. Accordingly, under IFRS 10 contro
of the entity was lost and it was considered appropriate to deconsolidate RAF. Consequently, a loss of £1.7 million f

been recognised in “lpafny "on nditshpeo s alc oanfe Grtau g meam .
At 31 March
2016
£000
Derecognition of outstanding consideration 2,192
Derecognition of the carrying amount of net assets (3,912)
Loss on disposal of group company (1,720)

Asset Management seed capital investment

The Groupheldthe following investments in different compartments of tBEMES h a rUmhrélla Fun&sICAV SIF:

Compartment Share Class Holdingsasat31 Holdings as at 31
December 2017 December 2016

BLME Light Industrial Building Fund A Nil 176.487

BLME Shari a’ a U8iBwas flidsavedron hAlLgus ROC7AMowing the redemption of all outstanding
shares in the Light Industrial Building Fund, the last remaining compartment of the fund.

The business activities of BLME Umbrella Fund Mamag n t S.a.r .| ., the Gener al
Umbrella Fund SICAMF, ceased on 3October 2017. Thi€mpany is expected to be dissolved during 2018.

There are two active structured ent iariasanser (K lgvbutyhich 2 0
are consolidated under IFRS 10 as the substance of the relationship is that the entities are deemed to be controlled
the Group. These entities are deemed to be controlled by the Group because the relationships betweeoupe Gr
and the SEs are governed by participation agreements which allow the Group to exercise power over the SEs
addition to being exposed to, and having rights over, the variable returns from its involvement with the SEs
Furthermore, the Group has the #ity to use its power to affect its returns from its involvement in the SEs.

The two entities are as follows:
1 Kalakane Transatlantic Investors Il, Inc. (US@perating leases

T DMJ2LLC (USADperating leases

During the period the participatioagreement with Kalakane Transatlantic Investors Il, Inc. (USA) has expired and the
group no longer expect any further business activity with this SE
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Lease assets owned by tis&Esare reported as Group operating lease asset®unting to £.7 million (2016: £2.4
million).

The BLME Hol dings Employee Benefit Trust (°EBWE3] ho
million (31 December 2016: £4.2 milliomhich has been deducted from retained earnings in the Condensed
Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity. The EBT did not purchase any of its own shares duwamgrided
31December 201731 December 2016: Nil). No stamp duty costs were incurred by the Group on behalf of the BLME
Holdings EB{Yearended31 De&ember 2016: Nil).

9 Significant restrictions

The Group does not have significant restrictions on its ability to access or use its ass&tttlarits liabilities other
than those resulting from the supervisory frameworks within whigmking subsidiariesperate. The supervisory
frameworks require banking subsidiaries to kesgrtain levels of regulatory capital and liquid assets, limit their
exposure to other parts of th&roup and comply with other ratios. The carrying amountBarik of London and The
Middle EasPIc assets andiabilitiesare£ 1,026 million and 805 million respectively 2016: £1,02 million and£812
million respectively).

9 Interests in unconsolidated structured entities

The Group does not have any interests in unconsolidated structured entities.

9 Contractual arrangements and financial support

TheGroup does not have any contractual arrangements that could require the parent or its subsidiaries to provide
financialsupport to a consolidated or unconsolidated structured ent&916: none).

Except for a letter of support provided to MKL Construction Equipment Finance Linhige@Group did not provide
financial support to any of its consolidated or unconsolidateddtired entitiesduring2017 (2016: nil) and does not

have any current intention® provide such suppor2Q16: none).

34. NON-CONTROLLING INTEREST

The group holds a 60% shareholding in MKL Construction Equipment Finance Limited, and consolidates it a:

subsidiary under IFRS 1The noncontrolling interest represents the minority shareholders of 40%. Due to amounts
being insignificant in the prior periods it has been disclosed for the first time in the current year.

35. RELATED PARTIES

During theyearthe Groupentered into transactionsother than thosencludedin Noteslland26onana r neéngth
badgs with related counterparesas detailed below.

2017 2016
£000 £000
Boubyan Bank K.S.C.P
Wakala placement 826,850 490,532z
Wakala deposit taking 168,176 304,04¢
Foreign exchange transactions - 249
The Public Institution for Social Security
Reverse Murabaha 238,155 505,294
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The amounts outstanding with Boubyan Bank K.S.C.P as at 31 December were as follows:

Included within: 2017 2016
£000 £000

Cash and balances with banks

Nostros 2,720 1,941
Due from financial institutions

Wakala placement - -
Due to financial institutions

Wakala deposit taking 31,893 -
As at 31 December 2@1BoubyanBanK . S. C. P hel d an economic interest ¢

(2016: 26.39%). A Norexecutive Director who joined the Board on 6 December 2012, and was appointed Chairman
on 31 March 2014, is the current Chief Executive Officer andGheadérman of Boubyan Bank K.S.C.P.

The amounts outstanding with The Public Institution for Social Security (of Kuwait) as at 31 Decembe
were as follows:

Included within: 2017 2016
£000 £000
Reverse Murabaha 381,185 522,812

As at 31 December 201 The Public Institution for Social Security held 7.67%62017 . 6 7 %) of t he B
Bank’s Vice Chairman hol ds the pos.idndOperationfof TheeRuhlic y
Institution for Social Security.

The key management of the Bank are the Executive Directors. The coniparfatey management personnel for
the year was as follows:

2017 2016
£000 £000
Key management emoluments * 1,429 827
Bank contributions to pension plans 65 10
1,494 837

* Key management emoluments includes shhesed payments of £05 million (2036: £0.(® million).

During the year, the Company received notification of the followbng r e c t o r s 'Company shdres ®retheo f
following dates.

No. Director’s Name Date No. of Value % Cumulative
Shares holding of issued
share capital
1. Michael Williams 29 June 2017 30,000 US$12,000 0.015%
2. Calum Thomson 29 June 2017 30,000 US$12,000 0.015%
3. David Williams 29 June 2017 30,000 US$12,000 0.015%
4. Jabra Ghandour 29 June 2017 30,000 US$12,000 0.015%
5 September 2017 136,667 US$54,667 0.255%
5. Giles Cunningham 27 August 2017 675,917 U$270,367
28 August 2017 74,083 U$29,633
5 September 2017 63,120 U$25,248 0.415%
6. Christopher Power 27 August 2017 30,000 U$11,990 0.015%
7. Adel AlMajed 7 September 2017 771,412 U$308,564
17 September 2017 228,588 U$308,564 0.511%
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In additionto above purchase, Jab@handour exercised options over 333,333 ordinary shares in the Company plc on
29 June 2017 at nil cost per shaidewas granted these options in November 2015 when he Wead of Wealth
Management.

On 17 October 2016 th&roug s Dub ai Representative Office entere
Ghandour (Director) to provide services to help build Geowug s Weal t h Management br e
agreementwasmadd n t he or di nary c our slengtobasisindcanibentermirsatechby eitheo n

party giving to the other party mBankrechgrisedanexpemse of®h e n
milion@ December 2016: £0.03 million) in s$é&&” i hoomel 8
agreementand this amount habeeni ncl uded i n the Director’ s .Eheamhounne nt

outstanding as at 3December 2017 is £0.045(31 December 2016: £Nil).
36. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

TheGrouphas exposure to the following riskategoriesarising fromthe use of financial instruments:

credit risk

liquidity risk

market risk

operational riskincludes cyber risk)
capital risk

conduct risk

=A =4 =4 =4 =8 =4

The chart below provi des a nitsand the poireipalvisks that thdy are éxposed f.” s
The significance of risk is assessed within the context of the Group as a whole and is measured based on allocatiot
the regulatory capital within the Group.

BLME Executive Committee

Commercial Finance Wealth Management
(includes Leasing, Tra Treasury (Includes Private Banki
Finance) and Real Estate)

Credit risk: High
Operational risk: Mediun
Market risk: Low
Capital Risk: Medium
Conduct Risk: Medium

Liquidity risk: Medium
Operational risk: Low
Market risk: Low
Credit risk: Low
Conduct Risk: Low

Credit risk: High
Operational risk: Low
Market risk: Low
Capital Risk: Medium
Conduct Risk: Medium
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The following presents nf or mati on about the Group’s exposure to
policies and processes for measuring and managing these risks, and the management of capital.

Foll owing a review o flastyéaehe Blowikg olgectivedave beerdestifiedl:t r at e gy

* Continue to educe exposure to capital intensive and less profitable business lines;

» Expansion oits presence in the Gulf Cooperation Council (GCC) states and the Middle East;

* Redued wholesalefunding concentratio. Thishas beenachieved by attracting more deposits through
BLME' s Pr emi er Dargwildoritinudinte20i8nt ( PDA)

As referred to in the Chairman and CEO statements Gheuphas undegone significant changes in 2017 which
included a refinementofth&roug s r i sk manage men tRskAppetime wor k and Boar

Risk management framework

The Group’s risk management framewor k ( -talridRctiyityisp r o
consistent with the Bank’'s strategy and risk appeti
customers from its products. The RMF establishes an appropriate balance between risks and reward and ensuri
robust controls and manageent of risk.

The Group’'s method of managing risk begins with the
Bank’'s strategy articulates its willingness to be e

The RMF is subject to regular evaluattonensure that it meets the challenges and requirements of the market in
which the Bank operates, including regulatory standards and industry best practices. The Bank requires a strong a
proactive RMRn order tomitigate all principal risks and

f Manage the Bank in |Iine with the Board’'s approved
T Achieve the Bank’'s strategic objectives whil st a
T Empower and equi p t he Ban kaware nsahnarfwith rales, resparsibilitiebcac i s

delegated authorities clearly defined; and
1 Embed a culture of treating customers fairly

The RMHRays out systematic processes to identify, evaluate, mitigate, report, and manage risk:

1 Risk identificatior-ensure there is a clear definition of eagbk entered into by the Bank with an identified
Risk Owner;

1 Risk assessmentagree and implement appropriate, effective risk measurement and reporting standards for
each identified risk. Set metrics together with reporting monitoring controls, processdstandards;

1 Risk mitigation— establish key control processes and practices, including limit structures, impairment
allowance criteria and reporting requirements. Ensure all frameworks and policies are regularly reviewed an
kept relevant and up to date

1 Execution & monitoring- separate control functions independent of business lines are responsible for
monitoring the operation of the controls and adherence to risk direction and limits;

1 Manage and challengereview and challenge all aspects oftheBarsk r i sk profi |l e;
T Ensuring all products are Sharia’a compliant;
1 Toidentify and evaluatehe roles ofthree lines of defence.
The Bank’s RMF requires the following principles to

9 All risks assessed as being principal risks to be coveradRigk Appetite Statement, Policy and operating
process to mitigate the risk;
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1 The Board retains overall responsibility for approving business strategy, understgntinipal risks and
ensuring that the risks are adequately controlled and monitored;

1 The Bard Risk Committee providesersightandassurancef the RMF, with independent reporting lines for
the Chief Risk Officer to enable thesid

1T Adoption of a “4 eyes” maker | checker control
approval of key risk decisions inhaee ines ofdefence model.

Board Risk Appetite

The Board defines its appetite and tolerance for risk expresstinrs of qualitative and quantitative metrics which are
measured on a stressed and unstressed basis.

The BLME Risk Appetite Statement is set by the BLME Boarel/aawded at least serannually.

The Board has set risk appetite within the context of gutgd financial earnings and balance sheet over the short and
medium term. The risk appetittasbeers et t o cl early articul ate the Board’
the Board’'s stated strategy.

The Boar d’' s a pedadan appetitd for potential kbds undes strassed and normal market scenarios which
drives the business to focus on business that has adequate rewards for the risks takerganbtthe overall level of risk
undertaken.

The principal risks facedytihe Group are described below, together with details of how these risks are managed.
Quantitative information indicates the amounts of such risks at the reporting date. The amounts at the reporting date
are indicative of the amounts of such risks whielvédbeen experienced throughout the year

a. Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk of financial loss to Beoupif a customer or counterparty is not able to repay capital and/or
profit, or otherwise meet its contractual obligations under credit facilities or in respect of other agreeriibiggisk
ismanaged in accordance withh e Gr oup’ s Cr e dilidy. THRGreubhadvbaredih rgviewpeoness inP o
place covering all its customers and counterparties whereby it assignshanige rating and maximum tendgxternal
rating agency ratings are used where availaBingsare subject to regular revieas isthe amount of credit that
can be made available to the risgunterparty.

i. Management of credit risk

The Group manages credit risk by the uséoftfolio Limits andC o mme r c i al Gu witthietl h v e Gr
Credit Risk Management Policy. These sector and business based expressions of credit risk appetite provide guide
on the acceptable level of credit exposure by counterparty rating, country and sector, including the adequacy
collateral. @edit risks are monitored on a daily basis and reguladgigsessed for creditworthiness.

The Board Credit Committeés a subcommittee of BRC established to review and agree decisions made by the
Counterparty Credit Risk Committee (CCRC) thabatside of stated risk appetite and/or meet other escalation
criteria. A separate Credit Risk Department, accountable to the CCRC, is responsible for oversightaifhes c r e ¢
risk, including:

9 Formulating credit policies in consultation with otherdiness units, covering credit assessments, collateral
requirements, risk reporting, legal requirements and compliance with regulatory and statutory requirements
Establishing authorisation limits and structures for the approval and renewal of credit ergdosits

Reviewing and assessing credit risk prior to agreements being entered into with customers

Establishing limits forounterparties and reviewing these limits

On-goingassessment of exposure and implementation of procedures to reduce this exposure

= =4 =4 =
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1 Providing advice, guidance and specialist skills to all business areas through@urbthgin the management
of credit risk

Adherence tocountry and counterparty limitds monitored on anon-going basis by theGroup <£redit Risk
Department with adetailed review of all limitbeing undertakerat least annually. Senior management receives
regular reports on the utilisation of these limits.

The Group also employs a credit grading system, to facilitate monitoring of the quality of the overallipantd
individual segments.

ii. Exposure

The tablsbelowpresentthe Groug s e X p 0 s u r enbalance beeténdricial instrungehts as at 31 December
2017, before taking account of any collateral held or other credit enhancem@&hésamounts at theurrentreporting
datereflect the continueddee i ski ng of t he GrThisihas resulttdédmaddecregse ip the dvdrad |
gross exposures as a consequence of the Bank exitingarerbusiness such Islamic Capital Markeis dS Leasing,
and higher risk products which includes ABL Finance.

Group 2017 2016
£000 £000
Cash and balances with banks 96,780 71,152
Due from financial institutions
Murabaha 24,844 62,652
Wakala 3,700 44,53C
Investment securities 114,930 112,161
Due from Customer 9,027
Financing arrangements 567,820 473,304
Finance lease receivables 170,546 232,701
Other assets (Foreign exchange forward deals) - 3,888
Total credit exposure 987,647 1,000,388

The Grouphad 12 off balance sheet letters of guarantee outstanding at 31 December 2017 (2016: 40) with a tota
exposure of £18 million (2016: £24.8 milliomhese letters of guarantee mainly relate to short dated Trade Finance
and ABL Finance facilities with a maturity of less than six months.
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iii. Exposure by country of incorporation of the borrower

TheGroupexposure to credit risk at balance sheet datere dispersed across the follavg countries:

Group

GCC countries

Bahrain

Kuwait

Qatar

Saudi Arabia

United Arab Emirates

EEA countries
France

Ireland
Luxembourg
United Kingdom

Other countries
British Virgin Islands
Cayman Islands
Djibouti
Guernsey
Switzerland
Jordan

Isle of Man
Jersey

South Korea
USA

Total credit exposure

2017 2016
£000 £000
8,464 7,747
94,017 16,112
14,008 42,779
92,570 119,577
16,064 28,157

- 8,094
- 3,295
- 202
674,891 663,666
- 1,118
6,097 16,954
- 1,133
15,491 12,927
866 -
1,369 -
16,234 15,540
11,891 15,080
- 1,240
35,685 46,767
987,647 1,000,388
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iv. Exposure by economic sector

The Group exposure to credit risk at balance sheet date weispersed across the following economic sectors:

Group 2017 2016
£000 £000

Financial services
GCC financial institutions 141,042 126,774
UK financial institutions 126,235 161,24C
European financial institutions - 8,296
Other financial institutions 46,244 40,559
Mining and quarrying 4,147 5,413
Manufacturing 31,101 36,104
Real estate 295,181 290,194
Transportation and storage 38,447 81,711
Government 40,788 37,047
Wholesale / Retail 84,700 76,475
Oil and Gas - 14,232
Commodities 66,886 54,974
Energy 14,072 -
Construction 45,151 26,935
Telecoms - -
Others 53,653 40,434
Total credit exposure 987,647 1,000,388

v. Credit risk quality

The Group seredit qualityand direct investments arenanaged byCCR@nd the Assets and LiabilitieSommittee
(ALCOjespectively, under the oversight of the Executive Commiétee, in the case of CCR@der the oversight of
BCCCredit quality is asseed using techniques that include information from the major External Credit Assessment
Institutions (ECAI) as well msernal ratings for customers who are not externally rated. The latter are mapped to the
ratings of the ECAI. Of the total portfolio 2434 December 2016: 27%) was directly rated by at least one of the ECAI,
with 76% (31 December 2016: 7386)ng internal ratings.

Forcounterpartiesnot rated by the major EC#tle Groupdetermines underlyingounterparty credit quality by use of
its internal credit rating procedureS hese procedures assess in combination, the finaacidmanageriaktrength
business model robustness, collateral value awilability and the sectorand geography of thecounterparty
concerned.Following this assessmean internalrating is allocated.
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Group

Neither Past Due Nor Impaired

At 31 December 2017 ECAI Rating BLME Internal Rating
Investment Sub- Investment Sub- Ungraded Pastdue but no Individually Total
Grade Investment Grade Investment impaired Impaired
Grade equivalent Grade
£000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000
Cash and balances with banks 96,780 - - - - - - 96,780
Due from financial institutions 14,787 - 3,700 10,057 - - - 28,544
Due from customers - - 9,027 - - - - 9,027
Investment securities
Available for sale
Government debt securities 31,712 ) ) ) ) . 31,712
Other Investment securities 73,170 - - 973 - - 74,143
Investment Hold to Maturity (HTM)
Government debt securities 3,718 5,357 - - - - 9,075
Other Investment securities - - - - - -
Financing arrangements 4,762 - 301,908 184,127 12,141 40,256 24,626 567,820
Finance lease receivables 10,157 - 63,856 75,975 4,461 479 15,618 170,546
Other assets (Foreign exchange
forward deals) i ) i ) i i )
Total credit exposure 235,086 5,357 378,491 271,132 16,602 40,735 40,244 987,647
Group
Neither Past Due Nor Impaired
At 31 December 2016 ECAI Rating BLME Internal Rating
Investment Sub- Investment Sub- Ungraded Past due but no Individually Total
Grade Investment Grade Investment impaired Impaired
Grade equivalent Grade
£000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000
Cash and balances with banks 71,152 - - - - - - 71,152
Due from financial institutions 89,075 - 8,095 10,012 - - - 107,182
Due from customers - - - - - - -
Investment securities
Available for sale
Government debt securities 21,095 ) ) . ) ) - 21,005
Other Investment securities 69,896 - - 611 2,559 - - 73,066
Investment Hold to Maturity (HTM)
Government debt securities 5,825 - - - - - - 5,825
Other Investment securities - - 12,175 - - - - 12,17
Financing arrangements - - 177,005 225,972 3,160 23,758 43,409 473,304
Finance lease receivables 13,498 - 46,513 153,181 1,103 6,596 11,810 232,701
Other assets (Foreign exchange
forward deals) 274 - 2,054 506 1,054 - - 3,8¢
Total credit exposure 270,815 - 245,842 390,282 7,876 30,354 55,219 1,000,388

There were no collective and specific impairments ag&esh and balances with bankiie from financial institutions

and customer®r investment securitiesr other assets(2016:Nil)
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Analysis of past due amounts and impairments

Group Financing arrangements Finance Leases

2017 2016 2017 2016

£000 £000 £000 £000
Neither past due nor impaired 512,496 421,475 157,639 221,287
Past due but not impaired 40,256 23,758 479 6,5¢
Gross exposure associated with 24,626 43,409 15,618 11,81
impairment provision
Less: allowance for impairments (9,558) (15,338) (3,190) (6,992)
Total 567,820 473,304 170,546 232,701
Past due but not impaired £000 £000 £000 £000
Past due up to 30 days - 23,758 367 5,0
Past due 30 to 60 days 374 - 33 4
Past due 60 to 90 days 34,659 - 33 6!
Past due over 90 days 5,222 - 46 554
Total 40,255 23,758 479 6,596

The past due but not impaired balances as at 31 Dece@Btinclude£39.2 million (2016: £21.4million) relatingto

two transactiong2016: four) where collateral value exceedhe facility balanceThe Group believes that impairment

is not appropriate on the basis of the level of security or collateral available and/or the stage of collection of amount:
owed to the Group.An analysis of impairments is providedNiote 14“ | mpai r ment o"'f. fi nanci

Subsequent to 31 December 20£34.6 million out of £40.2 million of Financing arrangements past due but not
impairedbecame current

Forbearance

BLMEassist customers in financial difficulty through modification of terms or agreements to accept less than
contractual amounts due where financial distress could otherwise prevent satisfactory repayment. Such agreemen
may be initiated by the customgebut may be initiated by BLME or a third party.

Forbearance is considered to occur when, BLME, for reasons pertaining to the actual, imminent or perceived financ
stress of a customer, allows, grants, or restructures facilities on terms that are oofsidecurrent lending appetite
when considered against the credit risk of the customer. To note, while guidance is provided tyntheercial
guidelines this does not necessarily mean that any granting of facilities that fall outséde guidelinegonstitutes
forbearance.

Forbearance would typically be evident where the concession(s) agreed impact the ability to repay debt or avoi
recognising a default risk mitigation/structural enhancement of benefifie Bank in return for that concession.

A cancession refers to either of the following actions:

1 A modification of the previous terms and conditions of a contract, that the debtor is considered unable to
comply with, due to its financial di f Hebtceanicaabilieys (
that would not have been granted had the debtor not been in financial difficulty

1 Atotal or partial refinancing of a troubled debt contract that would not have been granted had the debtor not
been in financial difficulty
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Evidence ba concession includes:

1 A difference in favour of the debtor between the modified and the previous terms of the contract
1 Cases where a modified contract includes more favourable terms than other debtors with a similar risk profile
could have obtained frm the Bank

The revised termsnay includea reduction of current contractual profit rate or other fees, amending the terms of
exposurecovenants.extending the maturityand/or changing the timing oprofit rate payments All exposuresare
subject to theforbearance policyThe Bank’' s forbearance register is m
subject to mont hl yCCRGNe Ai Comritteb also teviews ré&parts én’fosbearance activities.

Agreement to forbearance does not necasly result in animpairment of that facility. All impairments will be
individually assessed lilge CreditRiskdepartment andCCRC on a caséby-case basis.

The forbearance classification and reportinij be discontinued when all of the following conditions are met:

1) The contractis considered as perform{ing. the debtor meets the conditions of the contraafjer an analysis
of the financial condition of the debtor showed it no longer met the condititme considered as nen
performing

2) A minimum 2 year probation period has passed from the date the forborne exposure was considered a:
performing

3) Regular payments of more than an insignificant aggregate amount of principal and profit have been made
during at least half of the probation period

4) None of the exposure to the debtor is more than 30 days past due at the end of the probation.period

The exposure continues to be reported as forborne until such time as all of the conditions are met. The coartions
assessed on a monthly basis.

Based on the credit exposures existing as at 31 Deceg@izrthere had beensixteeninstances (2016: thirteen ):

- where theGroupwaived material financial covenants or agreed to temporary relaxation of repayment terms
which were subsequently cured

- where the Group agreed to provide temporary facilities beyond the terms upon which the facilities were
intended to operate and/or

- where the Group agreed to extend facilities beyond their contractual term outside of its normal credit criteria

The carrying value as at 31 Deceml2&17 of exposures relating to forborne counterparties with no specific
impairment charge was¥ .2million, which representd% of t he Gr o 2Q6: £0.1mdionand6%d.s s e t

9 Allowance for impairment

TheGrouphas established a policy to monitor impairment events that could lead to losses in its asset portfolio. Thi:
policy covers specifioss events for individual significant exposures as well as for events that relate to collective losse
on groups of homogenous assets that have yet to be identified and assessed individually for impairment.

The Group writes off a balance (and any relatedlowances for impairment) when the Credit RBkpartment
determines that the balance is uncolldde. This determination would be reached after considering information such
as the occurrence of significant changesa t he counterparty’s financi al p o
longer pay the obligation, or that proceeds from collateral will not be sufficient to pay back the entire exposure.
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vi. Collateral

The Groupmonitors the market value of its collateral on an-gaing basis which, dependent upon the collateral type,

can vary from monthly tgearly. The Group uses external valuers to perform independent valuations of assets. These
valuations are reviewed and cdfenged by management andwhere applicable,corroborated with internal
estimations In calculating collateral value, the Group considacsors such aasset condition, market environment,

ease of liquidation anthe interdependency between the borrowand collateral.

Financial assets and ndimancial assets obtained by the Group by taking possession of collateral held as security

against financing arrangemerasd finance leaseand held at the yeaend are shown below:

Assets obtained by taking possession of collateral 2017 2016
£000 £000

Murabaha 8,125

Real estate - 3,596

Total 8,125 3,596

TheMurabaha collateral relates to a ydctnat has been arrested by the receiver as at 31 December 2017#e@he
estate collaterabalance reported aboveelatesto a property that wasunder theappointmentof an LPAeceiverat
31 DecembeR016 In February 2017, the Bamkncluded an exit having realised the collaterbh value thadid not

requirefurther impairment charges.

Group 2017 2017 2016 2016
On balance Collateral On balance Collateral
sheet sheet
exposure exposure
£000 £000 £000 £000
Cash and balances with banks 96,780 - 71,152
Due from financial institutions 28,544 - 107,182
Due from customers 9,027 - - -
Investment securities 114,930 112,161
Financing arrangements 567,820 405,535 473,304 367,09z
Finance lease receivables 170,546 131,339 232,701 226,514

Other assets (Foreign exchange

forward deals) - - 3,888
Total credit exposure 987,647 536,874 1,000,388 593,606
As at 31 December 2@1collateral represente84% (206:60%) of t he Gr expgsures t ot al
Group analysis of collateral 2017 2016
£000 £000
Plant and equipment 146,433 245,291
Property 246,173 234,222
Raw materials/ finished stock 144,268 114,09z
Total credit exposure 536,874 593,606

In addition, the Group holds financial guarantees dfOZ6 million (2016: £60.9 million) against financing

arrangements.
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Collateral is disclosed at the lower of 100% of the exposure or management estimationvaiukeof the collateral
based on prevailing valuations.

As at 31 December 2017, 94% (2014409 of t he Group’s proper tyo-vdlueratdbi ng
equal to or less than 70%.

vii. Offsetting financial assets and liabilities

Whilst the Bank has entered infdaster Agreementswith counterparties that allow the Bank to obtain collateral
which, if an event of default occurs, permits settlement of all outstanding transactions with each counterparty on &
net basis; no such commeatiarrangements have been transacted and accordingly there are no offsetting financial
assets and liabilities which require disclosure

Financial asset and liabilities subject to offsetting, netting arrangements:

Offsetting recognised on the Statement of
2017 Financial Position

Gross Amount Net Amount

. . Amounts subject .
of financial presented in
to an enforceable

instrument ) statement of
master netting . .
before financial
. agreement o
offsetting position
£'000 £'000 £'000
Profit Rate Swap (Asset) 132 (132) -
Profit Rate Swap (Liabilities) 768 (132) 636
Foreign exchange forward deals (Asset) 88 (88) -
Foreign exchange forward deals (Liabilities) 1,070 (88) 982
2016
Profit Rate Swap (Asset) - - -
Profit Rate Swap (Liabilities) 1,305 h 1,305
Foreign exchange forward deals (Asset) 4,889 (1,001) 3,888
Foreign exchange forward deals (Liabilities) 1,001 (1,001) -
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viii. Fair value of financial assets and liabilities

The following table summarises the carrying amisuand estimated fair values Gihancial assets and liabilities.

Group 2017 2017 2016 2016
Fair value Carrying Fair value Carrying Fair value
hierarchy value value

Note £000 £000 £000 £000

Cash and balances with banks 1 96,780 * 71,152 *

Due from financial institutions i 2 28,544 28,498 107,182 106,975

Due from customers i 2 9,027 9,016 - -

Investment securities ii, iii See next table** 114,930 114,930 112,161 112,161

Financing arrangements iii 3 567,820 561,199 473,304 468,83¢€

Finance lease receivables iii 3 170,546 170,262 232,701 222,95¢

Other assets (Foreign exchancg iv 5 i i 3,888 3,888

forward deals)

Due to financial institutions iii 3 514,392 511,278 586,964 581,181

Profit rate swaps liability ii 2 636 636 1,305 1,305

Due to customers iii 3 277,341 275,261 213,804 212,357

Other liabilities (Foreign iv

exchange forward deals) 2 982 982 i

* the carryingamount of these financial assets afidancial liabilities are representative of their fair values.
** |nvestment securities not included in the table below bhedd to maturity HTM) security.

Notes

i. These assets represent short term liquidity; the majority of these assets have an avesayyeal life of 2
weeks and a maximum individual residual maturity of 6 weeks. The assets are placed with banks with a
average credit rating of A. On this basis, carrying value reflects fair value.

ii. Fair value represents independent external valoator last trade.

iii. For financial assets and financial liabilities measured at amortised cost, the fair value has been estimated
calculating the present value of future cash flows associated with each deal usingdjuisied discount rate
whichis the unobservable input

iv. For other assetand liabilitiesheld at amortised cost, fair value is approximatedal tocarrying value.

Valuation of Financial Instruments
The Groufs fair value measurement techniques can be found in Note 3b.

The table below analyses financial instruments measured at fair value at the end of the reporting period, by the fal
value hierarchy.
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Group 2017 2017 2017 2017

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
£000 £000 £000 £000
Investment securities 104,882 - 973 105,85¢E
Profit rate swaps liability - 636 - 636
Foreign exchange forward dee ) i 982
(liabilities) 982
Group 2016 2016 2016 2016
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
£000 £000 £000 £000
Investment securities 90,171 820 3,170 94,161
Profit rate swaps liability - 1,305 - 1,305
Foreign exchange forward i 3.888 ) 3.888

deals (Assets)

Duringthe year, there were no transfers between Level 1 and Level 2 fair value measurd@2@litsnone)and no
transfers into or out of Level 3 fair value measureme®16: none) Transfers between levelsould occur at the
date of the event or change in cirmstances that caused the transfer.

Thelevel 3investment securities are valued by an independent professional firm of corporate finance and capital
markets advisorsvho use a market approach to value the portfolio. Market value is determined by usoes @nd

other relevant information generated by market transactions involving the individual security and/or identical or
comparable securities.

There have been no changes to the methodologies used in valuing the level 2 and 3288€etsone).

The following table shows a reconciliation from the beginning balances to the ending balances for fair value
measurements in Level 3 of the fair value hierarchy.

Group 2017 2016
Investment securities £000 £000
Balance at 1 January 3,170 3,803

Total gains / (losses) recognised in:

- profit or loss* (1,770) (487)
- other comprehensive income** (427) 34
Purchases - -
Sales - (180)
Balance at 31 December 973 3,170

F CKAA FY2dzyd Aa Ay ObndoReStRenh FOdzZNB G A TAANAPlI S AFOAFE
FF CKAA Y2dzyld A& Ay Ot dzRS Rfor&ay 8O FIAWR FO AN FlraxaN i@l tid:
statement of comprehensive income

The reconciliation for investmersecuritiess included ifNote 19.

For the fair values of availabfer-sale equity securities, reasonatpossible changes at the reporting date to one of
the significant unobservable inputs, holding the other inputs constant, would have the following effects:
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Group 31 December 2017
Income statement  Other comprehensive income

Increase Decrease Increase Decrease

£000 £000 £000 £000

Valuation adjustment +30% - - 292 -
Valuation adjustment -30% - (7 - (285)
Group 31 December 2016
Income statement  Other comprehensive income

Increase Decrease Increase Decrease

£000 £000 £000 £000

Valuation adjustment +30% - - 951 -
Valuation adjustment -30% - (239) - (712)

ix. Financial assets and liabilities

The following table details the carrying value by category of financialsaagetliabilitiesas at 31 Decembe&017.

Group 2017 2017 2017 2017
Fair value Available- Financial Total

through for-sale assets at

profit and amortised

loss cost
Assets £000 £000 £000 £000
Cash and balances with banks - - 96,780 96,780
Due from financial institutions - - 28,544 28,544
Due from customers 9,027 9,027

Investment securities:

Sukuk - 104,882 9,075 113,957
Equity - 973 - 973
Financing arrangements - - 567,820 567,82C
Finance lease receivables - - 170,546 170,54€
Total financial assets - 105,855 881,792 987,647
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Group

Liabilities
Due to financial institutions

Due to customers

Profit rate swaps
Other liabilities (Foreign exchan
forward deals)

Total financial liabilities

Group

Assets
Cash and balances with banks

Due from financial institutions

Investment securities:
Sukuk

Equity
Financing arrangements

Finance lease receivables

Other assets (Foreign exchange forwe

deals)

Total financial assets

Group

Liabilities
Due to financial institutions

Due to customers
Profit rate swaps

Total financial liabilities

2017 2017 2017 2017
Fair value Other Financial Total
through Profit Rate liabilities
profit and Swaps at amortised
loss cost
£000 £000 £000 £000
- - 514,392 514,392
- - 277,341 277,341
636 - 636
982 - 982
1,618 - 791,733 793,351
2016 2016 2016 2016
Fair value Available- Financial Total
through for-sale assets at
profit and amortised
loss cost
£000 £000 £000 £000
- - 71,152 71,152
- - 107,182 107,182
- 90,991 18,000 108,991
- 3,170 - 3,170
- - 473,304 473,304
- - 232,701 232,701
3,888 - - 3,888
3,888 94,161 902,339 1,000,388
2016 2016 2016 2016
Fair value Other Financial Total
through Profit Rate liabilities
profit and Swaps at amortised
loss cost
£000 £000 £000 £000
- - 586,964 586,964
- - 213,804 213,804
1,254 51 - 1,305
1,254 51 800,768 802,073
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b. Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Group will encounter difficulty in meeting its financial obligations as they fall due,
arising from the differing maturity profile of its assets and liabilitlHss risks managed by ensuring that the Group
has sufficient liquidity to meet its liabilities when due.

The TreasuryDivisionis responsibldor monitoring the liquidity profile of financial assets and liabilities, including
projected cash flows from current drfuture business. Theareamaintains a portfolio of shoterm money market
assetsand marketable securitieand seeksto ensure that sufficient liquidity is maintained. The liquidity position is
monitored on a daily basis accordance wittguicelines issued byALCCQOand approved by Board Risk Committee
Overall, the management of liquidity riskdenducted in accordance withhe Gr oup’' s Liqui di't
Policyand its annualLAAR as required by th&RAIncluded in the ILAAI s B Cahtihgescy Funding Plan that
details actions during a liquidity stress.

Over and above regulatory liquidity, ALCO establistseswn liquidity performance measureand PRAguidelines.
Thesdnclude a series of early warning triggers amahagement data oliability stability (i.ethe likelihood of deposits
being withdrawn), liability diversification and reserve liquiditAs at 31 Decembe&t017, the Groupheld £765 million
(2016: £777million) of term deposits and helf0.9 million (2016: £2.0m) of secondary market assets.

Residual contractual maturities of financial assets

Group Less than 1-3 3-12 1-5 5+ 2017
1 month months months years years Total
£000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000
Cash and balances with 96.780 ) ) ) ) 96.7¢
banks
Due from financial 18,489 ; 10,090 - - 28,57
institutions
Due from customers 9,042 - - - - 9,0«
Investment securities 1,966 745 19,506 93,924 5,498 121,63
Financing arrangements 327,360 131,351 37,034 83,455 - 579,2C
Finance lease receivables 12,941 16,151 52,524 95,615 6,547 183,77
Other assets (Foreign ) i ) ) )
exchange forward deals)
466,578 148,247 119,154 272,994 12,045 1,019,018
Group Less than 1-3 3-12 1-5 5+ 2016
1 month months months years years Total
£000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000
Cash and balances with 71152 ) ) ) ) 71 .1¢
banks
Due from financial 68,845 28,388 - 10,090 - 107,32
institutions
Investment securities 3,341 496 1,560 109,006 6,455 120,8t
Financing arrangements 303,061 63,355 70,650 81,028 - 518,0¢
Finance lease receivables 3,755 22,134 87,387 130,356 9,318 252,95
Other assets (Foreign 2.818 1,070 ) ) ) 3.8¢
exchange forward deals)
452,972 115,443 159,597 330,480 15,773 1,074,265
The tabless above showt he contractual , undi scount esbketscllaesGnoupfitheo w s

senior lender in all of its lending exposures
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None of the Group’s assets have been pl e dgmilion@dE6: c ol
£05m) as security against rent al pay memft st hoen Grhoeu pGrs
unencumbered.
Residual contractual maturities of financial liabilities
Group Less than 1-3 3-12 1-5 5+ 2017
1 month months months years years Total
£000 £000 £000 £000 £ £000
Due to financial 138,025 143,186 236,654 - - 517,86
institutions
Due to customers 31,712 10,662 130,261 114,816 1,808 289,2t
Profit rate swaps - - - 636 - 6:
Other liabilities
(Foreign exchange 752 259 (29) - - o
forward deals)
170,489 154,107 366,886 115,452 1,808 808,742
Group Less than 1-3 3-12 1-5 5+ 2016
1 month months months years years Total
£000 £000 £000 £000 £ £000
al;(;t’tgﬁf(l)l:gnmal - 153,820 292,767 154,808 - 601,3¢
Due to customers 21,751 10,736 100,339 100,384 1,256 234.,4¢€
Profit rate swaps - - - 1,305 - 1,3(
Other liabilities
(Foreign exchange - - - - - -
forward deals)
21,751 164,556 393,106 256,497 1,256 837,166
The tablsabove show the contractual, undi s c o uaparefrdm pradits h

rate swapswhich are showed using discounted cash flows.

Whilst BLME has sufficient assets in the short dated time buckets to cover its short dated liabilities as they becon
due, it also holds a significant Liquid Asset Buffer (liABhe with thePRAules) of £91.1million as at 31 December

2017 (2016: £89.7 million). These LAB holdings have been greater than the regulatory liquidity requirement
throughout theyear(unaudited)

The following table sets out components of the Grou
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Group 2017 2016

£000 £000
Cash and cash equivalents 96,780 71,152
Highly liquid securities (including LAB) 104,882 90,171
Total 201,662 161,323

As at 31 Decemb&017, there are no limitations on the use of the liquidity reserve held by the G(@0f6: none).

c. Market risk

Market risk is the risk that changes in market prices will affect income. It covers profit rgteradik spread risk
equity price riskand foreign exchange riskhe credit spread risk only pertains to the part that is not related to the

i ssuer’s [/ obligor’s credit stanldn ngc asr ddrade pwirtth i
Risk Management Policg.COs responsible for reviewing all classes of market price risk and positions, sanctioning

dealing limitsand approvinBL ME' s st r essi rn ead d oirgd g Sagpssvdaating anB Bddrarios
Analysis Policy.

The principal exposure to markask relates toasset andiability marketrate re-price risk within the accrual based
Banking Book. These risks are governed by mismatch limits expressegeestrvalue sensitivity of 4 basis point

change irprofit rates. The main stress tests mk to asset andiability re-price, credit spreachndforeign exchange
risks.

i. Profit rate risk

This risk arises from the effect§ changes in profit rates on the #gricing of assets and liabilities, and covers both
fixed and variablgrofit rates TheGroupmanages such risks through the usdiofe based limits that measure the
profit rate sensitiviy to changes iprofit rates.

As at 31 Decemb&016the Group s net profit rate sensitivity sets pr
and its capital and reserveas measured by the discounted value of a one basis point change in marketwates,
£7,951(2016: £24,853. Tre impact of an increasedecrease of 100 basis points in profit rates at the statement of
financial positiordate, subject to a minimum rate of 0%, would be as follows:

At 31 December 2017 At 31 December 2016

Increase of Decrease of Increase of Decrease of

100 bp 100 bp 100 bp 100 bp

£000 £000 £000 £000

Increase in profit & loss 4,153 - 4,575 -
Decrease in profit & loss - 3,761 - 5,22
Increase in equity 3,983 - 3,160 -
Decrease in equity - 3,579 - 3,73

ii. Foreign exchange risk

Foreign exchange risk is the risk that the value in a®tnling asset or liability position will fluctuate due to changes
in currency ratesThe Bank does not take significant foreign exchange positions and the majority of risk relates tc
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earnings on US Dollar assets &8l Dollaliabilitieswhose maturities are broadly matchethe Board has established
position and stop loss limits to ensure that positions and revaluation results are subject to indepetadignt
monitoring and reporting to senior management.

At 31 December 2017 At 31 December 2016
£000 £000
Resultant foreign exchange 30 68
revaluation gain from a 10%
strengthening or weakening of th
net foreign currency positions
against Sterling
Year to 31 December Year to 31 December
2017 2016
£000 £000
Net foreign exchange gain / (loss 1,746 756

for the period

iii. Equity price risk

Equity prices are monitoe d by t Assets@nd diabpities Committeaut the sensitivityrisk is not currerly
significant in relation to the overall results and financial position of the Group.

d. Operational risk

Operationalrisk is the risk of loss resulting framadequate or failed internal processes, people and systems or from
external events.

The responsibility for the operating framework for risk governance rests with the Board. This extends to determinin
ri sk appetite i n | iamdenswingtthattherh is a dearly Hefined riskt nraageengny structure
with distinct roles and responsibilities that allow risks to be monitored, controlled and reported effectively. Risk
governance is underpinned by ensuring that the Board and its comesitre provided with transparent and risk
sensitive reporting to facilitate their accountabilities and decision making. The Operational Risk Framework is bui
around the thredinesof defencemodel. This Framework has been approved and is periodiesilgwed by the Board
through the Board Risk Committee.

Senior Management ensures the identification and assessment of operational risk through a Risk and Control Se
Assessment“RCSA process. Technology risk (including CyberSecurity and Informatss) ®irrounding core
banking systems is perceived to be the area of risk that concerns most business areasoamgbisndedby a high
inherent End User Computing risk. Operatiaimgideventsare reported through a centralised risk managemsygtem
accessible to all stafthe resolution ofan event is monitoredoy a network of operational riskchampionslocated

within each business unit and support function.

Basel I requires capital to be retained for operational riskhich he Grouphascalcuated to be £/7.0 million using
the Basic Indicator Approa¢R016: £6.9 million) (unaudited)

e. Capital adequacy

The Company is not subject to regulatory capital re
out below.At 31 Decembe?017 and throughout the yeathe Bankcomplied with the capitalequirements that were

in forceas set out by théPrudential Rgul at i on Aut h@maidiey) THe PRA asloptBdRiFe " Basel 1l
requirements with effect from 1 January 201

114



Theregulatorycapital positiorof BLMEas at 31 December was as follows:

Audited

Tier 1 Capital - CET1

Ordinary share capital

Share premium

Retained (losses) / earnings
Total Tier 1 capital

Unaudited

Deductions from Tier 1 capital
Intangible assets

Others

Total Tier 1 capital after deductions

Tier 2 capital
Total Tier 2 capital

Total Tier 1 and Tier 2 capital

Deductions from Tier 1 and Tier 2 capital:

Investment in BLME Sharia'a Umbrella Fund SICAV SIF

Investmentin DMJ Il LLC
Investment in group companies

Total regulatory capital

2017 2016
£000 £000
48,933 48,933
180,623 180,62
(10,566) (14,033)
218,990 215,523
(837) (1,708)
1,640 847
219,793 214,662
3,915 4,398
3,915 4,398
223,708 219,060
223,708 219,060

The amounts of regulatory capital shown above differ from éagity balances shown in thBLME s
financial position in light of adjustments in respect of certain reserves, vdriemot eligible under th®RA’ s c ap i

adequacy rules.

st at e me

Under the capital adequacy rules applicable from 1 January BYMEadopted theSandardised Apprach to Credit
Risk and the Basic Indicator Approach to Operational B@mknterparty CrediRsk is measured using the CCR mark
determined

to-market method, andMar k e t Ri

sk is

using

t he

stand

BLME s o v eimuanlcdpitalmdsource requirement under Pillar 1 is calculated by adding the credit risk charge to

that required forOperationalRisk, forMarket Risk and folCCR

The following table shows botBLME s
Pillar 1 at 31 December

over al

mi

ni

mu m

c a mdeguady positm under e
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2017 2016
£000 £000
(unaudited) (unaudited)

Pillar 1 capital requirements

Credit risk 75,456 76,758
Market risk - foreign currency PRR 110 596
Counterparty risk capital component 13 74
Operational risk 7,018 6,993
Total Pillar 1 capital requirement 82,597 84,422
Total regulatory capital in place 223,708 219,060

BLMEundertakesregularinternal assessmesbf the amount of capital which it requires to support its activities. This
assessment process is called the Internal Capital Adequacy Assessment Process (ICAAP). The ICAAP identifiesan
of other risks faced bBLMEwhich do notexplicitly attract a capital requirement under the Pillar 1 ruleBLME

all ocates additional <capital for these Pillar 2 ris
BLMEs determined as the sum of the Pillar 1 and the Pillar 2 capital requiteme

ThePRAeviewsBLME KCAARssessment of its Pillar 2 capital requirement as part ofnidevidual Capital Guidance
(ICG)process.BLMEmanagesits capital in accordance wittis Pillar 2 capitatequirementand was in compliance

throughout the ar.

BLMEhas put in place processes to monitor and manage capital adequacy which includes reporting regulatory capit
headroomagainst thePillar 2 capital requirementb executive managemeran a daily basig-urther information
regardingBLME s approach to risk management and its capit
made under the requirements of BasePlllar3 (the Pillar 3lisclosureswhich can be foundithe Investor Relations

section of the BLME websitevw.blme.com.

BLMEwill continue to prudently employ capital and maintain appropriate capital adequapyidity and leverage
ratios. BLME reported to the PRA ratios above the minimum requirement through@i. The capitalplanning
processcontinues to incorporate these measures
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